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01/22/2019

Bill/Resolution No.: HB 1442

1 A. State fiscal effect: Identify the state fiscal effect and the fiscal effect on agency appropriations compared to funding 
levels and appropriations anticipated under current law.

2017-2019 Biennium 2019-2021 Biennium 2021-2023 Biennium

General Fund Other Funds General Fund Other Funds General Fund Other Funds

Revenues

Expenditures

Appropriations

1 B. County, city, school district and township fiscal effect: Identify the fiscal effect on the appropriate political  
subdivision.

2017-2019 Biennium 2019-2021 Biennium 2021-2023 Biennium

Counties

Cities

School Districts

Townships

2 A. Bill and fiscal impact summary: Provide a brief summary of the measure, including description of the provisions 
having fiscal impact (limited to 300 characters).

This bill would prohibit a law enforcement officer or peace officer from halting an operator of a vehicle solely to 
determine compliance with NDCC section 39-08-01, or an equivalent ordinance without reasonable suspicion of a 
violation of those regulations.

B. Fiscal impact sections: Identify and provide a brief description of the sections of the measure which have fiscal  
impact. Include any assumptions and comments relevant to the analysis.

This bill would have no material fiscal impact.

3. State fiscal effect detail: For information shown under state fiscal effect in 1A, please:

A. Revenues: Explain the revenue amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each revenue type and fund 
affected and any amounts included in the executive budget.

B. Expenditures: Explain the expenditure amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each agency, line item, and 
fund affected and the number of FTE positions affected.

C. Appropriations: Explain the appropriation amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each agency and fund 
affected. Explain the relationship between the amounts shown for expenditures and appropriations. Indicate whether 
the appropriation or a part of the appropriation is included in the executive budget or relates to a continuing 
appropriation.
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Committee Clerk:   DeLores D. Shimek 

Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 
 

Relating to requiring reasonable suspicion for certain traffic stops. 
  
 

Minutes:                                                  Attachment: 1 

 
Chairman Koppelman:  Opened the meeting on HB 1442. 
 
Rep. Rick Becker:  Introduced the bill. (Attachment #1) Went over the testimony and 
handouts. Wants to stop Sobriety check points. He discussed what saturation patrols were.  
Stopped 17:00.  If there is something in policy or procedure and it has not been working, 
then that tool should be discarded.   
 
Rep. Jones:  What you say sounds logical.  Why are we continuing to do this? 
 
Rep. Rick Becker: If you use Sobriety check points frequently enough and advertise strongly 
it does have a deterrence. But we are not. Studies have proven saturation patrols would have 
an even greater deterrence. I spoke to MADD they are not interested in any alternatives.  
 
Rep. Jones:  Are they using it as a fishing scheme so they can find other things? 
 
Chairman K. Koppelman: It is interesting that the organization you mentioned because they 
are joined at the hips to another specific in the form of emission interlocks and they fail to 
look at our 24/7 program which is relatively unique to North and South Dakota which works 
far better because the Attorney General says the emission interlocks keep the car from 
driving drunk 24/7 keeps the driver from driving drunk.  
 
Rep. Rick Becker: Chairman I thought it was quite admirable for the Police Chief from 
Columbus to recognize that there is a better tool, and to take that initiative, instead of not 
hearing any alternatives.   
 
Chairman K. Koppelman: I appreciate your point about other factors driving the reduction 
in these offences and weather it has a deterrent effect or not. If you look at only that piece of 
the puzzle, as you said during the same time we have increased penalties on drunk driving 
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and I think there has been a good awareness of that in the public. Highway fatalities are also 
down.   
 
Rep. McWilliams:  Is it the states responsibility to remove bad tools or is it the counties or 
the cities job? 
 
Rep. Rick Becker: I think it is both, the police chief I indicated chose to organize his tool box 
in a more logical manner. It is also the legislatures responsibility to draft a good law. There 
are several other states that already prohibit sobriety check points.   
 
Rep. Satrom:  What harm is having it in there? 
 
Rep. Rick Becker:  There are other alternatives that are superior why not use them.  It is not 
that this is a weird tool; but it is actually ruining the product when you could be using a better 
tool. 
 
Rep. Paur: Do other states have similar laws? Have you spoken to Kernel Solburg? 
 
Rep. Rick Becker:  I have not spoken to Kernel Solberg.  There are twelve other states that 
prohibit sobriety check points, some have it in statutes, and WY has it in their constitution. 
 
Rep. Paur:  Do you have feedback from these other twelve states? 
 
Rep. Rick Becker: I am not aware of any state, that has implemented it,                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                      
that has retracted it.  
 
Opposition? 
 
Neutral? 
 
Hearing closed. 
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 Relating to requiring reasonable suspicion for certain traffic stops. 
 

Minutes:                                                   

 
Chairman Koppelman:  Opened the meeting on HB 1442. 
 
Rep. Jones: made a motion for a Do Pass on HB 1442 
 
Rep. Simons: Seconded 
 
A roll Call Vote was taken: Yes   12     No    2       Absent 0 
 
A Do Pass carried 
 
Rep. Becker will carry HB1442 
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☐ Subcommittee 

☐ Conference Committee 

 

      Committee Clerk: Meghan Pegel/ Marne Johnson 

 

Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 

 
A BILL for an Act to create and enact a new section to chapter 39-07 of the North Dakota 
Century Code, relating to requiring reasonable suspicion for certain traffic stops. 
 
 

Minutes:                                                 3 Attachments 

 
 
Chair Larson opens the hearing on HB 1442. 
 
Rick Becker, District 7 Representative, testifies in favor (see attachment #1) 
 
Representative Becker: This a prohibition and sobriety checkpoint bill. A brief history, this 
was attempted previously, in the 2015 session it was more expansive; including Game and 
Fish, more areas of traffic, there was concern about commercial safety inspections, would it 
affect Amber Alerts, and things like that. In the 2017 session, the discussion was all based 
on the constitutionality. There’s a couple components for me. A potential 4th amendment 
violation; the Supreme Court already decided they are not unconstitutional; but that’s what 
we discussed on the House side. What got lost was this other component, which is how do 
we effectively decrease drunk driving? What I learned when I was researching the sobriety 
checkpoints was this aspect of drunk driving. Attachment #1 is an array of things, there is so 
much information out there. A couple of newspaper articles, a study on sobriety checkpoints, 
an FBI bulletin with some statistics, and a grouping of additional studies. A sobriety 
checkpoint is a situation in which law enforcement will have many officers grouped together 
to stop traffic. The Supreme Court indicated that to have that be constitutional, you need to 
advertise that ahead of time, you also need to let drivers turn around as they approach. Those 
requirements are a couple of the main ones. Sobriety checkpoints have been found to be 
really, really bad at apprehending. You would think that would be the key, stopping drivers 
checking to see if they are drunk, and apprehending them. But they are found to be 
extraordinarily poor at apprehension. A study was done that showed 62% of people that had 
a blood alcohol level of .08 or higher had successfully gone through the checkpoint without 
being detected. In addition, approximately 1-2% of the cars stopped were arrested for DUI. 
 
Chair Larson: So, they had a checkpoint, then they had a second checkpoint? 
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Representative Becker: It was a voluntary checkpoint; it wasn’t law enforcement staff at the 
second point, it was scientists collecting data. They were able to determine, by vehicles 
voluntarily willing to be pulled over. Fargo had a 1.6% of the vehicles they pulled over 
arrested for DUI, nationally, it’s between 1 and 1.5% of vehicles pulled over. 
 
Vice Chairman Dwyer: On that point, what was the reference you made to 62%? 
 
Representative Becker: This study that I will find and provide to the committee, they tested 
people who had gone through a checkpoint. For those people who had had a blood alcohol 
level of .08 or higher, 62% had gone through the checkpoint undetected. 
 
Vice Chairman Dwyer: So they apprehended or detected 38% of those? 
 
Representative Becker: Correct. 
 
Vice Chairman Dwyer: Then on the Fargo one, it’s 1.6%? 
 
Representative Becker: No. I cite that study, it’s one example that checkpoints are generally 
ineffective at determining if they are a .08 or higher. I’m talking about what we actually see 
in practice in North Dakota. A checkpoint occurs, and cars get pulled over; of the cars that 
get pulled over, 1.6% of those cars are actually given a DUI. There are no studies to indicate 
how many went through the checkpoint undetected. 
 
We’re comparing this to an alternate means. Chief Jahner discussed this as well; a directed 
patrol, or roving saturation patrol. You take a number of officers and send them out. Instead 
of having 10 officers sitting at a checkpoint, which officers on the ground are not overly fond 
of, because it’s boring, you take those man-hours and look for signs of drunk driving. It is 
very targeted in that manner. Roving saturation patrols have a DUI arrest rate of 21% in Cass 
County. Much better at apprehending. That is acknowledged in ‘Unsteady on Its Feet, 
Sobriety Checkpoint Reasonableness’ (please see attachment #1, page 6) That statement 
is the thrust of what I’m trying to get at. They are bad at apprehension. What we focus on 
when we talk about sobriety checkpoints is the deterrence. The deterrence is in the fact that 
you are advertising. You are letting the public know that there is going to be a checkpoint. 
When the public knows there are checkpoints, they recognize that they shouldn’t be driving 
drunk. That’s true; it is a deterrent. The true deterrent effect only occurs with a significant 
frequency, but North Dakota is not anywhere close. Fargo police haven’t done a DUI 
checkpoint since 2014. Cass County did one in 2016 and one in 2017. Highway Patrol did 
16 checkpoints over the course of 2 years state-wide. That is nowhere close enough to be a 
deterrent. The problem is, that yes, checkpoints can have a deterrent effect. They have a 
deterrent effect relative to not doing any advertising, but they don’t have a strong deterrent 
effect relative to advertising the alternate, which is a roving saturation patrol. That has not 
been shown. If you were to hear an advertisement, officers are going to be on 71st avenue 
on Friday night doing a checkpoint, versus officers are going to be out this weekend in force 
looking for drunk drivers, that will have a stronger effect. Everyone acknowledges that 
sobriety checkpoints are inferior to alternate means for apprehension. The deterrence is the 
thing we talk about, the tool in the toolbox. The problem is, it’s worse than the alternative for 
one thing, it’s not being done in a way that actually causes deterrence, it’s not being done 
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frequently enough. That’s because they cost so much money. You have so many officers 
sitting around. It just does not work. I will encourage you to challenge the notion that they 
need this tool in the toolbox. A tool is fine if it doesn’t cause harm. When you put 50 man-
hours at a checkpoint and compare them to a roving saturation patrol, the checkpoint will 
take one drunk driver off the road; on that same night if you had chosen to do a roving 
saturation patrol, you’d be taking three drunk drivers off the road. The argument that ‘at least 
it gets drunk drivers off the road,’ it leaves them on the road. I concede that many times that 
my argument for freedom and liberty is not heard. What I can’t wrap my brain around is how 
this has been shown to be so inferior, but the argument is we have to have it because we 
want drunk drivers off the road. It’s showing us that it’s leaving drunk drivers on the road. 
 
Senator Myrdal: I grew up in a nation where those checkpoints were not advertised. Now 
with the age of cellphones, it’s instantly known where those checkpoints are and they avoid 
them. Is there anything in the language in this bill that you would see has affect other than a 
checkpoint? 
 
Representative Becker: I don’t believe so. Section 39-08-01 is specifically for drunk driving 
and nothing more. To be very clear, the last sentence, ‘It does not apply to inspections or 
safety checkpoints.’ 
 
Vice Chairman Dwyer: If the Fargo police department aren’t using them, we’re leaving that 
up to their discretion if we don’t have this law, is there any reason to not just leave it up to 
their discretion? 
 
Representative Becker: If the sobriety checkpoint was no worse than, or arguably two 
different things with different effects, then that tool is reasonable to leave to the discretion of 
law enforcement should be preserved. But the knowledge that it is inferior to what’s available, 
I think it is proper purview of the legislature to say, it’s not a good thing and we don’t want it. 
Clearly they are not being used very much, it’s a waste of resources and manpower hours. 
It’s reasonable to say we aren’t going to do this anymore; we’ve got much better options. 
With all of the things we’ve been doing to curb and decrease the risk from drunk drivers, I 
think this falls in line with it. 
 
Vice Chairman Dwyer: I’m assuming that under the roving patrols they must have 
reasonable suspicion to pull somebody over. 
 
Representative Becker: They do. It was alluded to earlier, there are myriad reasons to pull 
someone over. Law enforcement has been trained, and are very good at identifying people 
who are drunk or the behaviors of people who are fearful because they know they are 
inebriated.  
 
(19:50-23:40) Laura Anderson, Assistant Director of the Behavioral Health Division of 
the Department of Human Services, testifies in opposition (see attachment #2) 
 
Chair Larson: What is the last page? 
 
Anderson: The information in my testimony, just in graphic form. 
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Vice Chairman Dwyer: Apparently Cass County and the City of Fargo haven’t used them, 
either because they’re too staff intensive or don’t feel they are effective. Would that alter your 
view on them? 
 
Anderson: It doesn’t alter my view, the research shows that when implemented effectively, 
they can be effective. I don’t see why we should take that option away. 
 
Chair Larson: Do you know how many officers are at a sobriety checkpoint? 
 
Anderson: I will defer that question. 
 
 
(25:25-28:00) Tom Volk, City Council Member in Lincoln, testifies in opposition (see 
attachment #3) 
Summarized letters from North Dakota citizens. 
I am against HB 1442 for many of the same reasons mentioned previously. North Dakota 
has a problem with DUIs, we see 6,000 DUI arrests each year, if you take that into 
consideration, that’s the entire population of Valley City. If you take the data point that on 
average, you drive drunk 80 times before you get arrested, it shows how big a problem we 
have. Representative Becker stated that it’s just another tool in the toolbox that’s not doing 
its job, it’s a damaged tool. I would have to differ on that, because what you have is a hacksaw 
compared to a wood saw. You don’t just throw out the hacksaw because you aren’t cutting 
metal that day. 
 
(28:30) Donnell Preskey, North Dakota Association of Counties, testifies in opposition 
 
Preskey: We are very supportive of law enforcement and North Dakota’s Vision Zero 
initiative, because of this North Dakota Association of Counties is opposed to HB 1442. In 
my role at North Dakota Association of Counties, I also serve as executive director for the 
North Dakota Sheriffs and Deputies Association. The sheriffs play a more supportive role in 
these checkpoints. Most of the time they are there assisting the Highway Patrol.  
 
Chair Larson: So, it’s the Highway Patrol that actually does the checkpoint, it’s not the local 
law enforcement, this is in addition to what the local law enforcement has? 
 
Preskey: In most cases, they play a supportive role. Representative Becker alluded to the 
fact that Fargo has done some and so has Cass County, but in most cases it’s a dual effort, 
the Highway Patrol is there and the sheriffs participate. Regardless of the roles, our law 
enforcement believe this bill removes a tool form ever being used again. It should be allowed 
to be an option, there is no need to eliminate this from century code. DUI checkpoints provide 
a deterrent, and an effective way to reduce the number of people who are driving drunk and 
buzzed on our roadways. Just the announcement is a deterrent. We would ask for a no vote. 
It was referenced about the 17 checkpoints that the Highway Patrol conducted. According to 
the Forum article, they were conducted from Jan 2017 to Dec 2018, and that resulted in 17 
DUI arrests. 
 
Chair Larson: So, even after advertising, some are driving drunk anyway. 
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Preskey: I would say that the 17 people who were caught driving drunk on our roads, that 
we were able to catch through those checkpoints. 
 
 
(32:05) Blair Thoreson, North Dakota Peace Officers Association, testifies in 
opposition 
 
Thoreson: We see this as an item that law enforcement can selectively use to help make 
our roads safer.  We ask for a do not pass recommendation to this bill.  
To your question about the number of law enforcement members needed to run a sobriety 
checkpoint, I did not have a specific number in state, some quick research revealed that the 
common assumption is that it takes a dozen or more, but research has indicated that as few 
as three officers can effectively operate a safety checkpoint. 
 
Chair Larson: That would usually be how many hours in the evening? We heard testimony 
about having officers spending 50 hours just sitting around. 
 
Thoreson: I’m not certain. I can try to find out. 
 
(33:50) Dustin Olson, Lieutenant, Burleigh County Sheriff’s Department, provided 
neutral information 
 
Olson: I can provide information on that last question. On the checkpoints that we have 
participated in with the Highway Patrol, they are typically in a 4-hour or 6-hour block, times 
how many officers you put out there. I know the Sheriff’s Department; we would typically give 
one or two deputies to assist with those efforts. 
 
Chair Larson: This would be the time spent for one or two deputies and then Highway Patrol 
actually being the extra people on duty. 
 
Olson: Correct. 
 
Chair Larson: Have you been a part of a saturation patrol? 
 
Olson: Yes, I have. 
 
Chair Larson: How many officers does that take? 
 
Olson: Our saturation patrols that we put out, we have different sets, spring, summer and 
winter and typically we put out a signup sheet of six to eight shifts. The deputies can 
volunteer, we like those to be during weekend efforts, typically that is a higher volume. Those 
guys are working those hours anywhere from 9pm-3am or 10pm-4am.  
 
Chair Larson: How many usually are on those shifts? 
 
Olson: Typically, one person will volunteer for Friday, one extra for Saturday. We do have 
some special events in the Bismarck area, where we would allow up to two or three, because 
of the influx of people into the community. If it’s a standard weekend, it is one extra deputy 
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out there. On top of that, our deputies are out there day and night, these are just extra efforts 
we try to put forth. 
 
Vice Chairman Dwyer: Do you advertise the saturation patrols like the DUI checkpoints, or 
do you just do them? 
 
Olson: I’ve seen some advertising, not necessarily from the Sheriff’s Department, but I know 
they do the Click it or Ticket campaign and the Drive Sober or Get Pulled Over, but that’s 
more of a state-wide campaign. 
 
Chair Larson: It’s not a specific ‘we are going to be driving around on this night between 
these hours’ type of thing.   
 
Olson: Correct. 
 
Senator Luick: You mentioned volunteering, is that paid? 
 
Olson: Correct. They volunteer, but they get paid overtime for that. 
 
Chair Larson:  Closed the public hearing. 
 
Vice Chairman Dwyer: Motions for a Do Not Pass. 
Senator Bakke: Seconds. 
 
A Roll Call Vote Was Taken: 4 yeas, 1 nay, 1 absent. Motion carries. 
 
Chair Larson will carry the bill. 
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2019 HB1442 Prohibition of Sobriety Otcckpoints 

Halting requires reasonable suspicion. Notwithstanding any other provision of law, a law enforcement officer or 
peace officer may not halt an operator of a vehicle solely to dctenninc compliance with section 39-08-01, or an 
equivalent ordinance, unless the officer has a reasonable suspicion to believe there is a violation of section 39-08-01 
or uivalent ordinance. This section docs not apply to inspections or safety checkpoints for commercial motor 
ve 

NDCC: 39-08-01. Persons wider the influence of intoxicating liquor or any other drugs or substances not to operate 
vehicle - Penalty. 

This bill simply proht"bits sobriety checkpoints. 

Wh.Y do we have them? 

1) To apprehend (remove drunk drivers from the road) 

2) To deter people from drunk driving 

Are there altqnatives? 
Directed patrols and Roving Saturation patrols 

What are the concqns with Sobrietv checkpoints? 

1) Widespread resentment for perceived infringement of civil rights (4th Amendment) 
a) Already decided by supreme court that they arc not wtconstitutional (if ... ) 
b) Docsn 't prevent states from prohibiting than. 

2) They have been proven to do a very poor job of apprehending dnmk drivers 
a) ¾, of drivers with BAC >.08 get through undetected. 

low yield but with very high consumption of resources (man-hours) (<1%) 
ence effect can be good, but has been proven to require multiple frequent, consistent, and widely 

publi� checkpoints (very costly) 

How do ch;ckpoints compare to saturation patrols? 

1) Little concern with infringement of 4th Amendment 

2) Excellent job of apprehending drunk drivers 

3) For the same consistency and publicity they CKcccd the deterrent effect of checkpoints 

[f saturation patrols arc far better at apprehension, choosing to use them instead of using saturation patrols is literally 
choosing to leave more drunk drivers on the road. 
[f saturation patrols arc better at dctem:ncc, choosing to use them instead of saturation patrols is intentionally being 
less effective in combating drank driving. 
The "one more tool in the toolbox" clichc' is misapplied in this circwnstancc. 
Generally, if something has no downside, docs not iniiingc on people's rights, and docs not needlessly increase 
::itpcnsc; sure - why not ''leave it in the toolbox". 
But when that tool has been shown to have No rcdccming value, and harms the actual intent for which it is used, that 
tool must be discarded. 

#I 
ft8 I ./''J.Z 

;i., -!>-----11 
!J'I 



fl I 
/-r B I J../ J./ � 

Unsteady on Its Feet: 

� �-1 q 
Sobriety Checkpoint 

Reasonableness 

Michael F. Lotito * 

Table of Contents 

I. Introduction .................................................................................. 736 

II. Rational Viewpoints on Unreasonable Seizures ........................... 739 
A. The Warrant Preference Rule ................................................ 7 40 
B. The Reasonableness Approach .............................................. 741 
C. Michigan Department of State Police v. Sitz ......................... 742 
D. The Economics of Fourth Amendment Reasonableness ........ 745 

III. Sobriety Checkpoint Reasonableness: The Variables .................. 749 
A. The State's Interest in Preventing Drunk Driving .................. 749 

1. The State as a Rational Maximizer .................................. 749 
2. Narrowing the Interest.. ................................................... 756 

B. The Extent to Which This System Can Reasonably Be 
Said to Advance That Interest.. .............................................. 7 60 
1. Empirical Observations ................................................... 760 
2. Interpreting the Observations .......................................... 766 

C. The Degree of Intrusion upon Motorists ................................ 768 
1. Empirical Observations ................................................... 768 
2. Interpreting the Observations .......................................... 775 

D. A Different Look at Sobriety Checkpoint Balancing ............. 777 

IV. A Response to Recent Scholarship ............................................... 777 

V. Conclusion .................................................................................... 784 

* Candidate for J.D., Washington and Lee University School of Law, May 2010; 
B.S.B.A., University ofNorth Carolina at Chapel Hill, 2005. I thank those who made this Note 
possible: the Suffolk County District Attorney's Office of New York for inspiring this topic; 
Professor Russell A. Miller for helping me develop the idea and for serving as my advisor; Peter 
S. Massaro for his advice and dedicated assistance to this project; Michael T. McCarthy and 
Bridget Tainer-Parkins for their careful review; and, of course, my family-especially my 
parents, Frank and Kathleen-for their support, love, and endless entertainment. 

J 

f. � 



67 WASH. &LEE L. REV 735 (2010) 
(Safe, Accountable, Flexible, Efficient Transportation Equity Act: A Legacy for Users) 
Users (SAFETEA-LU) in 2005.99 SAFETEA-LU amended preexisting federal 

incentive programs under 23 U.S.C. § 410, providing federal grants to qualified 
states if one of two conditions is met: The state is eligible when its alcohol 

related fatality rate is at or below 0.5 persons per one-hundred million vehicle 

miles traveled. 
100 

Alternatively, the state is eligible when it carries out at least 
five statutorily defined state "alcohol-impaired driving countermeasures."

101 

The statute then provides eight possible countermeasures that satisfy this 
alternative requirement: (I) a checkpoint or saturation patrol program; 102 (2) a 
prosecution and adjudication outreach program; 103 (3) increased testing ofBAC 
for drivers involved in fatal accidents; 104 (4) providing stronger sanctions for 
high risk drivers; 105 (5) programs for effective alcohol rehabilitation and DWI 
courts; 106 (6) an underage drinking program; 107 (7) administrative license 
revocation; 108 and (8) a self-sustaining impaired driving prevention program. 109 

Most states do not meet the first requirement and, therefore, must implement at 
least five of the eight listed programs to be eligible for federal grants. 110 

SAFETEA-LU, therefore, requires additional public resources for sustainability 
by increasing the presence of alcohol-impaired driving countermeasures, 
including sobriety checkpoints. 

99. Safe, Accountable, Flexible, Efficient Transportation Equity Act: A Legacy for Users 
(SAFETEA-LU), Pub. L. No. I 09-59, 119 Stat. 1144 (2005) (codified as amended in scattered 
sections of23 U.S.C.). 

100. See SAFETEA-LU § 2007(b)(3), 23 U.S.C. § 410(b)(l) (2006) (defining the alcohol 
related fatality rate to be the "rate of0.5 or less per 100,000,000 vehicle miles traveled as of the 
date of the grant, as determined by the Secretary using the most recent Fatality Analysis 
Reporting System of the National Highway Traffic Safety Administration"). 

10 I. See id. § 41 0(b}(2)(C) (requiring at least five state programs for the fiscal year of 
2009). 

102. Id. § 4 IO(c)(l }; see also Stuster, supra note 8, at D-3 (distinguishing roving patrols 
from saturation patrols). 

103. 23 U.S.C § 410(c}(2). 
104. Id. § 410(c)(3). 
105. Id.§ 410(c)(4). 
106. Id. § 410(c)(5). 
107. Id.§ 410(c)(6). 
108. Id. § 410(c)(7). See N.Y. VEH. & TRAF. LAW§ 1194.2 (McKinney 2008) for an 

example of an administrative license revocation statute. 
109. 23 U.S.C. § 410(c)(8) (2006). 
110. See Rajesh Subramanian, State Alcohol Related Fatality Rates, NAT'L HIGHWAY 

TRAFFIC SAFETY ADMIN., PUBL'N No. DOT HS 809 830, at 6 (2005), available at http://www­
nrd.nhtsa.dot.gov/cats/listpublications.aspx?ld=C&ShowBy=DocType (follow "State Alcohol­
Related Fatality Rates 2003" hyperlink) (demonstrating that seventeen states had an alcohol­
related fatality rate of 0.50 or less per one-hundred million vehicle miles traveled in 2003 ). 
Figures for the years 2004 to present arc currently unavailable . 
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2. Narrowing the Interest 

The political decision to promote the use of sobriety checkpoints as an 
effective enforcement program is a means to achieve the broader political goal 
of governmental decision-makers to fight drunk driving, maximize voter 

happiness, and maximize voter support. How, then, does the sobriety 

checkpoint maximize individual happiness? The answer depends on the 
sobriety checkpoinf s ability to remove drunk drivers from the roads and deter 
motorists from drinking and driving. To that end, one thing is certain: Even 
though sobriety checkpoints are clearly designed to apprehend individuals 
driving under the influence of intoxicating substances, 113 sobriety checkpoints 
are an inefficient means by which to remove drunk drivers from the road and do 

little to advance that governmental interest relative to other enforcement 

programs.
114 

The government concedes this point.
115 

Not only does the 
government concede that sobriety checkpoints do little to advance its interest in 
apprehending drunk drivers, the government concedes further that the diversion 
of government resources from other drunk driving enforcement programs­
such as directed patrols and saturation patrols-may cause the arrest yield to 
decrease. 116 If sobriety checkpoints are negligible or even counterproductive to 
societf s interest in removing drunk drivers from public roads, then the value of 
sobriety checkpoints must be a function of the program

,
s ability to prevent 

impaired drivers from operating a motor vehicle in the first place. 

113. See id. at 470 n.13 (Stevens, J., dissenting) (noting Michigan's court brief, which 
states that "the [sobriety checkpoint] program is . . .  clearly designed to apprehend any drunk 
drivers who pass through the checkpoint"). 

114. See id. at 455 (majority opinion) ("[A]pproximately 1.6 percent ofthe drivers passing 
through the checkpoint were arrested for alcohol impairment. In addition, an expert witness 
testified at the trial that experience in other States demonstrated that, on the whole, sobriety 
checkpoints resulted in drunken driving arrests of around I percent of all motorists stopped."). 
But see id. at 469 n.11 (Stevens, J., dissenting) ("The Court refers to an expert's testimony that 
the arrest rate is 'around 1 percent,' but a fair reading of the entire testimony of that witness, 
together with the other statistical evidence in the record, points to a significantly lower 
percentage."). 

115. See id. at 470 n.13 (Stevens, J., dissenting) (providing testimony from a Michigan 
police official who admitted that the "purpose in effectuating or attempting to effectuate" the 
checkpoint at issue was "not to obtain large numbers of arrest [sic] of drunk drivers"). 

116. See T.J. Zwicker et al., Connecticut's 2003 Impaired-Driving High-Visibility 
Enforcement Campaign, NAT'L HIGHWAY TRAFFIC SAFETY ADMIN., PUBL'N No. DOT HS 810 
689, at 30 (2007), available at http://www-nrd.nhtsa.dot.gov/Pubs/810689.PDF ("Refocusing 
law enforcement efforts away from activities such as directed patrols and saturation patrols, 
which traditionally yield many more DWI [Driving While Intoxicated] arrests than sobriety 
checkpoints, was expected to lead to a similar number of DWI arrests or even fewer DWI 
arrests." (emphasis added)). 
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Battling DUI 
A Comparative Analysis of Checkpoints 
and Saturation Patrols 
By JEFFREY W. GREENE 

; __ :)ir:ice September 1 1, 20011, dronk 
, .dfiv.ers have killed more people 

· than actually died on that day. 
ISl0t to take away from the tragedy 
of September 1 1, but dl'Unk driving 
deaths are happening ev.er,y day 
in America.' 

F or many years, the law en­
forcement community has 
attempted to detect impaired 

drivers through numerous innova­
tive efforts and measures. The prob­
lem of driving under the influence 
(DUI) is well known throughout so­
ciety, yet, even with all of the strat­
egies used to remove these drivers 
from U.S. highways, it continues to 
cause needless and tragic loss oflife 
each year. When will such madness 
end? When will society no longer 
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tolerate drunk driving? Until that 
time, the law enforcement commu­
nity must attempt to contain the car­
nage inflicted upon law-abiding 
citizens by impaired drivers.2 

Law enforcement has two basic 
methods of dealing with the DUI 
problem-sobriety checkpoints and 
saturation patrols. Sobriety check­
points have existed for several years 
and have served as a deterrent 
to drunk driving across many 
communities. Although not the 
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most aggressive method of  re­
moving impaired dr ivers from 
America ' s  roadways, these check­
points comprise one piece of public 
awareness and education relevant to 
the drinking and driving dilemma. 

Saturation patrols, on the other 
hand, constitute a vigorous tactic 
employed by law enforcement 
agencies to significantly impact an 
area known for a high concentra­
tion of alcohol-impaired drivers . 
Law enforcement agencies have 
used saturation patrols much longer 
than checkpoints, sometimes under 
a different name or no name at all. 
Which method offers the best use 
of law enforcement ' s  limited 
resources? The choice depends 
upon many issues, such as funding, 
resource allocations, and targeted 
areas. 

the likelihood of apprehension is 
more important in deterring offend­
ers than the severity of punish­
ment. 6 Therefore, enforcement is 
the key to creating the perception of 
a possibility of capture, while publi­
cizing these efforts can effect a real 
threat of detainment. 

increase of more than 800 deaths 
from 1 999. This represented the 
largest percentage increase on 
record.3 By some estimates, about 
two out of every five Americans 
will be involved in an alcohol-re­
lated crash at some time in their 
lives.4 These tragic statistics dra­
matically illustrate that DUI is a se-
rious problem. Sobriety Checkpoints 

Research has indicated, how- Sobtiety checkpoint programs 
ever, that most impaired drivers are defined as procedures in which 
never get arrested. Police stop some law enforcement officers restrict 
drivers, but often miss signs of im- traffic flow in a designated, specific 
pairment.5 Estimates revealed that location so they can check drivers 
as many as 2,000 alcohol-impaired for signs of alcohol impairment. If 
d1iving nips occur for every arrest, officers detect any type of incapaci­
and, even when special drinking- tation based upon their observa­
driving enforcement patrols  are tions, they can pe1fonn additional 
conducted, as many as 300 trips oc- testing, such as field sobriety or 
cur for each arrest. Because the po- breath analysis tests.7 To this end, 
lice cannot catch all offenders, the agencies using checkpoints must 
success of alcohol-impatrecfdriving have a written policy as a directive 

The Problem laws depends on deterring potential for their officers to follow. 
According to National High- offenders by creating the public Agencies normally choose lo-

way Traffic Safety Administration _e_erception that apprehension . and cations for checkpoints from areas 
statistics, 1 6,653 people died in punishment of offenders is prob=- that statistically reveal a large num­
alcohol-related crashes in 2000, an able. Research also has shown that ber of alcohol-related crashes or of­

Tlrle key aspect in 
both sobriety 

clrlec/qDolnts and 
satura·tion patr,e/s 
rests with ptJ.blic 

a.waFeness. 

· Staff. tleutenant Greene sewes with the 
Ohio State Highway, Patrol In Wllmlngton. 
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fenses. Officers stop vehicles based 
on traffic flow, staffing, and overall 
safety. They must stop vehicles in 
an arbitrary sequence, whether they 
stop all vehicles or a specified por­
tion of them. Checkpoints offer a 
visible enforcement method in­
tended to deter potential offenders, 
as well as to apprehend impaired 
drivers . Agencies should set up 
checkpoints frequently, over ex­
tended periods, and publicize them 
well. 

Sobriety checkpoints must dis­
play warning signs to approaching 
motorists. Also, they normally will 
provide opportunities for drivers to 
actually avoid the checkpoint, usu­
ally with an alternate route that a 



\ 

driver could divert to after passing 
the checkpo int warning s igns .  
Agencies typically post an officer 
in a marked cruiser at each end of 
the checkpoint. These officers can 
observe the driving behavior of 
those who choose to avoid the 
checkpoint. 

Used to deter drinking and driv­
ing, sobriety checkpoints are re­
lated more directly to educating the 
public and encouraging designated 
drivers, rather than actually appre­
hending impaired drivers . Typi­
cally, sobriety checkpoints do not 
yield a large volume of DUI arrests . 
Instead, they offer authorities an 
educational tool . Education and 
awareness serve as a significant part 
of deterrence. Frequent use of 
checkpoints and aggressive media 
coverage can create a convincing 
threat in people 's  minds that offic­
ers will apprehend impaired driv­
ers-a key to general detenence. In 
addition, public opinion polls have 
indicated that 70 to 80 percent of 
Americans surveyed favored the in­
creased use of sobriety checkpoints 
as an effective law enforcement tool 
to combat impaired driving.8 

Saturation Patrols 

Saturation patrols involve an 
increased enforcement effo11 target­
ing a specific geographic area to 
identify and arrest impaired drivers . 
This area always is much larger 
than the location chosen for a sobri­
ety checkpoint. However, site selec­
tion proves vital in both sobriety 
checkpoints and saturation patrol 
initiatives . Some states require 
documentation as to why a specific 
location was chosen. Selected sites 
should have a statistically high inci­
dence of DUI crashes or fatalities 

and take into account officer and 
motorist safety. 

�aturation atrols concentra�e 
their enforcement on im 
ing behaviors, such as left of center, 
rollowing too closely, reckless driv­
!ng, aggressive driving, and speed­
Tiir.MiITtipie agencies often com­
blne and concentrate their resources 
to conduct saturation patro l s . 
Therefore, planning represents a vi­
tal part of these efforts. All involved 
parties should participate in the 
planning phase, furnishing their 
specific views and concerns. 

© brandXpic1ures 

Saturation patrols may afford a 
more effective means of detecting 
repeat offenders, who are likely to 
avoid detection at sobriety check­
points . These patrols also may more 
effectively impact a specific 
geographic location with a history 
o f  a h igh number of alcohol­
related crashes . They must en­
hance people's  perceptions of being 
detected to be effective. Therefore, 
saturation patrols require the same 
intense media attention as sobriety 
checkpoints . In addition, prosecu­
tors and judges must support 
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saturation patrols .  These efforts 
also must remain ongoing, not 
merely a onetime operation, to pro­
duce successful results, the same as 
with sobriety checkpoint programs. 

A Comparative Study 

Stati stic s  compi led by two 
agencies, similar in size and area of 
responsibility, offer an overview of 
the scope of the DUI problem.9 In 
2000, the Missouri S tate Highway 
Patrol conducted 58 sobriety check­
points and anested 323 drivers for 
DUI. The Ohio State Highway Pa­
trol carried out 1 2  sobriety check­
points and arrested 77 drivers for 
DUI. In 200 1 ,  Missouri effected 67 
sobriety checkpoints and arrested 

· 3 1 8  drivers for DUI. Ohio imple­
mented 1 9  sobriety checkpoints and 
arrested 1 26 drivers for DUI. Since 
1 989, the Ohio State Highway Pa­
trol has participated in 1 56 sobriety 
checkpoints and atTested 807 driv­
ers for DUI. 

In the past 2 years, the Missouri 
State Highway Patrol conducted 
822 saturation patrol operations, ar­
resting 1 ,666 drivers for DUL The 
· Ohio State Highway Patrol per­
forms saturation patrols on a regular 
basis across the state. The agency 
arrests an average of 25,000 DUI 
drivers per year through all DUI­
related operations .  

In another example, from 1 994 
to 1 995, Tennessee, in cooperation 
with the National Highway Traffic 
Safety Admini s trati on ,  imple­
mented a statewide campaign com­
pleting nearly 900 sobriety check­
points. Law enforcement agencies 
conducted these in all 95 counties in 
Tennessee in just over 1 year. The 
checkpoint program was highly 
publicized and conducted basically 
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every week. The evaluation of the 
program revealed it as highly favor­
able in reducing the number of alco­
hol-related fatal crashes . Although 
the program only netted 773 arrests 
for DUI, the deterrent factor created 
by the continuous use of the check­
points and the media attention re­
ceived resulted in the program's  
success. 1 0  

What do these statistics con­
vey? Basically, Missouri averaged 
about five DUI an-ests per check­
point, Ohio averaged less  than 
seven DUI arrests per checkpoint, 
and Tennessee' s  aggressive check­
point program averaged less than 
one DUI arrest per checkpoint. ' '  

What these figures do not show 
is the number of impaired drivers 
deten-ed by the operations, either 
through sobriety checkpoints or 
saturation patrols. Those statistics 
never will be clearly identified, but 
any lives saved by such efforts 
are worth the effort and resources 
allocated. 

What also is not accounted for 
in these statistics is the additional 
number of other enforcement ac­
tions taken, such as safety belt, 
commercial vehicle ,  and child 
safety seat arrests; speeding viola­
tions ; warnings for various traffic 
infractions or vehicle defects; and 
motorist assists. Detecting such ad­
ditional violations is more probable 
during saturation patrols,  as op­
posed to sobriety checkpoints . This 
alone could represent another mea­
sure of effectiveness of saturation 
patrols. 

Overall, measured in arrests per 
hour:-a dedicated saturation patrol 
fsthe most effective thod of aR;;;, 
prehending offenders . Such -con­
certed efto1ts also may serve as a 
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general deterrence if their activities 
are publicized and become widely 
known. 

Critics have pointed out that so­
briety checkpoints produce fewer 
arrests per hour than dedicated pa­
trols, but some studies show mTest 
rates can be increased greatly when 
police employ passive alcohol sen­
sors (i.e. , devices that can measure 
the alcohol content in the air, which 
officers can use while talking to a 
motorist passing through the check­
point) to help detect drinking driv­
ers . However, focusing on arrests is 

Saturation 
patrols . . .  constitute 
a vigorous tactic 
employed by law 

enforcement agencies 
to signiticantly impact 

an area k,town for 
a high concentration 
of alcohof-:-irnpaired 

drivers. 

a misleading way to consider the 
value of checkpoints. The purpose 
of frequent checkpoints is to in­
crease public awareness and deter 
potential offenders, resulting in the 
ideal situation where very few of­
fenders are left to apprehend. 

Sobriety checkpoint programs 
in Florida, No1th Carolina, New 
Jersey, Tennessee, and Virginia 
have led to a reduction in alcohol­
related crashes . In 1 995 ,  North 
Carolina conducted a statewide 
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enforcement and publicity cam­
paign aimed at impaired drivers . 
The campaign was deemed a suc­
cess, indicating "drivers with blood 
alcohol levels at or above 0.08 per­
cent declined from 1 98 per 1 0,000 
before the program to. 90 per 1 0,000 
after the intensive 3-week alcohol­
impaired publicity and enforcement 
campaign. " 1 2 

Other Factors 
ls public awareness and educa­

tion imp01tant? The key aspect in 
both sobriety checkpoints and satu­
ration patrols  rests with public 
awareness .  The perception of a 
higher risk of detection for driving 
under the influence of alcohol may 
deter more people from driving af­
ter drinking. The more the public 
understands the issues and severity 
of the consequences, the better they 
will accept drunk driving as a prob­
lem and will embrace a crusade to 
reduce occurrences. Indeed, agen­
cies must have public support to 
succeed. 

All law enforcement agencies 
must accept that the media plays a 
vital role in combating impaired 
drivers. They must use all outlets 
possible to spread the word about 
this needless tragedy that happens 
every day. All media entities are 
looking for stories . By working 
closely with them, agencies can get 
the message out about the dangers 
of drunk driving. The sooner agen­
cies realize the importance of the 
media, the sooner they will gain a 
valuable ally in their fight. Agen­
cies can gamer a great deal of sup­
port from the public when they 
speak out on this vital issue. 

Are stricter laws and sanctions 
working? Twenty-seven states and 



the District of Columbia have re­
duced their blood alcohol content 
(BAC) threshold to . 08  percent 
from . 1 0  percent in another effort to 
reduce the number of alcohol-re­
lated crashes. The federal govern­
ment also has adopted the standard 
of .08 percent BAC, encouraging 
states to change to .08 percent. In 
2003 , states that have not adopted 
the .08 percent standard will lose 
millions of federal dollars for road 
construction. Cun-ently, 22 states 
have the BAC threshold of . 1 0 per­
cent, Ohio included. Studies by the 
Centers for Disease Control and 
Prevention's National Center for 
Injury Prevention and Control in­
dicated, on average, that states 
adopting .08 percent have reduced 
crash deaths involving alcohol by 7 
percent. 13  

Administrative license suspen­
sion laws continue to become more 
aggressive, attempting to create a 
stronger deterrent environment. Es­
timates have indicated that they re- · 
duce driver involvement in fatal 
crashes by about 9 percent. 14 Some 
laws providing for the suspension 
or revocation of licenses have indi­
cated a reduction in the subsequent 
crash involvement of those drivers 
who previously have been con­
victed of an alcohol-related offense. 
Although it is known that many sus­
pended drivers continue to drive, 
they tend to drive less and possibly 
more carefully, attempting to avoid 
detection. 

Recommendations 
While many conclusions can be 

drawn from an analysis of sobriety 
checkpoints and saturation patrols, 
both serve a significant purpose 
and, used together, can be effective 
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in reducing the number of impaired 
drivers. Law enforcement agencies 
may find that only one of these 
works for them, depending upon re­
sources. Others may determine a 
combination of both is needed to 
successfully combat the problem in 
their communities. Regardless of 
the selected method, it remains es­
sential to identify the specific keys 
to removing more impaired drivers 
from U.S. highways, including-

• exposing a sufficient number 
of motorists to the enforce­
ment efforts and the likelihood 
of being arrested; 

• improving officers' skills in 
detecting impaired drivers; 
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• implementing an aggressive, 
continuous, and committed 
media effort; 

• continuing efforts by legisla­
tures and co'(Jrts in a11 attempt 
to consistently punish violators 
and deter impaired driving; 
and 

• identifying problem areas, 
high-level crash locations, and 
large volumes of impaired 
drivers. 

PJ IO 

It is proven that saturation ef­
forts will bring more DUI arrests 
than sobriety checkpoints. If that 
represents an agency' s  goal and it 
has the resources, then it should use 
saturation patrols. If an agency's 
goal weighs heavier on the educa­
tional side, it should use sobriety 
checkpoints. If an agency shoul9_ 
choose to use checkpoints ovei,:_ 
saturation patrols, the evidence iL 
clear that infrequent use is not ef­
fective. So, an agenc.)! must I..Q1l:., 
sider the cost incurred with the fre­

_guent use of sobriety checkpomts. 
Resources (time and money) may 
greatly affect an agency's  decision 
regarding which method to employ. 

If an agency's goal is to reduce 
the number of impaired drivers over 

· time, it should use both sobriety 
· checkpoints and saturation patrols, 
, as well as any other available meth­
ods. The bottom line is to do some­
thing--do everything-to remove 

. impaired drivers from America 's 
highways. 

· Conclusion 
Law enforcement agencies 

should not accept mediocrity in the 
area of driving under the influence 
enforcement. It is not a societal 
problem. It is everyone's pr9blem, 
and no one should take it lightly. 
More people die or are injured 
on this nation's highways due to 
impaired driving than from all other 
causes combined. It is unaccept­
able, and all Americans pay a price, 
whether personal, financial , or 
professional. 

Law enforcement agencies  
must take up the challenge and em­
ploy every available weapon to 
combat this deadly threat. This is a 
"mission possible." Through better 
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education, increased awareness , 
and some strict penalties, the battle 
can be won. Working in collabora­
tion with one another, the public, 
the law enforcement community, 
and the judicial system can help 
prevent the needless loss of life that 
results from drunk driving. "When 
people are knocked away one at a 
time, it doesn't  make the headlines 
like it should, but we've got to make 
Americans realize the fact that it's 
still the number one killer, and it' s  
1 00 percent preventable. This i s  one 
thing that we can all work together 
to do something about." 1 5 -+ 
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statistics, see Ohio State Highway Patrol, Office 
of Field Operations, Sobriety Checkpoint 
Statistics, January 23, 2002. 

1° Fell,  Jones, and Lacey, National 
Commission Against Drunk Driving, The 
Effectiveness of the "Clreckpoillt Tennessee" 
Program ( 1 996); retrieved on January 20, 2002, 
from http://www.11cadd.com/tsralabs1racrs/043/ 
html. 
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Lessons Lea.:rn,ed From E:val-11.;aJing Maryland's 
Antl-tJrrunk. ,D:itivln:g._. f;;,a1:njp:(flign: ,Assessing 
the Eviden:ce for ·CogpJtive, B,eJi.av Joral, and 
Publlc Heti.Jth Jtt111Ja:c-t -

Kenneth H. Beck, PhD 

The evidence concerning Maryland's anti-drunk dri- traffic fatality every 3 1  minutes (NHTSA, 2006d). Addi­
ving program, Checkpoint -Stfikeforce, ·is •re"triewed'. �To - . tibmilly;: ail · 'estimated -240;000 people are injured in 
date, there is no evidence to · indicate that this cam- , ! _ale::ohol;i:el,ated crashes (a:bout one every 2 minutes), and 
paign, whicl1 involves a number of sobriety 11l ieckpoin'ts · more than 1 million people are arrested each year for dri­
and media activities to promofe thf!se : effo1·ts, has.:l1ad · ;v�g undei:- -�� influence (DUI) of alcohol or drugs 
any impact on public pe,rceptions, - driver. b_ef:iavior.s; or ., . (NHTSA, 20·05d). · . . 
alcohol-related motor· vehicle crashes- :-'<ihd· �nju'i;ies. ' The - iiatibn- .has -made; considerable progress during 
This conclusion is . drawn· after -examining :s,fi;it,jst.Jc.sfor. . . ,t;lie; past several ·decades at reduci�g the - number of 
alcohol-related crashes, police citations. for.-impaired- peopi� who are fatally injured in alcohol-related 
driving, and public perceptions of aicoh61-frilpaired · crashes (Williams, 2006). However; after experiencing 
driving risk. Comparisons are also J!l_ad� ,:wi¢ ot�e;: _ a _ m�r�,_than ,20,.year dqwnward trend, alcohol traffic 
states in the mid-Atlantic region, where.·: s'iirj_ilar· cam·· : 'f1talit1es;·imut'ed:'fo increase in 2000. The reasons for 
paign activities have occurrec;i. Reasonsfor tliis failure this. increase .are not �tirely clear. Nevertheless, this 
in Mazyland include insufficient Jevels/otfJtJjor{e11:1�pt , . ptb'mp!ed renewed: efforts to mobilize: anti-.drunk dri­
( e.g., too few sobiiety. cl1epkp0in_ts -aIJc!,vefi:icfe ·conti:iq_ts _ . jri�&.J�ffp�s ii;l_ an-.. �tt_e�pt to reverse this problem. It 
occurred to raise public perceptions p[riskp·er:tp.iniitg - .- .. appe�s:that sotn_e progress has been made; as consis­
to impaired driving} . and in�i:Ieq�atJ publicity 'siir- ' -tent de,dreases in alcoh61-related traffic fatalities started 
rounding tllis campaign. Suggestions for overcoming to appear in - 2003. 
these problems are offered. 

· · · 
Urifor-tunately; - Maryland has not enjoyed the same 

Keywords: impaired driving; sobziety cl1eckpoints; 
public awareness 

D
rinking and driving is one of the most frequent 
causes of premature morbidity and mortality in 
this country. According to the most recent infor­

mation put out by the National Highway TI:affic Safety 
Administration (NHTSA). there were 16,885 alcohol­
related traffic fatalities in 2005 . This represents 39% of all 
traffic fatalities and equates to about one alcohol-related 
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improvement �n, ree::e,nt years. The number_ of .  alcohol­
related traffic fatalities has remained relatively con­

. stant:4uri�g the._past 6 years (199J3-2004). This is even 
·fuore ai?.parent . when o'ne 'examines the percentage of 
traffic: , fatallties tliat are alcohol-related in Maryland 
compared to the nation since the mid-1990s (Figure 1}. 
The relative advantage that Maryland once ·enjoyed 
compared to the nation as a whole disappeared in 2000 
a:nd, to date, shows no signs of recovery. 

The Checkpoint Strikeforce campaign was devel­
oped in response to the recent rise in alcohol-related 
traffic fatalities. This campaign was initiated in the 

Author'.s Note: This investigation was supported by the Mcuyland 
Highway Safety Office of the State Higl1wr:ry Administration, Mcuyland 
Department of 1hmsportntion. Their r.ooperotian i.� nr.knowledged. 
Please. address correspondence to Kenneth H. Beck, PhD, Depcu:tment 
of Public and Co11mmnity Health, University of Mazy/and. College 
Pork, lvllJ 20742-261 1 i e-mail: kbeck1@umd.edu. 
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p, 1 3  
accomp!ffiied by paid as well as earned media that pro­
-mpted the campaign and generally informed the public 
9f its E!�$tence, The nature and amount ofthese media 
activitfos · vat-ied. fr.om state to state. 
.· . Hl! __ M�l'and, the 6-month campaign began in July 
2002:·:rI,1ifp·eriod ran from July through the first week in 
J�u�;:��i'.BE-.�9.�J?,aSs!3dJnd�pendence Day, Labor Day, 
�alkrw.1ie:n;, Th;fu!ksgi,ving, Chris'tmas, and ' New Year's 

FIGURE 1 �lcohol_ Fatalities as a Percentag� of Total Fatiilitie( :, :'. _ 
D.ai/1• ·s�ary_:9flhe · per,�eii.f �nforceme�t and paid 

SOURCE: National Highway Th!ffi.c Safety Administration (2006a), . lll:e_oia�(!:µ_�ties is -p:res.entep.. m 'table 1.  Durmg each of 
· ·  · the.fi:rst,. � years;.:the Checkpoint Stri:keforce qperated as a 

6-m.�nth·· ¢?ffip�gn from- ,Iul:y.· tlrro�gh Januaiy. In 200s 
mid-Atlantic region of the country and ,_i,ncluded tli.e · qh�c�poiri� Str�eforce became a yearlong campaign, 
states of Pennsylvania , Delaware, West Virginia, Virsi:ni13.,; ��:�¢1:�a:sed e1:1o��emen�.ae::t,i�ti�s fa� 12  months. 
Maryla:1d, and the District of Columbia.:l��,campaigi{ . .- -'ry�e

_;
e:v.ide_�p.e ,�dicatesJh�t people who w�re exposed 

began m 2002 under the auspices of NHTSA-, who.,- · ��--�s; .��pBJ.gn . (i.e. , p_ers11ma1Jy_w.!:3:r;it tprough a check­

worked with state agenciesto facilitate-various e:rifmrce,:' . .  J?010t: ordc���- .sC>mei:lp.� who had) had . gr,!3p,ter feelings 
m?nt and public aware.11ess activities that �onipHs�f -�f ':vuTu:�r���·i)¥;.to ·b.e�fsto.pped :by .tqei police -if they 
this effort. · · . . ·.. . · . . •_; W!:)rg_,�.itj:king�·�d ¢m1w.ng th!fil -t;hose people,:-who were 

�ne of the k�y components of th� · Checkpoiri_t . ' }�����f ����j�f :$e
:'.:�l'ai� .b.�t had·not·been person­

Strikefor_ce campaign w:as'. �e r.str �f, �?ad�J_'e,� · soJ:iri�ty- -., · aJ!X,_.·��p�se�- -m., �y,i�,9-f' to. I! ·f��pk , &:, Mo�er, 2004). 
checkpoints (NHTSA, 1987, 1'990);-'Sob#ety cli��;l<:ppmts· · -��er,mor13, those;j_;i_�o.pl:e-.w41t felt).! wij.s c_� or very 
have been shown to be effecti�e !).t r�duciriftlie:��b>er, . .  Ji:kely f?at:_��r_w.-0irli:l o�,st0�P,eq: Jit ,tlle poUce if they 
�f alcohol-related crashes as well' as. s�ngte:ve{!,iele:night- , :�0�� .aft�r ii'mi_lili;1g ;.toCJ : muc!i · rEipbrted that they were 

time crashes (Lacey, Jones, & Smith, 1Q�9;, L�iy • . )�,scli-, & le�t lik�ly to::d�_1ye aft�r -qrinking (Beck .& Moser, 2006). 
Shea , 1�90; Levy, Shea, & Ascli, !989)'. At a .sBb?iety �ejP��,s?.' �f,tliJ� �cl_ej� to_ ex.an;ine;the effect of the 

ch_eckpomt, law e_nforc�IQ,e�t::C:i+fi9.e�11,;s¥Jt�m�tjc�l}y-stp'j� . ��paigp- d�g ��}i�fti3 y�ig-�. Tlie ·�ff�?,t of �s cam­
dr;vers to - assess : poss1blf .. .  rmpai_r-rq��r !!.)Usp'i�:i,qn is , '?,8.1��, . -was, . •e,XElffi'lill:lQ' ,·f'to� �j�V._e�.�-· peri;p�ctives t!1-at 
raised, then roadside sobriety,'llli:d chei:p.ic�Ktf:ls,ts�ate(pe:i:.:. . �olµ��-d-�l�ohol�r!:!18:te�·�ajfic:fatahties. and crashes, c1ta-
formed to deterrnin,e .'.if_ t}Je _ dr�\T��)�:J�g�li� J�l��i�ed· �ops /0r ·,a,Ic0��l-re_l�.te.� :.traffic effenses, _ _ p,�b!ic �e�cep-
(Elder et al . ,  2002). ,The chep�pomrs ,prirn?J3i.' go:al ·it:to -�0?l?,O¥��g8.lgll, BJ:GPO.Stµ'e and-:person.al·:v:illnerab1hty to 
de�er dr�g_ and driving· by ·m.cre'El�iiJg a. �yeris per- _b0}ng,st0::P·f:��.!<!>J\�i:n�g-�d-��vi�$· anq._p�ople 's self-
ce1ved risk of aITest : . . · · · ·· :: · ; :· · '. :  ; . 

rep,ort�d· ·�g:Bf-d �v1.1,1g behav10r. 
In addition to aS&t'essive e11:f0:rcefu:eri:t:; . ;higl1..w�y 

· · :· ·- · · · · 
safety experts a�g1;1e th?,t i�crea;sed -:rp.edia coverage: is : · .:Qq.p_ · 
a:so _necessary tb.''protjJ:i:9;�-"�·is_J.��r�:Sifrt�- ,�"erq�i,v.e:q: . · . . . . 
hkehhood of arrest (Elder et al. , · 2002> Eltlei eh(t ;flcoh,p1' '¢tash�.s; .Jr,-juries,,and Oitati.ons 
2004; Fell, Ferguson, Williams , &  Fields ' :rn'o3 :-,:Mercer' . · , :· ·_Fkta�,�: d:���_::w��- o�t�ed, from' NJTTSA's Fatality 
198 5) ,  Thus, the Checkpoint S trikeforce 'dapi p'itlgn: �a; . · ,Analys1s; Re,porti,ng $Y,stem (FARS). Alcohdl�related traffic 

Activity 

No. of checkpoiI).ts 
Vehicle contacts 
DUI arrests 
Paid media" 

-�, ' ' . . ' - . . 

: . , / '. . �; ·. " '.-, TABLE:� : . . .. 
· Highlig�tsSof·.M��!3:1td�s' �eci�).)pint_ �j!iiilcefQ�<;�;Ca�pajgn. 

. • . . ·1.:· .��. ·--�- -� . .... · ·: . ' . . . ·. • ,  
. 

. . Yea.r:i.i ·. · · · . 
· . Jul ?PP2�Jqp:-�/o�� .. · .  �; 

•r  · -i . · :  . 

66 ' ' · 
2i ;3\47: ' , · ' : · ' · :  , ; i'33 

$1 oo;OoO· _. 
' . . � " 

r-.. •('t� .... /' . .. :- ' . : ., ... 
. , . . Yeat 2 · · .  
. ' , :/uJ: 2003.:.Jart-20{14 � •. . . . ., .. : " . ; .... '·• ' -� . -; . .,: . . 

· . .  ' ;. a.. . " .'66· 
· . si,913 

376 
$!0§ ;000 

Year 3 
Jiu. 2004 Jan 2005 

74 
39,023 

220 
$150,000 

SOURCE: National Highway Tra.ffic Safety A.dm41�strati�h J200pb). · 
a. Data are from the Maryland Highway Safety Office. 
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TA'.:BLE 2 
Maryl,a1id Alt!)liol Traffic Statistics · - . . · . -. . . ..  , . .  

· Before Campaign During Campaign 

1999 200.0 2001 2002 2003 2004 

Alcohol-related total crashes 8;540 ' ' 8' ,850 9,045 9 ,056 9 ,089 8,859 
3-year averages 8 ,811 9,001 

Alcohol-related injury crashes 3,679 3 ,675 3 ,762 3 ;765 3 ,500 3 ,329 
3-year averages 3 ,705 3 ,531 

Alcohol�related fatalit y 
crashes 192 179 197 182 163 207 

3-year averages · ,  .. .,,. 189 184 
Total alcohol-related fatalities• · 215 • 240 282 276 281 286 

3-year averages 245 281 
Alcohol-related injured drivers .2;386 2;331 . 2 1418 2,436 2,210 2,216 

3-year averages 2,378 2,287 
Alcohol-related injured · pedestrians 260 243 267  254 322 265 

3-year averages 256 . 280 
Alcohol-related. citations 27 214 

- . ,J � '  
. 26,50'2 25,028 25 ,709 25,765 26,349 

3-year average� (before and dtirinij) . , : 26 248 
. ; .,.,', ... '· . 25 ,941 

SOURCE: Maryland State Highway A9rilinistration/bfficl:0J:tfcitnc and��af�ty, '!hlffi� ,Safety Analysis Division. 
a. Data are from the National HighwafTraffic Safety Admiiiistriition (2006a), . . . . 

checkpoints. In the . fast year, ' these 'items \<Vere··pifot 
tested in a telephone . survey, and' 110 faterp:retatfortitl : o'r 
response problems were detected. 

. . . 
. . . . 

: · RESULTS 
Public Health Impact 

There was no evidence that alcohol-related .fatalities 
or crashes improved during the first 3 years C1fthis .. c;am­
paign (see Table 2). If anything, the total nuin:b�is 'c:if 
alcohol-related fatalities, .crashes; and injured c:4-hr.ers and 
pedestrians in Mary land were greate� .during. th� iy�ar 
campaign than qefore. Flll'thehnore; there : was . ho · evi­
dence of an overall increase in statewide·'e11forcement-, as 
indicated by alcohol-related citqti<:ins. ,On _a�¢rage, thE!i:e 
were fewer statewide citations dlll'mg the cam:paign:than 
before. 

The proportion of fatalities that were alcoht:il�related ·. 
was compared over this time ·period for . all the oilier ·· 
states (excluding the District of Colui;nbia ciµe to its low 
number of. fatalities) in the mid-Atlantic. regio.'n dt1,ri:og 
the campaign. The results (Figure 2) :-indicate that com­
pared the other surrounding states, alqohol fatalities 
were worse in Maryland. Further evidence indicated 
two marginally statistically significant (p, < .06) differ­
ences: Delaware experienced a lower proportion of alco­
hol fatalities during the campaign (40o/o) compared to 3 

• 

2000 

-Maryland 
- · ·tt , · ,Delaware 

2001 2002 

Year 
2003 2004 

-Virginia · : -o-Wesl V119i1la 
-.:*- - f'en11syf"."nla. 

ig.�UllE.2 Alco_h�[ ]fatal.ities as a �ercentage ofTotalFatalities 
SO,UR9E: N.ationalHighway Traffic Safety Administration (2006a). 

y�ars b�fore (47%), whereas Maryland experienced a 
great�r proportibn during'{43%) than before (40%). West 
Virgfaja · e,cperience_d a steady . decline during this time 
.period,.and;had· the:lqw�st alcohol fatality rate in 2004. 
· · , · ' These analyses, were· also performed for other states 
that were· not- located in the mid-Atlantic region and 
�cl nofallo�·c'.lieckpoints to be conducted under their 
state law (NHTSA, 2006c). Minnesota, Oregon, and 
Washington were selected because they had· a relatively 
comparable· number of total fatalities per year to 
Maryland: .No significant differences were detected. 
Thus, Maryland's results resembled those states that do 
not conduct any sobriety checkpoints. 
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TABLE 3 
Sample Characteristics 

Year 1 . Year 2 .. 
(n = 1,725) (n = 1;65()) 

% % 

Gender 
Male 36 :9  39 .0  
Female 63 . l  61 .0  

Ethnicity 
White 72.9 72;9 

Age group 
16-20 3 . 7  3 ;3 
21-29 11.1 11;2 
30-45 36 .3  · 32 .5  
46-64 35 . 5  36 i'4 
65+ 13 .4 16 .7 

Public Perception Impact 

j 

.Year. 3. , 
(n =''1 ,7-00) . .  

,% 
-:� ; .. . 

3'6 ;3 
63 : 7  

73 .5  

2,8 
�,\5 

0 : 3 1;'6 
40.:� ·,: , 
16:7 . .. 

: __ �. ·r. ,. . 

The demographic comp0sition -of the teJ�pJ:}.9i.+e;,sµr2 . 
,,---,,_ veys did not vary from year. to year (se.� _'Fah,i�-i�}·:.E!!C,�) · · 

\. year, the samples were more likely·to. <::on:��,fef4.ii:1!3_s,tb;1ID 
males. However, Jhis was. a constant .q�as. · .aao�$,:;;iY,!38J1§.; _ _ 
therefore, it did affect the rear-tq�year, p��p�i$Oll,S;!-. ,., . . .'' : 

The public was more likely ,to ·'reppr,r:t?e.ing �.o�.eck 
to a checkpoint in Years 2 and 3 · fsee<fabfe, �).":'Xl.iis( 

. .: ··; . 

corre,spop .. d�i:l. with ,tlie increased pumber of vehicle con­
t���, a�d:.:Ql!l arre;�ts.tp.�t were ,made. i? the second and 
third. ,ye�s of the campaign. However, despite this 
incr�asec,l contact with sobriety checkpoints, feelings of 
VU:hierabHity to ·hei11g stopped 'qy the police for drinking 
and cl:d�g . actua

l
ly decreased: Also,' pebple were less 

lµ<�ly, t0.1ie.pgtt J';b;�t,qili,�r .. driver:s; were drinking and dri-
ving· �ess ·0ft'i3rr: . , . . . . . 

· · ·, .,· - · , • nt,.'. . .. ,. 1 . t - .  . • . , .. . 

. :�,ee�$}' ;�� }'.¢��r�bi:1,t_ty wer!;) ��amiiled· separately 
for- males and;foriiales/an:d-sfo1ilar trends were detected. 
.�br . e�i::ii::g�_�1�er, . ·Y'½�;�f aWJity . <ieere:�uie�, !iignificEin tly 
in· ,thet,se�b¥,4)1n.d· . .  tbli,� J��ars.· Vulnetjlbility was also 
e.x�gie�:to:t -ilf29.�year-old' .cJ.rivers, those considered 
.mostJke1ifo '0!:J ''.t�gete'd )y_ {liis' CaJ!l.p.aign. Vulnerabil-

• • • • • • ( • � .-.,,; •• .., • -� ':-.. • � • 4 • . ( . 

ity,_ de.crea5,9fl, .. in: ·t�e 1�ec0n.d and -tl,if:,;d. yeats. However, 
\�is;\yas,.c:�nf}9.�i ·to 'feina}es .  ,Fem���s·wer.e significantly 
·_·(��11-,o�};'l.��f l;ik�1:�-!� -�,tJ:ier�?WR- be stqpped by the 
t>p_he� ur the .se,C::.01}��(�3-;_�·o/o,) . 0r·�d c��·.,2°(0) year of the 
·ca'fnBB.!SJ\.CQUf-p'�e,tl, tQJhf:fj,;�rf-S6.8%). Tliere was no 

. ,#'£eren'1;:e:4!\pe�cei��d(:v.u�er�!ility to bein& siopped by 
the '�0¥ce 'acii0·ss·, the_ prs, f .3 years ,of. this c�paign for 

· .male cihiiv:eirs\2'1'-'29, yeaDs-.0fage. 
· f��y . . vtil#�;a'.l;lility · wai· examined in those parts 

of tl;!e stat�- -.that.=wer.e rno;re likely to be reached by the 
wediattlti:vers $.-sm faGise counties •qomprising the major 
m�¢i�-m;atl<iets tre·i .. ,th&�.�ap.0un.d Ba,ltim�r�; Washington, 
DC; 0r t,q.e·Eastei:q,: S;h0.iie')•,were ·cp_�p�ei:J;,to =�Vers from 
the 6�e:t-¢.ounti¢s.-lT.b.ei;:_e,was,n9, sig:i/1$cant d.i,lfer.�nce in 
· p�11ceiv,ed v:µ,fu�rabH;f:ty • . '.Dh�'se - are� ·ef tfie . state that 
·s�9ul'd J;ia;ye '.b!3er,l;i�c:ir.edikely. to receive V8.l'i!)US public 

··. ;· r�LE.4 ,� ��; .: . . · 
' ·Exposui�; Per¢�ptj:ops,- arid',�eh�viots 

·.· ' · ... - · . · . .  · . . . . .. . . . : . , ·  . .  , �· . .-:-;, ... _ 
¥ear,t . ... : 

rn =.Ki2sj · ·  
. %i: : · 

Exposure 
Exposed to a checkpoint 
Aware of checkpoints . 
Unaware· and unexposed 

Perceptions 
Likely you would be stopped by police : 
Drinking drivers mdte dikeiy, 'to:_be . �topped 
Saw police on the roads ,more often · ·. . . 

Behaviors · 

9.4� 
20;6 ' 
15fa-.-

: -. \-

�Q'.'3' 
3,7;5� 
2.f9i 

Driven within 2 hours ofdrinking. 9,:6 
Driven after drinking too, much ·Lt . 

. . . � .. 

. . 't • . .. .. : . �. -�"l 

Currently drinking and··dri$g les� often 4.�· 
Others are drinking and driving less .o�en.; - · . . . . . 2_2,;6°; . . .. . . -� . . . .  · . .... ... . . ..  : .. . ..... . -.. · . ,. · .. , · . · . ,  .. . 

'NOTE: Percentages with different superscripts differ �i.$�fi.caµ.t1y ·(p < :OJ) · from,eac;h other, 
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Year 2  
(4 �.i ,650} 

% 

i4:6b 

'20�5 
<54,9. 

. '24'.0b 
. . ',32/0h 

30.84
· 

12 .1  
L� 
3 .4 

12. l" 

1'ear 3 
(n = 1,700) 

% 

13 .2" 
22.4 
64.3 

23.2b 

28.3"  
26.4b 

9 .5  
.5  

3 . 5  
14,5b 

/J, J S  
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service annonncements that'promoted this campaign were 
no more likely' to experience; an increase in \Tlilnerability· 
to being stopped'by the policefoii drinking and�drivinif 

'· , lower priority (especially in relation to post-9/11 security \._/ 

> ,.. DISCUSSION 

concerns) , costly, . and manpower intensive, it seems 
tmlikely that there, ,will , be an . inc�ase. It appears that 
although .there-was a jtunp in campaign-specific sobriety 
cp.eck{roint activities �h:the second year, there was no evi-
dence :·tliat:1 this iri:ciease p'ercolated .through the rest of 
Mai-yliid's e:rµorcement community. 

Even: niore telling is an examination of the sobriety 
checkpgint activity in. West Virginia, where alcohol­
impa#ed fatalities declined throughout,the first 3 years of 
t4e campaign. In 2004, West Virginia not only conducted 
more qheckpoints (9J)- ,but made more vehicle contacts 
(68;124r than Maryland (74 and 39,023, respectively; 
:NHTS�. 2ci06b).Yet West Vrrginia's population is approx-

. irii.ately 2'.9_times smaUer than Maryland's. West Vrrginia's 

The Checkpoint Strikeforce campaigri: ih·:Marylaiid11.as ­
not succeeded in raising. public perception�\:o(tiie, le�i!l' 
risks of drinlcing ant(dri'ifmg._NQr h�;'.it r�dticed!'aJ:c9liOI'-
related traffic . crashes arid fatalitf�s: Turilierinote, one. i5f' 
the crucial colhponertti · of th.is· ·�a:xn:p#grt;� afiA'ticte�ie �� 
statewide citatimis for alcohbl�ifn.Rru.recfalt{vjilg;,:rud=-:nci 

occur. The ._survey ·data . indicate�, µi�t .:P:uJJl,�c -p�td�titi'.Pns ' 
of vulnerability tc>'be_ing.'stbpped;by,"tlr-e ·pdih:e:;ifbne' wet� 
to drink ana' drive at:foaliy .dediiied sfgriifi.6antly d\:ll'ing . 
the course of the C8.Il,lpaigri, ,Ns9, ;drivetsc1fi':t,b.1:i�e)µ·�as'.of­
the state where. media expos�e:woiiJd,be'.exp_ec�ep:'to:be 
greater (i.e. , in the Bitl#moi:e 'iinq Was}tirigfo�. D'G(m.�W)-
politan areas) were not rtrore· likely fo ,fe]:jl V1llnerabl� · 
than those in other· regions. Thus; the o��i::criipfcUre1e..: · 
ment of this campaign_:_increased. public iware'ne$�id . 
not occur. · ·· ·' · · · 

· ·sticcess(appears· to :be because . of the higher level of 
,enforcement. For ihstru;ice, in Year 3 of the campaign, it 
conducted .approximately 5 cl1eckpoints and 3,700 vehi­
cle _coi:itacts'for,every 100,000 residents: During this time, 
lyfaryland'conducted only approximately 1 .4 checkpoints 
and 736· vehicle contacts for every 100,000 residents. This 
suggests that unless Maryland's sobriety enforcement 
acti�t.y r,eaches a- per capita threshold comparable to 
West.V.-irginia!s, it :is . unlikely to experi!:)nce significant Increasing.Enforcement. deereasefa-fu aicoliol-related traffic fatalities. 

Any campaign that promotes thf :p.onok thaf'.IB:e· · Moti��tiifg . .  -the• '}J,olice to . make more arrests for 
police are likely fo catcfr you if.y6'u: �ave Been;drin:�g•. ii:ri:E5aireicl?"drivin:g.:m:a:y be ,a �ubstantial challenge. Tw-o · .. ..____,, 
and driving has · to 'be-backed-:up.·with ·i:-��lily/Uri·forfili:' · sp�_cifi�f.s�ggesti'ons· :are ·offered to make this happen. 
nately, more- drunk driving: arrests :a1:d nof,_ot:1:ur:. Io::fcs_r� : Th�·�jjits� :is:· ·m�tea$'.e.d' ttaip.ing : in DUI .detection,-appre-
tain jurisdictions. the police m:ay ,feelthat1:les·s·.·pr1'&r�ty . h�rision,.·andiconvictiori.'. Officers need to be motivated 
should be given to alcohol-relatecl. traf:ffc citations, than to make·mor.e,aj.ccihoHmpaired traffic stops and higher 
to other more serious (at least to tli;em:r vi'olatip:irsi.. , -�µality1afoo·h01:-:related arrests (i.e . ,  those thatdo notget 
Furthermore, police officers may feel ·disitrdined: to _: i -tlµow:n out or plea bargained to a lesser offense in 
make an arrest given the amount of time· it take$• to . · · CO\lrt)i:.'.fy��g·· :that exposes the officers to a broader 
process an offender (that takes: the· police,:officer outof ' · but rriore .inteiisive background- on the historical, soci-
active service); the matter of :6btaining the necess'acy etal, psychological, and legal aspects of drinking and 
evidence of impairment; frustration that tlie ·eventual · driving may. enhance their skills and motivation to 
penalty may be reduced throU:gli,;pJ�a b�fg!liAi_ng or �oW,�r P.3-ake a).coho��related driving arrests. Such a program 
legal maneuvering to a lesser offense; and · the time, has been initiate-d at the University of Maryland in 
embarrassment, and humiliation they may . encouIJ,ter which poHce officers are exposed to an intensive, 
from aggressive defense attorneys who . cal.I: them as w.�t� week.long course on these topics. In addition, state 
nesses dming the trial of the;. .drunk driving offe.ndel'... , �ttorneys also provide detailed_.instr.1.tction on permis-
Fell ,  Lacey, and Voas (2004) meJ1tion that lack of local sible forms of evidence and explain when it is appro-
police force resomces and funding, lack of supp!)rt ,by, priate to conduqt a- roadside, . .  stop and a st�dardized 
task forces and citizen activists� and the perceptiqn .that: field sobriety ,test of-alcoholimpairment. This in-class 
checkpoints are neither productive nor cost-effective, are: material is ' followed, by .a mock court experience in 
the main reasons why checkpoints are not used. which officers are subjected to courtroom procedures 

Undoubtedly, the initiative and leadership role :for where their testimony;is challenged by a defense attar-
making impaired driving arrests is set by the commanding ney. The officer's performance is critiqued and sugges� 
officers. If the police station's ·commanding officer views tions are given: concerning, how to withstand defense 
drunk driving as an important issue anci is committea·,_to - attorney cross- examination. The officers find this por-
conducting sobriety checkpoints and issuing citat:i,oµs, it tlim of'the course particularly valuable. 
seems that officers in his or her unit will be rriore likely to The second suggestion for increasing enforcement ; 
follow suit. Conversely, if such activities are viewed as is to enlist the support of key influential people and \___.,;' 
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opinion leaders with.in the enforcement community. This activities , the results would be immediately detectable. 
would involve commanders within each of the.Maryland Abrµpi-;cQal)g�s .in cra,sh �ates, fataliti,es, ()r even citations 
State Police barracks as well - as · in the- municipal. police ffii;iY take sever� ye.a:i:s t5> ,p�come st?tistically significant 
departments. There is little to no evidence that tliis,'lias � a,ddition, , it m�y_· be h,ard;to sustain.campaign momen-
occU1Ted, Conversations -with-members. of -the Marylaµd . twn, . �sJ;·eoial�y-)f-these ·,p�qlic h_eaith outcomes do not 
State Highway Administratio� incli9afe' that -:s��e. \V�lici� il:I:iRroi{e · suostaritlidly;., ..A!Woµgh behavioral . and percep-
chiefs are not really on board .with this progi:ain, They tio�;�� ,,m,.af piovid�-- -·�;:�?r�, ,innne�ate 419-ication of 
either do not believe in sobriety checkpbints' t5r· .thi.nl< th�y . pi:omising;trencls;: ,tho$,�-·�f4nini�tri\t91;P and p91_icy makers 
would require too much inanp_d.wer:to'c·0Iiduptancl:yt.qu)!.'Cir :�h9 �tim!).t�ly.:�o:qtrol ,tjle!pn!3I!_Cial ai!d h,\illian t�sources 
yield proportionately . fuV( ·alc0�oi-ref�t���;qita��4riilii.� f�.r ; ..s�¢h: �J.f()r,_!:s -�e·,mos,t ;}i��ly;tCJ -·be persuaded by hard 
tive to the time and money invested. Cqny:in.6fI!g. lh.$ - fa�JL�.;·-r,edJi!.��pns iJ} ,c_I].sh.es, : inj�ies� �9- fatalities). 
entire enforcement COrnµJ.l.llllty 1:4<\tthe prin).� ipU!'I)OSe Nev��less,,.:pubJi� J9p.ip,ipn,Aat:8, can _be used, to show 
of checkpoints is to igcrea{e,, pub.licc.-p�rceiptiqµ� (jJi itJfe"· .- whe;i:i_ cam'paiS_!! i.rµproy,ements need .to be m,ade, where 
drinking and driving risk, not riecessarif¥'.to�n;i.��'-ar)JUJ. . piopiising)fenif1s ;��t1: @!1 wJ::i.at pubtlc:sen�enUs con-
arrest, will be chlµlenging. ,However; th�f� hay�,be_e;n; d_oc� �er.riliig•s'eli>ri�ty:c�eqiqaQijits. ' .  . . . . 
umented cases, that-,_sobriety �hei::kppints:.�!!,U:h,tmope:·than_ . '. ;,CJ;ll'r0ntlw.� M�l�Wifd,oi;qg, t_pp )ittle in the area of 
drinking drivers. Nwnerbus;c:1rugs·, ·weetp01?,�;,seat:belt'vfo:. ii_npaiD�d '$1i�s.P.Pe�enti0µ. This_ -ta,ises Jhe qu,estion as 
lations, and otlier felOIW arrests,.hav.e,�ajSJ:l" ,�c'e\nfred_,at,. . . td �het}ii�r;thj_s .st�te :4'aJ1tn-er,:p91i*al _ w,iJl to combat this 
checkpoints {NHTSA;. 20q6bJ:·. ·Cp.e4pp�� .. h�v�·,0p·�:;y:Qffs.: frdhl��;:, A , re·ce11t i;epott, .i�suesl . by _Me>thers Against 
in other enforcemenf domains :besicles ·dcok&l�impaii!e'l:IF ,Ilh\i:uik iµ)ri:v:in.g'1f�])J gaw,e·Maryian_d. onJy .the grade of 
driving, and this ni�y-help'_convfoc�'soiiie;:9f.llies�\-p_Qli�e C·'f�r its an:ti-dmp�J,�, d,ii'Ving:,e�for.ts (M/cl:>:O, �oo�J. This 
commanders of theii'b�nefit '· ' ,: , : · · · : ·\: ·>.' . · ' , .c.omposite gvad,e was. _qase.d oil -a vc!].iecy-. of ·indicators, ' ·: ' · . .  , · itj�h1dii1_g .if$ law.s · pn . ,�k �imn,g .. Nno�g specific ' · ni$asurei�. 'Mar;y:land earned only �e gi;aiile of D for Increasing Public Aw,arene�s ·· ' : · · its;-ad:riiin1smati�e -me·a:sunes,and .crimfualsanctions for 

,� Increasing public aware:p.ess tiu:oµgh iµedla,1p_u4'ea�:i�. Cih.uµl<- ariver�,,):p.di���g, . ·a ;tatewide_ tendency to be 
also needed, �OP:S, with· 'inci:€)�ed �µfcirc:Smeri,t:-)-'.fliere . · rath,er,iEµl!ient.w�e�irµpais�gtcgnsequ.ences ,o:p. ch:4nk dri­
was no evidence . frq:m))1_e·;���Yi ·q,a�:th!!-t:.t}l�'1i!:�pajg!,1·. · V�tts. ifihus, ip:- ad<i!itio� ·.to "iµobitizw;g.·_inQre�ed -enforce­
changed public .pel'.cepp.ons,·01\p:eh�yi0fs:. :r.p..� :�msag!').· aag;·,- :·-nie;nt an..t· gJ.ieater_pu�JjcAwarElµ._ess,wid1cc;mcElrn·, · we must 
duration ofMaryl�q.'s.j:mtJHi;: rii!;}l;iia -c�pa,igij.w,r,,a� ·�ur-:i )lso l,obbiiJ0r- p0Htiqal-'aJ,id :J�gi$lati:y,e .. �hange so that 
ficient to produc� Jetec;tabl� a:rfc:l, sµs.��d):h:�I?:fs�iS- itf · · ,stt9ng�r· }aiWs - and sanci)1:0:Q:S ·,¥� ,.av.ail9bleAor ,dealing 
public perceptions , of1 vu;4!:erabiligr . . T�'3,\-$1(0(!);0,JQ· t<( with a'lc_9h01'hiafffii.Q 0ffoncil�rs; 'Fhi$vn;iflY,: be difficult- in the 
$150,000 MaryJand ·c0mni,ih�d:,�abh .y��;t0}p�9P:1ote-this, ,- . ·c�ent .s0�iiit ii:Imiat';"]n ·whi6li. :�e salienqe of alcohol­
campaign was inadequate fo achieve sufijcte#t.-'au<:iiehc.€):_ _lnip,afuec!.<cljivi�g \if n6"l1:1�ig�t - as prominent as it once 
reach and frequency ofie_xp:osur.e . . Glear,I¥; ��i�._0r,�1 .ifi0FJ:ey',, ��(especially. , afye_r ·s�gj�i,�caµt.succes_ses and improve­
will be needed for-paid m:_edia; :al<;ing:'W:ith.' hett.e.J!_ wa,ys ·Gif mep,t$;;haiVe·,li)e,ep:-µrade {W:tl!ianis, -200!3). 
obtaining earned·,:media<'The 1a:d\1antage ·o�'.��-�eq. riie�a:,, :· .}!'he me�s"bM:,wJ.!ii.ch:J1.lJ)1itieaLand·1e�slative change 
in which the event (i.e. , sob_ri�cy checkpdmt)-,f$,'c0:v:�red,as, · . 'e� d.oc-ur-:,atte· .<i:0Jrip'lfaated ;8;11d - url.'li,).(e_ly in the short 
a news story by the local neW$·1sta!i0#�·,i!f tljat','i_t: -d0'es. not ·. · - tern;i-: The �ationai_su,eces·s 'th�t-'MADD has had during 
require any cost Creative m.J:g ,eRf�J:l"ai_�l:qg.:i,�aJegJ!=)S -��t, . . �e P,asks�;v.�r!i1]f d#�aiiie$· . �t�:makmg· drunk ,driving a 
can be used to engage �e �l�c�9�i_c:,,��'.piin.t!f1ecli�·o/i.J:l' . · _pDoIIiment"iss;:w of: pub'Iic '?0ncerri. and ,-the resultant 
help generate earned rn:edia and can :be .. µs:e�>tq s4:ppJ.-e- ; · legislati;v;e chan;g�s tliat--'.havJre1+su,�d,s\rggestJhat it_pos­
ment the paid media. Engagipg _@.d. ,�e,h:'or,�g ��4,di�Jh : · si}>le- t0 cilo�,tkis-:a�__;th�·,;steyt_e. l�vel · ��t�� ci!j;z:�n activist 
resentatives of the m�c:iJa,- _ '��pul�?Aelp.)f�tiljitatg ,Qiese·: ·, .- ,filOU]lS. ,P�rhaps 1µ1· ·· ev.eii; ::vioi:e r.a,?,foal .'a:Pproach is 
efforts. In additiop., :·the ·.eilf9.J;'!:;0l.l10nt :.GOJ!lµJ.Uaj,.� it�e1f�· ._ , 'needed ,tcy¥3<- s}�l!P,�Y l,9.l;>Byin�-,�tate �egi�latprs pr pro­
needs to enhance 'its ability for media .o-g:treao�·�d, ,plan _ . v.i;"ding ·miri,t,�a_:tesl[m0nr ,on tp,� -ris� qf fuink?,ng and 
proactively how it will pro:m.0te,lt$;0,p,eratroµaj: .. iu;;tj.�ities·. -., . .  · miw,ag, it.� c�$ts to th_!:i ;·s.tat�. l!n4' 1the-,heI1-�fits of pass-. . . ' . . ·  . ;I '· ; . ing.ptop:os�� and. m-p);,e prqgr,essfv.e l�gislatipn. Instead, 
I . - CONCLUSIONS 

. · - .-: . pfo�cttv�. _.'app�ci�'ches ·,might be called for in which 

It takes time to see an effect. It is unlikely that even 
� if substantial changes occurred in sobriety campaign 
. \ 

spe.cifi_� legi,sl'�tors at!:!; t1;1.+ge.ted with aggressive and 
pti.blic _ cl;e.qiru;i.8.s te ·e�plain their record of voting 
a'gafust or otherwise diminishing proposed progressive 
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legislation that would strengthe11 sanctions against 
drunk drivers. Policy makers need to be llel!i account­
able as much as the enforcement community; 

. 

This investigation had sev.efal ·uriiqtie �ge_ngtfis··and 
limitations that need · to be;'ackrt6wl'ei:lged: The Y1se ,of 
multiple ilidicators i:Iichi.ding . alcohol�related craslfes ; 
injuries, and citations: ·supplinnentecl tlie: po:blic 9pfr1-
ion telephone survey data·: Af}_ a,re's\.ilt, , a:dea,rer·pictwe 
of the public health impact ' of this ai:i(ifdrun� dnvitjg 
effort was available;

. 
Too often; ptibii¢ ,campaigns· aie 

evaluated using c:mly attifudinah:ir seif.:.repoi:t beha�ior 
measures and are not able to iric;lude ,al vari�fad'.>£ -pu:blic 
health status measures. The· use cifa var.iefy ·of·ilroi:fal-. 
ity, morbidity, and enforc'errient ' data··'were\idecided 
strengths to this evaluati on. t,Jtif9rtupately, tlie'· bticl'get-· 
ing and planning ptocess -- did n6t. all:ow• for-'t�l'ept1oh'e 
surveys of public awareness fo ,be done in ' Marylarld 
before the campaign· starfed . . . This would'ha¥�·· al�-if\Jed· 
precampaignJevels of driver petceptibns ;and behaviots 
to be assessed and ,;vouid.have' enabled'pr�/post compar:S 
isons to be performed, of ·p1.1blic ·. pei:ceptl9nS: , 6f alcohoi� 
impaired driving Hsk;, - Program evaihiitors . need to"· b'e 
involved in the planning process of such puBlic 'health· 
and safety initiatives a11 :ea:tly as' possible);o0 tha:t pr0p'.e't 
attention can be given to program: evaluation, , 

In summary, the lesson · 1earned' from .Marylan'd,'s 
Checkpoint Strikeforce:�anipaifW01si�atthe}e�eis b(coll?-�­
mitment from the public, enforcement,-antl. politieal.C3�)lfi�' 
munities were weWl:ielbw the".tbreshotcfs that are -critirial 
for public health impact. I1i.su:f;fibi,erit fuvestm.:ents··ipf,paid 
as well as earned; m:edia, along;wi� :a, gemera1iz�if failmJ 
to increase the level of enforcemifnt · ofimpaired:' drh1.mg, 
were factors that contributed to' this' outcome.: 
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DUI cbeckpQmts costly,, catch few 

46,000 . drive ts stopped,. but only 75. a re con:vic:ted 

By Jack Gil lum 

ARIZONA DAILY STAR 

Pima County sobriety checkpoints have nette�- a tin¥ numb·�r ·of our 
arrests dl:!spltia stopping tens: of thou,s.ands-cif;dtive�_s(n��-200�, al') 
Arizona ' Dally StarJnvestlgati6h ;has fpwnd. · - . .  ,; . . 

S ince the. Sheriff's Department begah ·  staging, cbeckpg:ir:its;-A�cii'l;y'two 
yea rs ago - overriding, authoritJesi: pn�yi9!Js_1_¢0nQ�riiis.\!;m,at t1a�- sEqp_,s. _ . .  · 
yielded few arrests - . fewer tfjan. 1 -per:cen� ·of�tme 'more-t�a-�- 4.6 ;(;JOO 
drivers stopped · have be·en- arre$ted on· :saspldom,,of1D.Um·,·. · ·. 

And fewer than haif oftho�e ��st�d �a��j:,�en:.ici'�v.lct:��/ 

J-i 1, J '-/ .J.I 

- - f ( 

f. I 

By the numbers 

•. Qrlve_rs stopped at _checkpoints :  
. ;  : 4:6 ;ia1 

- < ·•, F-leld:,sobriety tests:. 1,168 

, . ; •: DUf-;related -arrests: 282 

. --� D(:1I: comric::tions: 7�* Even with the low -arrest rate,s; propor:,eq,t;s <a!�fen.�,th_e .th_e9�P,oi;i;1�, , 
saying they det.er dr;u_nkei:l, pttY.lrngd�:Y-<�Q�:f��ln_gFpio,pJe,ab�ut)ts ;_ , 
dangers. Every person depu:tles ·stop re�elv.es amtl�9i'(!nkl;!rt'"'d�i�ing'.- ,_:, �fo2 c;ase� still pending. 
pamphlets, whi�h. they ',say meansibr;le,'more;;per:SQl'il,�li(Q'.:_lil'.l�Y, .-av.eld'· 
driving underthe'. lnfl uence; . . . . : , . . .  . -::;:·; \�p_r:J_r;ce_:-.Ai:{�qna' Da_ily Star 

· ·>. . . . , -· :, · . .. a·n'alysis-of�Pima'.Coungr 
Sti l l ,  the number of DUI arrests has remained .�ons.tai:i�:.�:1'�ce- the, sto.ps . S,�_er1ff1'�:t>�p,a'rtsnent DUI 
were reinsti tuted l n:Sept�rrtber 200S- .aMr:a. tO:.'Yl;!?!"c,hlatct.�tln_;o_th�f' . ,;: �:,�-�ec�pci_i�ti�ji�e_�t ,d��a :�nd 
words, It doesn't appeaaewer drivers are. drjylng: wlill_e'. dr:unk. · · ·· , : •P.1m� ·�o�_n1y,;C����J1¢fated 

. . . .  . �ustice0:Cou_rt·_r,�·cqrd_�� from 
"It's a good sign that we',ve·-arr�sted:so ·fe.w1 J?-e_ople;:(� $h�rlff,;s ,1,;t_; Kar:h_ .  ,, :-:tS�J?tegiber- .�805-to. May; 2007. 
Woolridge; who swpe·rv1s·es 'tf.re,r,1.g�i'jcy,!s. �pe�l�l:bp>,elf�tlor$,J:l0'(:[Udlr.rg . .  -::', '• ; . . 
checkpoints, said when presented wlfh· the,St,;1r;'s flhdirJ!!JS • .' '�At lec1st Oid.:y;ou ·Knpw ..• 
we've removed nearly 300 impaired cjrlVers oft''th�· liOa'd ,  , ;  

But critics of the . checkpoints, indudlng def�ra.se a:ttorn¢ys: �n.d civil 
l ibertarians, ·questlori�theJr.:effeqlv.ef,).$.5$:,:i;l)'l��ieg:aJi£\';>']l�-���say,poJic�, 
have niore'si.fre-;f.lre:. 'fnet,hocli'ifor.�p_ot�lng\dr,i;J',-ikeri',qr;lyer,s} .. �-lilqfi{ �si'· s, 
con centrated patrols . . . .  , · 

- · :  . ',}, ·- .. . .  :·· · -;:' c · '· _ :,_ · 7; .-\-> ·: -

• -�tJe., Leglsiatur� :c,hanged . Arizona's 
. · 'bu:t .blb;oda._al'c6hol content from 

· ,  /o;�:fiQ 1,p,�r:i::ebtJ9 '.0,.os: .perc�nt in 
. ; • �¢Pt�mp� ,29,0;1 .• Th.e· pew,law was 
· :;ip·r,gmP.t�� ·1:1ar;t1y. by a 10:0.b federal 

· raw·-that,withho'lds sqrne .highway 
The Sheriff's Department has spent more than $140,000, : mostly- hi · · mon�Y;,;to, stiii:es,-that':fiave raot 
federal and si:ate, money ,., on 63_, �b:!f�e,c;f c�e.�kpo)

q
ts� th!)u,�h:_ Maf adq���d'the lower limit. 

DUI checkpoints force drivers to .?�op -and.'ta ik ·�1H{� -:e.�P.�ty., wpo,>Eis�s· :  i i>o1;1;r_;fol��t WiEEi(END 
them if �hey've- consumed alc:ohol or takeh drugs.· Deg_.ei:ldi_rilg,on·:the . : . .  , 

· 

drivers '.answ�r1 t!
i
Ei :depiii:v,Wifiri.�i;fe!ibtl'i��?,ri.��r ff�t�J,10edst:iat: �y.e$,; :;; \·Wf/�ers -�Ilkb�. o� sp�cial weekend 

a lcohol-tinged breath and other tel lta le s!gns:of· ir:n,Ra{A;li,ernt .. . . .'· , .. ,_ :: ,: t· :D.l\1,1.�ry-�erc.e,�mt .qetalls.- Labor Day 
. · . · ·· . . · . , . . . 

··· · w,eeR�nG!, .th� Prma Co1,.1rity. 
How effective those pr:ociedur�s ar�;. anc:1-',to )w�at\g(!fr.�e-,ci*_itt's,.\��i{' - · · . , > - ·  sl'li(ifl\';s,0�p.ar;try:ient- sal.d; which 
they constitute an unreasc:>nable search :an'd "s�lzl,:Jr:E!, ilS µp ·fqf..de�a'te. , - ': : _;wilL'.h1191'1:1de;sobnety, �fleckpoln

t
s . . . . . ,; ·'"',and�satwr.atRir:t�pqtrolsi ·The 

Checkpoints are "feel-good measures· that are�costl;y,/' ' s.al_d, Alessandra ' e_nfo'r:cernent is .part,of a nationa l  
Soler Meetze; i:?�eci.J�lvef'dfre¢�o{bf'.f lje ArtJ eriaah(G:fvi_V�b·e)tt!�S lJnion . ' . ic;Jl)�.l!fDUJI: c:lampa lgn tnat began In 
of Arizdna .  "It gives the lmpressltmthat they':re, re_<;l.1;JtiJiJ1: the:amdl!ll1t · m id,,.AQ!1JUs t. · ·  
of drunk drivln g, . .  but lt doesn"t seem td be ·tl:Je <;:�s:e/' · :·.: · ' : · - · · 

Questions of effectiveness 
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http://www.americanlawyeracademy. com/california-dui-checkpoints-effectiveness 

DUI Checkpoint� : Reconsidering Their Effectiveness 

California traffic safety officials �eclared 201 0  the "year·ofthe chec.kpoint,"· and 

dramatically focreas�d,_the number of DUI checkpoints held across the state. 
. . • .  ' · : . · 

However, California DUI theckpoints h�v·e· come urid_er'increased·scr:utiny lately, in 
I arge part due t9 .a �tud:y :by. California �!3:,tc�; ajld ,the·.investigati:ve Reporting 
Program atUC B�r�eiey :thatfound that oJfi'.i;er� impou:rided·six cars for every one 
Dill arrest made. The rnv�stigationc;h igJlL{g�tedJhat DUI checkpoint$ are highly 
profitable operations for cities ,and :towds and· g:uestfoned the clisproportiqnate impact 
of DUI impound policj� on unlicensed.minorities . 

. . �"-- ; .. · ;  
": · ·-.... � 

.• . · ·. ,  . _ . , : .. 
The Cal ifornia Watch study also recorttfnuefi tha

d
JU1 'checl<points _net relatively few 

DUI arrests when compared to th� numb�t pfv'ehfoie s. stoppep. This has iead many to 
question whether DUI· checkpoints· �htth�''.n;16st ef.fective· In;eans pf preventing drunk 
driving in California, prtmcularly: i·n.)_ig�fqf'tnJ �o�ting .legal_. concerns. 

Therefore, it may be ti'rt:ie ·to,:ex-amipe _.�h,ether state funding would be better invested 
in saturation p�trols;' during),vµich. pp(lce 'pa;trol high'-risk areas for drivers that appear 
to be impaired. 

· · 

In.support of'that argument, con�ider the following: . ' . . . 

In 2008, 6nly 5p00 of¢:e tot� 215,000 California DUI arrests took place a t sobriety 
checkpoints (2.3%). 

· · · · · 

"1-f Law enforcement officials concede that DUI .checkpoints are not the best way to .......___ 
· pre.vent drunk driving. As Riverside County (C-aH�}Sheriff Stan-l'ey Sniff told USA 

. todaf· '' 'We make.Jigbt-y.ears m,01:e arrests on random patroI·s than at checkpoints." 
�A comparative:study by the· ��{chmd tha.t:saturation patrols were the most effective 
. . . means of apptehepding dft,l�lkdriv,ers: . . 

,�A 2009 :Univ.ersi� 0{¥�f��·:sm9y,fotmd th�t �heckpoints do not h�ve ·�ari� impact 
on public perceptions, dnver ·behavr0rs ,or al.cohol,-relat�d crashes, police citations for 
impaired driving,. and;public per4;eptipl\s o..f. al�ohol�impa.fred drivinKtjsk, .. 

{ - -nn1�irSt11�ttts,a.�tf.tf(.-�� . . . .. · ffii:t•u.�· tra.w · �m:u.$titei!tffl1.itt�� 
·· .. amm-�� i'ffi.��f6ffll����

,.
e. ·t!i���,n�t� sam · ·1��G.0n.cems. 

/· �:::��-�lt��lf1:�-�i��v�i��;\(�ta· Q�·�Q��Jeifem;\fett��cffiffi�e�""el:S� .. '.. 
· -�,satuffatj.'t\�rep,ati{���:�ffl �.e.tt . . �p�i:i 

Further information. about D1:JI checkpo_int� a:rid saturation patrols can be found at ' 
California DUI Guide website. Drivers facing'a California-DUI arr�st are also 
encouraged to contact exper.ienced DUI defense attorney Thomas Wal lin for a fr 
consultation. 

\ ___ / 
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• Al though most of the arrests or citations at  checkpoints were DUI-rela_ted, more than 100 were not. 
Ci tations ranged frt;im p,;,ssi?s5lnn nf m;:irij 1 1;:in;:i tn rlriyin!J on a -susrended l icense. 

Outcomes_ In 22 cases couldn't be determ ined b.ecaus,e cpr.re.�pq�dln·� co,�ii: recotds coµldn't be found despite 
an extensive s ea rch. The Sheriff's Department a lso coulcf nbt find retards In those cases. 

Five to 30 deputies can staff a checkpoint, statiftlcs._�f"\ow, '>'.l(lth.:q few serge1:mts. at each checkpoint, too .  Six 
to 12 sheriff's vol unteers assist the.officer�, w,oolrieg_:e}aiq. , , . . . . . . . . 
In the last two years, the agency has spent .a(,,out $i142,POO. -on 9vertlme. pay-for che!=kPClints, dat,3 show. If 
divided u p  yearly, thc1t accounts for a slzable amoun·t of- 'the .'fcmds·.frbi:n theONatlonal '.Highway Traffic Safety 
Administration and the state,_. a�cordlng t0 ·a .. q'!iGwlaJion,o.f. :b.q,dg�trfjg�r�s .• -' : · 
About $ 120 ;ooo of the federa l money given . to Arlzo�;'wk�f;i:o '"fu�·iheriff s Dep,artment In fisca l  2007 to help 
pay for deputies' overtim e  at checkpoints and· DUi patrois/sald }�ichael; Heg9.r6i.Ah:e d!=puty .dlr�ctor of the 
Governor's Office of Highway Safety. The st�te giv.es,ithe:money\o P!ma'. County� .which then diwles It up to 
!�cal agencies� lndudhig the Sheriff.'s Departiment. · > ·· · ·, · . · · . 
Among the checkpoints with the most deputies was-one cond_uctec;I d.ur:irig Labor Day weekend in 2005. 
Records show 27 deputies staffed the checkpoint for .mare than thtee:hours; netti ng °four  arres� ,at: North La 
Chal la Boulevard a nd West Ruthrauff Road out of S7i' driver-s:'whcq,�ss�d thr:ou_gh. 

. 
. .:: . ,.>' \ -� -�· ' 

. . . . . . 
But to som e  DUI -checkpoint proponents, hassles for �6 manv -sober.-:driver� are worth it even if the stops 
cause delays.  

"Inconvenience Is a way of life," said Kel ly Larki.n, .executive director of the  Tucson affi l late.·of ·Mothers Against 
Drunk Driving .  Even If the cases against drivers get d.istnlssec;I,. she said, "It got them off-the streets that 
night. "  · · · 

Increased enforcement 

Pal Ham approached the DUI checkpoint on West Pic\!IJre i:i.ocks· Road near Saguat:o National Park West on 
Sept. 4 , 2006. Befor�_ -he got be/111'.)d. ��� i;yhe_e,1.,_ .,'lelcj_ Q�P �}ev.d�e��s. < th,r.:ee:�cH:\)e ex.?ct, he said. 
Deputies arrested Hant 74, on a ' drunken;.dr:i�ililQ'.C���gt co�t-t-r,¢¢,�r:�s sh.ow., He pleaded guilty after blowlhg 
a 0 . 105 percent blood-a lcohol content, and. sale! he ,5.�ent a nlght: lr:ijail . 
To this date, , he has .,:n i_x.ed f�efjngs abo.ut . th.� cj,e��p�(IJ�. 
"I could get a long without them," ·he sald, ''uritn: On.� ofmy:foved oi:l�s,get_!i ki l l�d. II 

. ' . ' \ ··:·"' '· . .  
Ham's case epitom izes why checkpoints are worth th_e tlme, .proponents say. 

St( I I, the  most widely cltec! ?Jlternatiye t9 �.oqrle�y chei.�polnts: 9re "s;;iturc1tlon patrols," which increase the 
n um ber of pol lce o,fflcers ori the stf�ei:s"fci'·'l6oi<"f.qdfronk�n .,"ilciy.ersf , . > . .  ': , · , ;' · . = 

' ·, • ·: � • . • • •  • .  · - ' , ·�, _"·��- ··::�·· : -.1 · 1�' ... �; ·· .. ,. ... ·� .t·.· ·:. - �· . · ;,- -- ;�'- . . . • . , .  
Th us, l aWyers and checkpoint crltlts .say; :c;fefetid�nf;;h�ye.('ri)i)r;J•'�v.!,��ffce .�galf:)st -th.�mas officers can 
observe more tel lta le signs of .impairment:,· such as w.�cr,1i�Q,,or'�topplhg :i3t, j!l .'greeff l ight. 

• • • ' ·,· ., __ , . • •. . . • • ' .- • ·1 

Som e  agencies, i ncluding the Tucson Police Department; h_c;1ve .st0pped conducting checkpoints, a spokesman 
said,  but he  cou ld  not  elaborate. · · · 

Non et�e le�s, Hegan;y� . the;Gov�rn_or'l?_Pffif��9f:.;,fJqti,w,�i>':·�.a��ffe-.��i,cJ9. lr_i�.i�-- i:1 · 9,t,u che_c;�polnt Is "not about 
arresting; it's about having ? Rli�.?,ence,.�r:i.dJ!q\J,,C?�IJ€! tme'"�Prnrnuqlty, !',: . . . . 
Here and in other states, auth.orl.tl��' pla0n: to· '�onttou�\Jsib�·.;�Meckpd{Q�'�S' pa� of their arsenal against 
drunken driving . . . . 
In fa ct, state a nd loca l officia ls  are plannlng ·a crackdown on drunken drivin g  this Labor Day weekend that wHI 
include a checkpoint In Pima County. 

· ' 

"We're here to catch impaired drivers," woolriJge said at the July 4 ·checkpoint. "This isn't a fishing 
expetll tion . " 

One professor wh o  has studied the effect!ver�ss of DUI checkpoints said h is results show that checkpoints 
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As Independence Day n · re its 'c1ose th is slimmer, sheriff's deputi�s at a S,ollthwest, Side DUI checkpoint 
had spent more than two hours stopping cars on West Valen'Cia: Ro:ad, hear,Sputh W:e.stov�r Avenue. 

The lines ofvehlel es, sometim es more than a dozen deep, rol led t,y as deputies repeated a familiar fine :  
"Good evening. Have you consumed any a lcoho l. or drugs today?" 

The answer, by and large, was "no." But for the. few who sa id "yes" or looked suspicious, deputies asked the 
driver to pul l  Into the median and perform- a fl:e!d::-sobfi�ty test. 

Between September 2005 and May 2007, the Sheriff's Department c_onduc�ed 1, 1fr8 such tests at DUI 
checkpoints, records · show. That means that for every four drivers who were screened, deputies. arrested one. 

One of those tested that July 4 .night was a woman ir i'  h¢r· 20swho· registered 0 , 1 19 percent- blood,-a lcoho ( 
level on a Breathalyzer, above the state's 0 .08 percent DUI level .  
In the back seat sat two minors drihking beer, the remnants of a 24-pack between them. 

"Yeah ," safd Woolridge as he observed the woman.  "This is why we do checkpoints." 
. • ! • • ' .� • • • • . • 

• 

Stil l ,  a t  this stop, the unidentified woman was: oi,e otonlytthreer DUI' suspects,� the Sheriffs. Department 
reported. From ·9 : 15 p,m . to , i:2 :1 s  a .m . ,  deputies counted 1 , ·239- �ars ;fhat'passed:-through, an arrest rate of 
less than one-tenth of 1 p·ercent Thirteen depµt{es staffed that checkpoint. 

. ' : : - :, ... . . . , ,  . .  ' 

Such low rates, critics say,; are, why auttioritl�s 'should be ' shlftihg taptlcs; 

Police officers are-well'-tr.ained rn ; how to spot-drunken ,d_rixiers; !�ai:id.Jhen they just stop everyone who 's 
drivin g  a lo ng," said Jo.e St. Louis, a local attorney who sp.ecia lizes in drunken-driving cases, Including some 
that began at checkpoints. . . ·  .. . 

"It's just crazy. If you stop people at random� It's not an efficient use ·of your time  or Cif ta:>,cpayer dollars," he 
said . Such ran dom stops, critics .a rgue, just waste' the: time ohober-'drivers ·andi law·enforcement. 

While It's hard to say Just how effe�tlve DUI checkpoints ·are compared wlth· other-enforcement methods, 
statistics show that their edLi¢atlona f- componerit)s also debatable :  DUI arrests have remalr:ied relatively 
constant eac_h month slr1ce··they . began in $epter')iber 2005. 

. 
· , . ' . · .  . . . 

That month, the departrtienf'recorded 12s· our�rrests; : in June 2007, ·th�re w,E!re 127. The most between 
those moriths was·thls: May, at 175. 

The department stopped DUI checkpoints i n  the mid-'90s amld -conct!rns of low arrrest rates, Woolr:idge safd. 
But after sheriff's officials . examined studies that·showecl checkpolnts: have. a deterrent effect,. the department 
restarted the program. · · · 

Few arrests, feWer co·n;victions 

The Arizona Dal ly Star i:evlewed �ourt .case5;,of t�ose··arre$t.e,p:13t the che��po[nt� fr9_m,Septe111ber 2005 
through May 2007 and compared: the data-wlth .. ch�_ckpoint ?ta.�?tlcis froqi _,the .Sher:iff's Department. The 
newspaper o btalned: the f ist of checkpo int a

r
rests 'through a publlt-records request In June. 

Among the Sta r's findings : 

• Sheriff's offlcla ls · counted .4_6,781 drivers who went t:t:irough the checkpoints, most of whom were not 
arrested or even tested for_, belng; impaired. 

• Of those drivers who were-stopped, dl:;!putles- a·r:r�,st�d 282 of) suspicion ·of dfunkl;!n driVlng. That accounts 
for 0.6 percent of a l l  drlvers ·who went through the ch�Gkp:Ciints. . . 

• Of the 180 DUI cases that have been thro1;1gh th e .co rts;- 105.have been dismissed. Defense . lawyers point 
to weak evidence, such as a ·lack of reasonable su·spiclcn, and:cons·trtutional violations as reasons why, 
a l though they say each case is different. 

• Whi le deputies were able . to sto_p drivers who· were .per,aps the most egregiol!s offenders, they also 
snagged some who were Far below the·bUI level. Stil l, Atizona law prohibits drlv:ers from getting behind the 
wheel if they're Impaired to the s l ightest degree. 
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.were associated with a 20 percen� reduction in drur:iken�driving crashes in the Maryland-Virginia -Washington, 
D.C. , a rea . · · · · 

But that's only "if  they a re done o�en enotJ_gh and publ_i�lzed," said Kenneth 1-:f.  Beck, a professor  of pubilc 
and community health at the Univeh;ity ofMarylahd. "Otherwlse, they're r

1
ot· l fkely to ·gei: the deterrent 

effect." · · ·  

Today, Beck sa id, checkpoints are mucfr mcfre·:c6rj,mon. natlonwlde. But _of ' the mqre than LS mi l l ion people 
who are arrested for drinking and driving each year/he sa id;· "far inore are· arrested outside of checkpoints." 

The question of suth checkp.oints' . effeC:tiveness; Jh¢n/ �ci.mes 'ddwn ·to · perspective. 
: · . ' '  . _: ,.. . .  ::,. · . .  · .'' . . .  - :· . . : •; , '  ' 

"One  of the arguments is that there: i� a: g�n�t:;3 ! 'pidollt�awaret:ie�s factor/' said: Roger Hartley, an  associate 
professor  of publ ic adr:ninlstratlon .and pb! f�y _a t  the Un iv'¢rsity of Arizona'·s Eller Col iege of Management. . . . . : . : .·, : . _  .•, . : •  ·._ . . 

"But ff lt was worth the cost, they'd do · lt a l l  th'e· -tfme:" · · -

Compare h ow -effective 'various Dl:Jl checkpoints have been over the past two. years I n  a n  Interactive map at 
www.azstarnet.com/crime 

.. . . ..... ...... ..... ____ �---�-_.__------------��--,------�--.,.----------

• 

• 

By the numbers 

• Drivers stopped at checkpoints : 46,781 

• Fie ld-sobriety tests: 1,168 

• DUI- related-arr:ests: 2-82 

• DUI cases dismissec
l
: 105* 

• DUI convictions: 75* 

*102 cases stil l . p�ndir:,g. 

Source: Arizo na Daily Star ana[ysis: �I'Pittta::C:oi.Jrify<S!l'li!r-ifrs, Departrnent DUI ch�ckpoint arrest 
data and. PiQict County. Consolrdated :)ustice .�9'Ul't r��o_rds, from Seµ,tember 2.005 to Ma.y 2007. 

Did you Know ... 

The Legislature changed Arizona's DUI blood-alc9ho! c6nte·nt' From 0. -10 p-ercent to o.oa percent In September 
200 1 . The new law was prbfT!ptE!d·.p,artly. by. a _2000. federaJ!a� ,that wi�bholds some highway monE!y to states 
that have not adopted the lower l im it · · · 

OUT Next WEEKEND 

Officers wll i be o n  special we·E!kehd out·enfo/�ertl.etjt 'ij��a illi �pq�·r::b�y:w,�ekend; tlie Pima Co_unty Sheriff's 
Department said, which wil l  frict_ude sobrlE:!tt;<::h�ckpofrits and saturation patrol's. Tfi

'e enforcement Is part of a 
national  anti-DUI campaign that beg_ai: i:: ln· ml�:e-Al!QUSt, 
• Contact reporter Jack GIilum at 573-4178 or atJgil{i1m.@az;itiriief.ao';;,. 
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A Centers for D isease Contro l  and Prevention review of studies found that checkpoints reduced a lcohol­
re lated fata l, injury and property crashes by about 20 percent. The main purpose of checkpoints is not to 
increase arrests, but rather pub l ic awareness, according to the website. 

"The number of drivers eva luated wou ld be more of an appropriate measure," according to the CDC's 
website . 

Each time a checkpoint' : is he ld, . news re leas�s a re -s.emt:to·med�� .outl.etsto notify0qrivers-ofthe locations 
beforehand .  . . 

"Checkpoints a re not necessarily designed to be .an  arresU6ci l; ' '.�rining ·sa id. "They a re a deterrent and 
publ ic education too l ." 

For years, Columbus po l ice have a lso worked with Frankl in County's OVI Task Force. That task force has 
been around s ince 1993 and invo lves severa l law. enforcement agencies. 

Ch ief Deputy Jim Gi lbert, .of the Frankl in COl,mfy Sheriff'.$:Offic�; who ov�rsees the- county's OVI Task 
Force, said the countywi l l  continue·to cond.L!0N::hetkpoi.ots. · · 

. . > .  . . . .  

"We find that educating the 'p ublic on ,the daoge�s.of. dr.uml< diii�ing:is:justas important .as en forcement 
efforts - checkpoints .and -the pu�l_ic· r�l�.�.se .9f iho�e;che��po;in��--�opeftil l/��compl ishes our goa l  of 
having individuals:make better choices when\it-tomes'.to' g�ttir:tg: bel:iii:ld tl:ie:wheel:if they· have been 

; � -. . . . .  ·. . . . . ' . . ' 
drinking, "  he said . 

The emai l  states: officers 'Nil l  most l ikely ,rern�im,p.ai;t oftf.i� -co.u�ty's:ta{kforc�. . . . --� '� . . :·· ' 4. . ... _ .. -. .  1 ,. 

Jacobs plans to al low,.officers.to. stiU.r.�ceiv�·,t:u,r.aclir.ig4ha� wou.l!1f··g�. toW.a�d���t.!\�t�gic:a l (y:patro l l ing::e!��-�--­
where data shows there a r;e,,fry!gh Vo:l�n:i:� bf_a l�dhef-'re l?llied ·�raslites: 0.fficifri wil l ,a lso receive 'funding 
for selective enforcement.Jraaia:uo:wi�h�'�: to,tar,get: otlil:er: .tr;aff:i� ViibJati�l'.1$, -�·cc:�rd)°r:ig to toe .emai l .  . . \  . � ' . . . · ,', 

. 
(_ ' . . . . � 
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Doug Sco les, state executive d i r:ecto� for Nloth�rs Again��- :Drunk Dri�ing Oh io; sa'id cuhing sobriety 
checkpoints wil l lead to more .deaths. 

"The more (officers) we haY;e out'there/the :les.s,: tragedies w.e ·ha'f:e:on our roadways," he said. 
"Whatever the cause is,· �e obj�-�t to it, :b-�Cql:JS� ,ii.'�:putting .tbe irite.r.e·st of.'publ ic safety lower than it 
should be . "  

bburger@disj:>atch .com 
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The Co lumbus Division of Pol ice has d ismantled its task force responsible -for sobriety checkpoints after P, .;>'7 
the pol ice ch ief decl ined to accept grant funds, mu ltiple sources confirmed Wednesday. -�-

"It is with great d isappo intment that I report to vou that Co lumbus Divisiqn of Po l ice no longer has a 
formal OVI task force," Traffic Bureau  Sg·(MH:hael'Smitf rto·td law·enforcement partners in - a n  internal 
emai l  obta ined by The Dispatch. '' By order of Chief Jacobs, grant funding_has been .decl ined to fund 
_future sobriety checkpoint operations." 

The emai l, which was sent Tuesday, d id not say why Chief Kim Jacobs decided to decline funding. 

Jacobs was unava i la ble for comment Wednesday and d id not respond to an email with questions. A 
spokesman  said the chief is the on ly one who would be ab le to explain the decision . 

Co lumbus pol ice have accepted nearly $225,000 in grant funds to conduct checkpoints·:each year. 

"(Co lumbus pol ice)just fee l  it wasn't. a n- appropriate .use offunds and\mar1power/' said Michae l  Br{ning, 
... �- . . . _ _  : ·  . ' 

�nforcement: officer lia ison -for flle.Ufi1'1o�tr.r�a"ffi�.rr,c:"(S�a''f;;fe:;;t�y..,.,Omffi,::, � c:;:;e:-._ .... -_ ....... ._......,._..,;._ _____ _ 
. . . . . 

>>>Previous :stoiy: .a:r� DUl,.d:ie�ks.fuif-?,,; ·:' · '. · 

. . .'.: _ ·  _ : �  � ........ ,. � • . ,  • • ·. I , . . ,  • • �'. • ;-:'· �  •, , �· · ·\ ,,,j'.�· . . . .  ,. ' .: . : . , · . • , . .>, 
Brin ing, who. wbrks :�$,aigr@rttco0�di.lil_�.for-wjtffi .law en:foriee}Jlle�t'ag�ncf���)1�Jps -dete"i:mine·:which 
depa rtments··rec_�ive, �·ow.:n1 ,u�f f�:9�_r:a

°
itgrar;it �o:r,i�y,'fro� tt:(e. N�ti«1,-mil:Hj�bw�y _f,t�ff:is.Saf�ty 

Admin istration: • 'i • · ··, · · .  \��, ·· · 
. ; . .  , .: .' . _ ·: ,: ' ,. '. · . .  '>:'. -. , .\ _ ' ·-·. _·, ' . . . ·  

"Col um bus a lways,.didi aivigi la rft, jp b.i(l)t1p�os_itioni _�g, (0fficer�1: ,hlil�e;Jlf ¢r� -w�re ·impa ired ·driving and. 
crashes " he said. 

· · ·  - · -� · · · · · · 
I • - _' -� .. '� ·- • . 
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According t_oJh,e· �'rf1a i l/J�fO�s
°
d�cidec;J,iot1FeJect·the�gr,a,_rnts,Jpf·fli1t�re.�g�tli\;!tY.:the�kp_o irit operations as 

wel l  as the m·bbile::{Blootl :Alcof1oi-¢qrat�j:it11trl!Ic,kplitf011m-._ : , ; , ··::::r,. · __ ,• · ·. ' .· 
. 

. . . . ,_f ', 

" ... _.,_ ' � • ·:: •< .;'. . � :t 
: . ·  l ,. 

Until Tuesday, C�lufl1�µs ·po'l ice,fia�.-t��ib.n !�,1:;�i1,�a_s�:f�r_ce,.1�;ifl�,;5t;ie·�GQJ�-po§��iof:members from a 
• . . • • ·,- . .. • • • • � • • .... � -� • •f.: I •·. • • ·:,, ' · ·-�·- • •  

' • . • • 

single law enfo_rc¢me11(a:gency: · ._) · •  · �: �..;'- -, ·· ·,,,,. · · · ·  · · · . .  , . .  , 

The depart�ent b¢ga ri'�et�i�� �p-,c�¢ckp:�;i�tsvi_m �Oll©�na lllr��_a, gr:�ntJurad:s�!P',ptir.c���e -the· blo_e.d 
a lco ho I testi_ng �rutk�i ni20 :1!1� ,The �.·offi�e:17�; f?.t1tna:_f l',1 Gr:�ate� -�•€,of �rnbt:i"�:,poilg�:� per�ting ·a :\i.ef'i icJe 
lntcixicated:task Jo.rc;:e,· t,,vo_.y�� r-s ·c1�o{w�i_C!�, hefp��c�e.eur;e(&t�-�t�., -�::· . -� 'c 

:1,,·,. · :. ·;;;· · .  ·� ••  .:.:. -� ·., 

In 2013; the Colurnbus:pol iie ·c_<irfd�0r1�·'jj:3;Q'l;t�6kp9,lnt_sji\ct�Ma��-=a:t9.�a·i,6f.}t:o,1;1 · a_r ies�s-�fte.r a tota l 
of 12,731 ,v.epic:Jes-pass.ed'.thr;ough .t{:l�:.d1eic�pointsi1a<mp.r;gipg·to,a:iMr:ih:�al'5ep6_rt The foilowing-year, 
the most:.rec�nt -y�a:"rfor whi�h- 're;tci�a§":'�r_�:�yatla61e�the:horrtb�h>f:'i:fie:akpoinfs'- in�reased to ·20. A tota l 

' •  : . 
' ' ' ; _.:' 'f' , -..... , .. -:.;! ' ': • . .  :-. � -. · •. :-- • .  � , . ' - -: • · •  ... :-• - • . ;. · . , · ,  . 

of 7,280 vehicles passed through the ch_eckpa.jnts_.and ���e_rs :ma'de 53 OVI arrests. 

There is some debate overthe effectiveness ofsebrie"fy checkpoints. Checkpoints often don't result in a 
h igh number of OVI a rrests. 

• 
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https://bismarcktribune.com/opinionicolumnists/other-tactics-more-effective-than-sobriety­

checkpoints/art ic le_16 72 1506-9d75-5ed7-8084-3dabdb6446fb.html 

Other tactics more effective than sobriety 
checkpoints 

Mar 10, 2019 

··-----...,_ ________________ _ 
Prohibition of sobriety checkpoints in House Bill 1 442 passed the state House and 
will soon be heard in. the Senate. Some are opposing elimination of sobriety 
checkpoints, usually saying, "We need to leave this tool in the toolbox for law 
enforcement." That worn-out phrase is not applicable here, and I '  11 explain why. 

Sobriety checkpoints need to be compared to other, better tools in law 
enforcement' s toolbox; namely directed patrols such as roving saturation patrols. 
Sobriety checkpoints require a large presence with numerous officers tied up for 
many hours . The checkpoint location must be advertised a week in advance, and 
drivers must be allowed to tum around as they approach the checkpoint. Roving 
saturation patrols, on the other hand, send several patrol cars out to target areas, 
looking for signs of driver impairment. Law enforcement can choose if they want 
to advertise the RSPs.  

There are two components to law enforcement strategy to curb drunken driving; 
apprehension and deterrence. With regard to apprehension, it has long been known 
that sobriety checkpoints fail miserably . The FBI sent out a bulletin in 2003 
confirming that checkpoints are inferior to RSPs in apprehending drunken drivers . 
Several studies corroborate this, including a study showing that a whopping 62 
percenfof drivers with a blood alcohol above the legal limit pass through 
checkpoints undetected. Even advocates for checkpoints acknowledge that they 
have very little value in apprehension. They instead point to deterrence as the 
primary value. There are two problems with this .  The first is that several studies 
have proven that deterrence occurs only if checkpoints are performed frequently 
and are advertised extensively, but in North Dakota they are performed very 
infrequently . 



For example, Cass County conducted only one checkpoint in 20 1 7, and Fargo has 

not conducted a checkpoint since 20 14 .  Statewide, the Highway Patrol conducted 

only 1 7  checkpoints over the last two years. This isn't nearly frequently enough to 

have an actual deterrent effect. The other problem with the deterrent claim is that it 

is being compared to doing nothing. No studies have shown that the checkpoint 

deterrent effect is better than an advertised RSP deterrent effect.. Common sense 

tells us that letting the public know there are increased directed patrols somewhere 

out in the city looking for drunken drivers will have far greater deterrence than 

letting the public know there will be a checkpoint at a specific address on a specific 

date . · -· · ··- --- --------

The final issue is use of resources . Officer's time is valuable . Standing around at a 
checkpoint is not a good use of time. Consider that our own statistics show 2 1  
percent of drivers stopped with RSPs are issued a DUI, but less than 2 percent of 
drivers stopped at a checkpoint are issued a DUI. 

There is a tendency to cite various drunken driving statistics and then say, "We 
need every tool in the toolbox." Given the data above, when someone says "What 

• about the drunken driver that a checkpoint takes off the roads?", I respond by 
saying, "For every drunken driver taken off the road with a checkpoint, there are 
two or three drunken drivers left on the road whenever law enforcement resources 
are put into a checkpoint instead of a saturation patrol." Advocating to keep 
sobriety checkpoints is to ignore the facts, and to advocate for a policy that leaves 
drunken drivers on the road, leaving North Dakotans at greater risk of becoming 
victim tp a drunk driver. 
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FARGO - The North Dakota Leg is lature has taken a step toward bann i ng  DU I  checkpo ints - an 
enforcement method that some view as ineffective . But local law enforcement leaders say checkpoi nts 
not on ly he lp  catch d ru n ken d rivers but a lso deter impaired d rivi ng in the fi rst p lace . 

DU I  checkpoi nts boost pu b l ic awareness about d ru nken d rivi ng  and ,  because the checkpo ints are 
announced ahead of time ,  encourage dr inkers to p lan other ways of trave l l i ng ,  sa id Sgt. Wade Kadrmas, 
safety and ed ucation officer with the North Dakota State H ighway Patro l .  

House B i l l  1 442 ,  wh ich wou ld outlaw DU I  checkpoints , was passed by House lawmakers with a 79-1 4 
vote on Feb .  1 2 . And it 's now headed to the Senate for cons ideration .  

The H ighway Patro l  is tak ing a neutra l  stance on the legis lat ion , say ing the agency w i l l  fo l low the law 
whatever the outcome,  Kad rmas said . 

Fargo Pol ice Ch ief David Todd and Cass County Sheriff Jesse Jahner  both support DU I  checkpoints, 
say ing  they are s a usefu l tool to get DU I  drivers off the road and that the b i l l  takes that away from law 
enforcement offic ia ls .  

The b i l l 's  ma in  sponso r, Rep. R ick Becker, sa id supporti ng checkpo ints by argu i ng they offer an add it ional 
enforcement method for officers is "cl iched , "  say ing they have been "proven i nadeq uate . "  Becker, 
R-B ismarck, said that for DU I  checkpoints to be effective , they need to be conducted more frequently and 
have wider advert isement .  

Numbers from North Dakota law enforcement agencies show that on ly a fract ion of D U I  arrests come 
from checkpo i nts . 

The H ighway Patrol conducted 1 6  checkpoints across the state between January 20 1 7 and December 
201 8 .  Those checkpoi nts resu lted i n  1 7  DUI arrests . Another 1 7  arrests were for d rivi ng under 
suspens ion ,  warrants , d rug offenses and underage d ri n ki ng .  

I n  a l l ,  t he  H ig hway Patro l made 1 , 1 35 DU I  arrests i n  20 1 7  and 1 , 1 58 i n  20 1 8 .  

The Cass County Sheriff's Office conducted two recent checkpoi nts , o ne  i n  20 1 6  and  one  i n  20 1 7 . A tota l 
of 333 veh icles were stopped , and 33 d rivers were eva luated , resu lti ng i n  s ix arrests . I n  20 1 6  and 20 1 7 , 
sheriff's deput ies on rov ing sobriety patro ls stopped 2 1 5 veh icles and made 45 arrests for DU I  or 
alcohol-re lated offenses.  

Jahner acknowledged that rov ing sobriety patro ls have been more effective for the sheriff's office, but 
pointed out that i t 's d ifficu lt to quantify how many dru nken d rivers were deterred because a checkpoint 
was announced .  

The Fargo Pol ice Department hasn't conducted a DU I  checkpo int  s ince 20 1 4  because the department i s  
stretched for staffi ng  and  checkpo ints are "manpower in tensive , "  Todd sa id .  

But between October 2004 and August 20 1 4 , the department conducted 62 DU I  checkpo ints. A tota l of 
1 0 , 732 d rivers were screened , resu lt ing in 1 79 DU I  arrests . There were an  add it iona l  1 47 arrests in 
connection with underage dri nking , d rug offenses and other crimes. 
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Unsteady on Its Feet: Sobriety Checkpoint 
Reasonableness 
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754 67 WASH. & LEE L. RE V. 735 (201 0) 
(Safe, Accountable, Flexible, Efficient Transportation Equ ity Act: A Legacy for Users) 
Users (SAFETEA-LU) in 2005.99 SAFETEA-LU amended preexisting federal 
incentive programs under 23 U .S .C. § 4 1 0, providing federal grants to qualified 
states if one of two conditions is met : The state is eligible when its alcohol 
related fatality rate is at or below 0 .5  persons per one-hundred million vehicle 
miles traveled. 1 00 Alternatively, the state is eligible when it carries out at least 
five statutorily defined state "alcohol-impaired driving countermeasures." 10 1  

The statute then provides eight possible countermeasures that satisfy this 
alternative requirement: ( l )  a checkpoint or saturation patrol program; wi (2) a 
prosecution and adjudication outreach program; 1 03 (3) increased testing ofBAC 
for drivers involved in fatal accidents/04 (4) providing stronger sanctions for 
high risk drivers; 1 05 (5) programs for effective alcohol rehabilitation and DWI 
courts ; 1 06 (6) an underage drinking program; 107 (7) administrative license 
revocation; 1 08 and (8) a self-sustain ing impaired driving prevention program. 109 

Most states do not meet the first requirement and, therefore, must implement at 
least five of the eight listed programs to be eligible for federal grants . 1 1 0 

SAFETEA-LU, therefore, requires additional public resources for sustainability 
by increasing the presence of alcohol-impaired driving countermeasures, 
including sobriety checkpoints .  

99 .  Safe, Accountab le, Flexible, Efficient Transportation Equity Act: A Legacy for  Users 
(SAFETEA-LU), Pub .  L. No. 1 09-59, 1 1 9 Stat. 1 1 44 (2005)  (codified as amended in scattered 
sections of 23 U.S .C . ) .  

1 00. See SAFETEA-LU § 2007(b)(3), 23 U .S .C. § 4 1 0(b)( l )  (2006) (defining the alcohol. 
related fatality rate to be the "rate of0.5 or less per I 00,000,000 vehicle miles traveled a.s of the 
date of the grant, as determined by the Secretary using the most recent Fatality Analysis 
Reporting System of the National Highway Traffic Safety Administration") .  

l 0 I .  See id. § 4 1 0(b)(2)(C) (requiring a t  least five state programs fo r  the fiscal year of 
2009). 

1 02. Id. § 4 10(c)( l ) ;  see also Stuster, supra note 8, at D-3 (dist inguishing roving patrols 
from saturation patrols) .  

1 03 .  2 3  U .S .C § 4 1 0(c)(2) . 
1 04. Id. § 4 10(c)(3 ) .  
1 05 .  Id. § 4 10(c)(4) . 
1 06. Id. § 4 10(c)(5 ) .  
1 07. Id. § 4 1 0(c)(6) .  
1 08. Id. § 4 1 0(c)(7) .  See N.Y. VEH. & TRAF. LAW § 1 1 94 .2 (McKinney 2008) for an 

example of an administrative l icense revocation statute. 
1 09 .  23  U. S.C. § 4 1 0(c)(8)  (2006) .  
1 1 0. See Rajesh Subramanian, State Alcohol Related Fatality Rates, NAT'L HIGHWAY 

TRAFFIC SAFETY ADMIN . ,  PUBL'N No. DOT HS 809 830, at 6 (2005) ,  availabfe at http://www­
nrd.nhtsa.dot.gov/cats/l istpublications.aspx?Id=C&ShowBy=DocType (foUow "State Alcohol­
Related Fatality Rates 2003" hyperlink) (demonstrating that seventeen states had an alcohol­
related fatality rate of 0.50 or less per one-hundred million vehicle miles traveled in 2003) .  
Figures for the years 2004 to present are currently unavailable . 

• 
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756 67 WASH. & LEE L. REV. 735 (2010) 
\-\� (�l,\ 2-

2. Narrowing the Interest ':b· \ ?, · \ " 

The political decision to promote the use of sobriety checkpoints as an 
effective enforcement program is a means to achieve the broad.er political goal 
of governmental decision-makers to fight drunk driving, maximize voter 
happiness, and maximize voter support. How, then, does the sobriety 
checkpoint maximize individual happiness? The answer depends on the ¥ 
sobriety checkpoint ' s  ability to remove drunk drivers from the roads and deter 
motorists from drinking and driving. To that end, one thing is certain: Even 
though sobriety checkpoints are clearly designed to apprehend individuals 
driving under the influence of intoxicating substances, l 13 sobriety checkpoints 
are an inefficient means by which to remove drunk drivers from the road and do 
little to �dvance that governmental interest relativ to other enforcement 
programs. ' ' ' The government concedes this point. : ' " Not only does the 
government concede that sobriety checkpoints do little to advance its interest in 
apprehending drunk drivers, the government concedes further that the diversion 
of government resources from other drunk driving enforcement programs-
such as directed patrols and saturation patrols-may cause the arrest yield to 
decrease. 1 H i  I f  sobriety checkpoints are negligible or even counte1produ.ctive to __,. 

society' s interest in removing drunk drivers from public roads, then the value of 
sobriety checkpoints must be a function of the program' s  ability to prevent 
impaired drivers from operating a motor vehide in the first place. 

1 1 3 . See id. at 470 n. I 3 (Stevens, J. , dissenting) (noting Michigan's court brief, which 
states that "the [sobriety checkpoint] program is  . . .  clearly designed to apprehend any drunk 
drivers who pass through the checkpoint"). 

I 1 4 . See id. at 455 (majority opinion) ("[A]pproximately 1 .6 percent of the drivers passing 
through the checkpoint were arrested for alcohol impairment In addition, an expert witness 
testified at the tria l  that experience in other States demonstrated that, on the whole, sobriety 
checkpoints resul ted in drunken driving arrests of around 1 percent of al l motorists stopped. "). 
But see id. at 469 n. 1 1  (Stevens, J . , dissenting) ( ''The Court refers to an expert's testimony that 
the arrest rate is 'around l percent, ' but a fair reading of the entire testimony of that witness, 
together with the other statistical evidence in the record, points to a significantly lower 
percentage.") .  

1 1 5 .  See id. at 470 n. 1 3  (Stevens, J. , dissenting) (providing test imony from a Michigan 
police officia l who admitted that the "purpose in effectuating or attempting to effectuate" the 
checkpoint at issue was "not to obtain large numbers of arrest [ sic 1 of drunk drivers"). 

I 1 6 . See T.J. Zwicker et al . , Con11.ecticut 's 2003 Impaired.-Drivbig High- Visibility 
Enforcement Campaign,. NAT'L HrGHWAY TRAFFlC SAFETY ADMIN., PUBL'N NO. DOT HS 8 1 0  
689, a t  3 0  (2007), available at http ://www-nrd.nhtsa.dot.gov/Pubs/8 1 0689.PDF ("Refocusing 
law enforcement efforts away from activities such as directed patrols and saturation patrols, 
which traditionally yield many more DWI [Driving While Intoxicated] arrests than sobriety 
checkpoints, was expected to lead to a similar number of DWI arrests or even fewer DWI 
arrests. " ( emphasis added)). 
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Battling DUI '; · \� · ' °'  

A Comparative Analysis of Checkpoints 
and Saturation Patrols 
By JEFFREY W. GREENE 

Since September 1 1, 2001, drunk 
drivers have killed more people 
than act1:1ally died en that day. 
Not to take away from the tragedy 
of September 1 1, bvt dFUnk driving 
deaths are happening every day 
in America.' 

F or many years, the law en­
forcement community has 
attempted to detect impaired 

drivers through numerous innova­
tive efforts and measures. The prob­
lem of driving under the influence 
(DUI) is well known throughout so­
ciety, yet, even with all of the strat­
egies used to remove these drivers 
from U.S. highways, it continues to 
cause needless and tragic loss oflife 
each year. When will such madness 
end? When will society no longer 

© PhotoDisc 

tolerate drunk driving? Until that 
time, the law enforcement commu­
nity must attempt to contain the car­
nage inflicted upon law-abiding 
citizens by impaired d1ivers .2 

Law enforcement has two basic 
methods of dealing with the DUI 
problem-sobriety checkpoints and 
saturation patrols . Sobriety check­
points have existed for several years 
and have served as a deterrent 
to drunk driving across  many 
commun i ties .  Although not the 
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most aggress ive method of  re­
moving impaired drivers from 
America' s  roadways, these check­
points comprise one piece of public 
awareness and education relevant to 
the drinking and driving dilemma. 

Saturation patrols, on the other 
hand, constitute a vigorous tactic 
employed by law enforcement 
agencies to significantly impact an 
area known for a high concentra­
tion of alcohol-impaired drivers . 
Law enforcement agencies have 
used saturation patrols much longer 
than checkpoints, sometimes under 
a different name or no name at all. 
Which method offers the best use 
o f  law enforcement ' s  l imited 
resources? The choice depends 
upon many issues, such as funding, 
resource allocations, and targeted 
areas. 

The Problem 
According to National High­

way Traffic Safety Administration 
statistics , 1 6,653 people died in 
alcohol-related crashes in 2000, an 

the l ikelihood of apprehension is 
more important in deterring offend­
ers than the severity of punish­
ment. 6 Therefore, enforcement is 
the key to creating the perception of 
a possibility of capture, while publi­
cizing these efforts can effect a real 
threat of detainment. 

increase of more than 800 deaths 
from 1 999. This represented the 
largest percentage increase on  
record.3 By some estimates, about 
two out of every five Americans 
will be involved in an alcohol-re­
lated crash at some time in their 
lives. 4 These tragic statistics dra­
matically illustrate that DUI is a se-
rious problem. Sobriety Checkpoints 

Research has indicated, how- Sobriety checkpoint programs 
ever, that most impaired drivers are defined as procedures in which 
never get arrested. Police stop some law enforcement officers restrict 
drivers, but often miss signs of im- traffic flow in a designated, specific 
pairment. 5 Estimates revealed that location so they can check drivers 
as many as 2,000 alcohol-impaired for signs of alcohol impairment. If 
driving trips occur for eve1y anest, officers detect any type of incapaci­
and, even when special drinking- tation based upon their observa­
driving enforcement patrols are tions, they can pe1fonn additional 
conducted, as many as 300 trips oc- testing, such as field sobriety or 
cur for each an-est. ,!3ecause the po- . breath analysis tests.7 To this end, 
lice cannot catch all offenders, the agencies using checkpoints must 
success of alcohol-impairecfdi-iving. have a. written policy as a directive 
laws de ends on deten-in otential for their officers to follow. 
offenders by creating the pu 1c Agencies normally choose Io-

yerception that apprehension m. cations for checkpoints from areas 
punishment of offenders is prob::.... 

that statistically reveal a large num­
able. Research also has shown that ber of alcohol-related crashes or of­

fenses. Officers stop vehicles based 
on traffic flow, staffing, and overall 
safety. They must stop vehicles in 

'' an arbitra1y sequence, whether they 
stop all vehicles or a specified por­
tion of them. Checkpoints offer a 
visible enforcement method in­
tended to deter potential offenders, 
as well as to apprehend impaired 
drivers . Agencies should set up 
checkpoints frequently, over ex­
tended periods, and publicize them 
well. 

The key aspect i1t1 
both sobrietv 

checkpt!Jlnts and 
sa,turatian patr0/s 
rests with publfe 

a,wareness. '' 
Staff LieCJtenant Greene sewes with the 
Ohio State Highway Patrol In Wilmington. 
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Sobriety checkpoints must dis­
play warning signs to approaching 
motorists .. Also, they normally will 
provide opportunities for drivers to 
actually avoid the checkpoint, usu­
ally with an alternate route that a 



driver could divert to after passing 
the checkpo int warning s igns .  
Agencies typically post an officer 
in a marked cruiser at each end of 
the checkpoint. These officers can 
observe the driving behavior of 
those who choose to avoid the 
checkpoint. 

Used to deter chinking and driv­
ing, sobriety checkpoints are re­
lated more directly to educating the 
public and encouraging designated 
diivers, rather than achrnlly appre­
hending impaired drivers . Typi­
cally, sobriety checkpoints do not 
yield a large volume of DUI arrests . 
Instead, they offer authorities an 
educational tool . Education and 
awareness serve as a significant part 
of deterrence .  Frequent use of 
checkpoints and aggressive media 
coverage can create a convincing 
threat in people ' s  minds that offic­
ers will apprehend impaired driv­
ers-a key to general dete1Tence. In 
addition, public opinion polls have 
indicated that 70 to 80 percent of 
Americans smveyed favored the in­
creased use of sobriety checkpoints 
as an effective law enforcement tool 
to combat impaired d1iving. s 

Saturation Patrols 
Saturation patrols involve an 

increased enforcement effort target­
ing a specific geographic area to 
identify and arrest impaired drivers . 
This area always is much larger 
than the location chosen for a sobri­
ety checkpoint. However, site selec­
tion proves vital in both sobriety 
checkpoints and saturation patrol 
in i ti atives. Some states require 
documentation as to why a specific 
location was chosen . Selected sites 
should have a statistically high inci­
dence of DUI crashes or fatalities 

and take into account officer and 
motoiist safety. 

�atu.ration patrols concentra.!£ 
their enforcement on impaiJ;ed cli ·v­
ing behaviors, such as left of center, 
following too closely, reckless d1iv-
1ng, aggressive d1iving, and speed­
'11i'irMTI:rtiple agencies often com­
bine and concenh·ate their resources 
to conduct s aturat ion patro l s .  
Therefore, planning represents a vi­
tal part of these efforts. All involved 
parties should pa11icipate in the 
planning phase, furnishing their 
specific views and concerns . 

saturation patrols .  These efforts 
also · must remain ongoing, not 
merely a onetime operation, to pro­
duce successful results, the same as 
with sobriety checkpoint programs. 

A Comparative Study 
Statis t ics  compi l ed  by two 

agencies, similar in size and area of 
responsibil ity, offer an overview of 
the scope of the DUI problem.9 In 
2000, the Missouri State Highway 
Patrol conducted 58 sobriety check­
points and aITested 323 drivers for 
DUl.  The Ohio State Highway Pa­
trol canied out 1 2  sobriety check­
points and a1Tested 77 drivers for 
DUI . In 200 1 ,  Missouri effected 67 
sobriety checkpoints and arrested 
3 1 8  drivers for DUI. Ohio imple­
mented 1 9  sobriety checkpoints and 
arrested 126 drivers for DUI .  Since 
1 989, the Ohio State Highway Pa­

'J°"'""�•• trol has participated in 1 56 sobriety 

Saturation patrols may afford a 
more effective means of detecting 
repeat offenders, who are likely to 
avoid detection at sobriety check­
points . These patrols also may more 
effect ively impact a spec ific 
geographic location with a hist01y 
of  a h igh number of alcohol­
related crashes . They must en­
hance people's perceptions of being 
detected to be effective. Therefore, 
saturation patrols require the same 
intense media attention as sob1iety 
checkpoints . In addition, prosecu­
tors and j udges must support 

checkpoints and arrested 807 driv­
ers for DUI. 

In the past 2 years, the Missouri 
State Highway Patrol conducted 
822 saturation patrol operations, ar­
resting 1 ,666 d1ivers for DUL The 
· Ohio State Highway Patrol per­
forms saturation patrols on a regular 
basis across the state. The agency 
arrests an average of 25 ,000 DUI 
drivers per year through al l DUI­
related operations .  

In another example, from 1 994 
to 1 995, Tem1essee, in cooperation 
with the National Highway Traffic 
Safety Admini s trati o n ,  imple­
mented a statewide campaign com­
pleting nearly 900 sobriety check­
points. Law enforcement agencies 
conducted these in all 95 counties in 
Tennessee in just over 1 year. The 
checkpoint program was highly 
publicized and conducted basical ly 
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every week. The evaluation of the 
program revealed it as highly favor­
able in reducing the number of alco­
hol-related fatal crashes. Although 
the program only netted 773 arrests 
for DUI, the deterrent factor created 
by the continuous use of the check­
points and the media attention re­
ceived resulted in the program' s  
success. 1 0  

What do these statistics con­
vey? Basically, Missouri averaged 
about five DUI an-ests per check­
point, Ohio averaged less  than 
seven DUI arrests per checkpoint, 
and Tem1essee ' s  aggressive check­
point program averaged less than 
one DUI arrest per checkpoint. 1 1  

What these figures do not show 
is the number of impaired drivers 
deterred by the operations, either 
through sobriety checkpoints or 
saturation patrols . Those statistics 
never will be clearly identified, but 
any lives saved by such efforts 
are worth the effort and resources 
allocated. 

What also is not accounted for 
in these statistics is the additional 
number of other enforcement ac­
tions taken, such as safety belt, 
c ommercial vehic le ,  and child 
safety seat an-ests; speeding viola­
tions ; warnings for various traffic 
infractions or vehicle defects; and 
motorist assists . Detecting such ad­
ditional violations is more probable 
during saturation patrols, as op­
posed to sobriety checkpoints . This 
alone could represent another mea­
sure of effectiveness of saturation 
patrols. * _9verall, measured in arrests per 
hour, a dedicated saturation patrol 
isthe most effective method of aR.� 
prehending offenders . - such -con­
certea effo1ts also may serve as a 

4 I FBI  Law Enforcement Bul letin 

general dete1Tence if their activities 
are publicized and become widely 
known. 

Critics have pointed out that so­
briety checkpoints produce fewer 
a1Tests per hour than dedicated pa­
trols, but some studies show mTest 
rates can be increased greatly when 
police employ passive alcohol sen­
sors (i.e. , devices that can measure 
the alcohol content in the air, which 
officers can use while talking to a 
mot01ist passing through the check­
point) to help detect drinking driv­
ers. However, focusing on anests is 

' '  
Saturation 

patrols . . .  constitute 
a vigorous tactic 
employed by law 

enforcement agencies 
to significantly impact 

an area known for 
a high concentration 
of alcohol�impaired 

drivers. 

____ , ,  . .  

a misleading way to consider the 
value of checkpoints . The purpose 
of frequent checkpoints is to in­
crease public awareness and deter 
potential offenders, resulting in the 
ideal situation where very few of­
fenders are left to apprehend. 

Sobriety checkpoint programs 
in Florida, Notih Carolina, New 
Jersey, Tennessee, and Virginia 
have led to a reduction in alcohol­
related crashes .  In I 99 5 ,  North 
Carol ina conducted a statewide 

\ \ 

enforcement and publicity cam­
paign aimed at impaired drivers. 
The campaign was deemed a suc­
cess, indicating "drivers with blood 
alcohol levels at or above 0 .08 per­
cent declined from 1 98 per 1 0,000 
before the program to. 90 per 1 0,000 
after the intensive 3-week alcohol­
impaired publicity and enforcement 
carnpaign."12  

Other Factors 
Is public awareness and educa­

tion important? The key aspect in 
both sobriety checkpoints and satu­
ration patrols rests with public 
awareness .  The perception of a 
higher lisle of detection for driving 
under the influence of alcohol may 
deter more people from driving af­
ter drinking. The more the public 
understands the issues and severity 
of the consequences, the better they 
will accept drunk driving as a prob­
lem and will embrace a crusade to 
reduce occwTences. Indeed, agen­
cies must have public suppo1t to 
succeed. 

All law enforcement agencies 
must accept that the media plays a 
vital role in combating impaired 
drivers. They must use all outlets 
possible to spread the word about 
this needless tragedy that happens 
every day. All media entities are 
looking for stories. By working 
closely with them, agencies can get 
the message out about the dangers 
of drnnk driving. The sooner agen­
cies realize the importance of the 
media, the sooner they will gain a 
valuable ally in their fight. Agen­
cies can gamer a great deal of sup­
port from the public when they 
speak out on this vital issue. 

Are stricter laws and sanctions 
working? Twenty-seven states and 



the District of Columbia have re­
duced their blood alcohol content 
(BAC) threshold to . 08  percent 
from . I O  percent in another effort to 
reduce the number of alcohol-re­
lated crashes. The federal govern­
ment also has adopted the standard 
of .08 percent BAC, encouraging 
states to change to .08 percent. In 
2003 , states that have not adopted 
the .08 percent standard will lose 
millions of federal dollars for road 
construction. Currently, 22 states 
have the BAC threshold of . I O  per­
cent, Ohio included. Studies by the 
Centers for Disease Control and 
Prevention' s  National Center for 
Injury Prevention and Control in­
dicated, on average, that states 
adopting .08 percent have reduced 
crash deaths involving alcohol by 7 
percent. 1 3 

Administrative l icense suspen­
sion laws continue to become more 
aggressive, attempting to create a 
stronger deterrent environment. Es­
timates have indicated that they re­
duce dliver involvement in fatal 
crashes by about 9 percent. 14 Some 
laws providing for the suspension 
or revocation of licenses have indi­
cated a reduction in the subsequent 
crash involvement of those drivers 
who previously have been con­
victed of an alcohol-related offense. 
Although it is known that many sus­
pended d1ivers continue to drive, 
they tend to drive less and possibly 
more carefully, attempting to avoid 
detection. 

Recommendations 
While many conclusions can be 

drawn from an analysis of sobriety 
checkpoints and saturation patrols, 
both serve a significant purpose 
and, used together, can be effective 

in reducing the number of impaired 
drivers .  Law enforcement agencies 
may find that only one of these 
works for them, depending upon re­
sources. Others may determine a 
combination of both is needed to 
successfully combat the problem in 
their communities. Regardless of 
the selected method, it remains es­
sential to identify the specific keys 
to removing more impaired drivers 
from U.S .  highways, including-

• exposing a sufficient number 
of motorists to the enforce­
ment efforts and the likelihood 
of being anested; 

• improving officers ' skills in 
detecting impaired drivers; 

• implementing an aggressive, 
continuous, and committed 
media effo1t; 

• continuing efforts by legisla­
tures and courts in an attempt 
to consistently punish violators 
and deter impaired diiving; 
and 

• identifying problem areas, 
high-level crash locations, and 
large volumes of impaired 
drivers . 

4l \ 
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It is proven that saturation ef­
forts will bring more DUI arrests 
than sobliety checkpoints . If that 
represents an agency' s  goal and it 
has the resources, then it should use 
saturation patrols. If an agency 's  
goal weighs heavier on the educa­
tional s ide, it should use sobriety 
checkpoints . If an agency should_ 
choose to use checkpoints ov� 
saturation patrols, the evidence i_§_ 
clear that infrequent use is not ef­
fective. J�o, an _g�)Llll.1J.S: _Q.Qll::. 
sider the cost incurred with the fre­
.9uent use of sobriety: checkpomts. 
Resources (time and money) may 
greatly affect an agency' s  decision 
regarding which method to employ. 

If an agency ' s  goal is to reduce 
the number ofimpaired drivers over 
time, it should use both sobriety 
checkpoints and saturation patrols, 
as well as any other available meth­
ods . The bottom line is to do some­
thing--do everything-to remove 
impaired drivers from America ' s  
highways. 

Conclusion 
Law enforcement agenc ie s  

should not accept mediocri ty in  the 
area of driving 1.mder the influence 
enforcement. It is not a societal 
problem. It is everyone's  problem, 
and no one should take it l ightly. 
More people die or are injured 
on this  nation ' s  highways due to 
impaired driving than from all other 
causes combined. It is unaccept­
able, and all Americans pay a price, 
whether p ersonal, financia l ,  or 
professional. 

Law enforc ement agenc i e s  
must take up the challenge and em­
ploy every available weapon to 
combat this deadly threat. This is a 
"mission possible." Through better 

* 
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education, increased awareness, 
and some stiict penalties, the battle 
can be won. Working in collabora­
tion with one another, the public, 
the law enforcement community, 
and the judicial system can help 
prevent the needless loss of life that 
results from drunk driving. "When 
people are knocked away one at a 
time, it doesn ' t  make the headlines 
l ike it should, but we 've got to make 
Ame1icans realize the fact that i t 's 
still the number one killer, and it' s  
1 00 percent preventable. This i s  one 
thing that we can all work together 
to do something about ." 1 5  + 
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DUI Checkpoints : Reconsidering Their Effectiveness 

California traffic safety officials �eclarecl 201 0 the "year of the checkpoint," and 
dramatically facreas�d-�he number o� DUI checkpoints held across the state. 

However, California DUI checkpoints have coro"e uri��r increased scrutiny lately, in 
large parr due t9 a �tudr_. by Caiifomia W�tctiµid ,the ,Ihvestigative Reporting 
Program atU:C B_�rkeley that found that ,o;ffi'.cer�- -impourided six cars for every one 
DUI arrest made. Tbedn�e:stigation,,highlig�ted_ lliat DUI checkpoin4, are highly 
profitable operations for cities and town� wd q;estfoned the disproportionate impact 
of DUI impound poli�l�s ,?n unlicensed n:unorities. 

� . : . .  � 
The California Watch study also recort:finrtefi' that DUI checkpoints net relatively few 
DUI arrests when compared to th� numb-�r ,or'v·ehicles -stoppe\i. This has Jead many to 
question whether DUI checkpoints �te the.wost effective mean.s .of°preventing drunk 
driving in California, p·articul_arly i·n liglit qfthe �ounting legal c9ncems. 

Therefore, . it may be tirti.e to. exarnjpe. whether state funding would be better invested 
in saturation patrols; during:;1;V!iich p9Hce pa:trol high-risk areas fc;,r drivers that appear 
to be impaired. 

In support of that argument, consider the following: 

In 2008, only 5;-000 -ofthe tot�I 2- J�,000 California DUI arrests took place at sobriety 
checkpoints (2. 3%). 

J --< L --tv 
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�Law enforcement officials  concede that DUI checkpoints are not the best way to 
prevent drunk driving. As .Riverside County (Calif.) Sheriff Stan-Iey Sniff told  USA 

-----
. Today : "We -make.light-years J!!Ore arrests on random patrols than at checkpoints." 

�A_comparative:study :bY the JIBI fo'und that.satu:ration patrol s  were the most effec·tive 
. . means of apprehending dn,mk ·driv,ets . . 

-X, �A 20"09 :Universi� o{M�IancI-stu�y-found th�t thec�points do not have "any impact 
on pubhc percepttons, dr1ver beh-avrors ior alcoh0l-reiated crashes, police citations for 
impaired driving, and public perception,s 0f alcohol�rmpafred driving. risk. " 
, . ..' ' �-B.w,o.· �\?��·�b' ·"'->I,< :, .:,:- ., . ·: � . .  \l>-"'f' l;l'( . • ' . " u .. \ ... -��µ....-. "'-'•· -'U . �1,;.:' ' g.WUll:l;l!iJ { - ·TJa.is'"i'" · - - ·a.g.,.,-;.-v.tflat ·E>l\Jll eheM�,--''ils�lii ·m'©* ·i:.·a..v.&. .,., .. i;B·a. -;..,. ;l�""f1ni·-· -i:1;.; .• : • .:i.. , 

· Jliii&'ing.m.·c�femia. -��e.t' �;yea·t\lat t\'i� d'�n�tr.a.ise-tha, �tille�·"G:e.p..eems. , :� ���la� Gn'«�t�:§:aµ'4 �y�-�lt�;v.�_t(l) .P.�.,���eleff-e�ti�ei-ir-t arres'tirrg�afimk-eMl�ea .... .,, . �:.;satut:atro:mpa�rgrJ�c �lre�tllff,°e.Ufer�.f),�Il-
. . 

Further information:about DT::Jr·checkpoints and saturation patrols can be found at � 
California DUI Guide website. Drivers facing a California DUI arrest are also 
encouraged to contact experienced DUI defense attorney Thomas Wallin for a fr 
consultation. 
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DUI checkpoints costly, catt:h few 

46,000 drivers sto pped, but only 75 >a re convicted 

By Jack Gi l lum 

ARIZONA DAIL Y STAR 

Pima County sobriety checkpoints have netted a tiny numb·er of DUI 
arrests despite stopping tens of thou,s.ands _cif' drivers si_nc� 2005, an  
Arizona Dai ly Star:investigation:bas -found. 

Since the. Sheriffs Department beg ah · staging_. checkp_o.ints n_e·arly'two 
yea rs c;1go - overriding, authorities' previ�µs .conqerns tbat lif;Je stops. _ 
yie lded few arrests - fewer tt)a n. 1 . perce'nt of-the more tt,lar:i 4.6;000 
drlvers stopped have.-been -ar:rested on· ·susjll.ici0m.,6f 'DUI. · .  · 

And fewer than  ha lf  of those arrest�d �a�e .. been co�victed: 

Even with the low arrest ·rates; proponents defend, the checkpoints, . 
saying they deter drunken d1;i,v.ingA�y- �,c;!µ:�a�lng p�opie. about .its . _· 
dangers. Every person deputies -stop ·receiv�s. anti -drunken-dr:iving . .  
pam phlets, whi_ch they ,say m eans·one rn6r-e :person who ·msiy avoid-
driv ing under the I nfl uencer. 

· ·  

Stil l ,  the number of DUI arrests has remained _coristant -?.ince the, stqps 
were reinsti tuted I n: Sept�mb'l:!r 200!? after a, 10-year-hiatu_s . In ci.th�r; 
words, Jt doesn't a ppear fewer drivers are driving· wHile'. drunk. 

"It's a good sign that we've arrested so feyV, people;:'; Sh�rlff's l,.t Kai;r 
Woolridge, who supervises the agency's spec;l�l· 'oper?ti0·n�, ir.i.dudlntJ 
checkpoints, said when presentecd ·with· the·Star's findings._ '1At lec1st 
we've removed nearly· 3 00 :impaired drivers off the - road . "  

But crit ics of the checkpoints, including defense attorn1?,ys, ;rnd civil 
l ibertarians, question· their.'effettlveA.�ss ai'ld _ iegali.ty;-'lih�y ·say police.­
have more -sur�:...fire ·met_l\dds, for spdttihg -drunken,dr-ivers� sud, as. 
con centrated patrols; 

The Sheriffs Department has spe'nt more than $140_,ooo, mostly (n 
federal and state money; on 63· staffed ch�ckpolntsJ:ho.ugb. May. 

. . "\ .•  ·1 _. - -·  . ' .... 

By the numbers 

l-\ 0 ) 4L-\'2-
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• Qrivers stopped at checkpoints :  
4:6,-781 

• Field-sobriety tests: 1,168 

•; DUI-, related -arrests: 282 

• ·.DUI q:ise� d is.missed: 105* 

. • 'Dl;II cor.ivictions: 7S:* 

*'l:02 cases stilfpending. 

· Soprce: .Arizo,na· Daily Star 
a.na,iysis -�f· Pifyla Cdi:mty 
Sheriff�s_' tlepart:ment DUI 

,. checkpQii;,t_:ar:1:e�'e °.data and 
. P-ima C-o�_nt\y-,Consolicf ated 
. �u_stice ·Cpu_rt· r¢ciQrds, from 
/ s�ptember 700s-to i',1'ay 2007. 

Dicf.'.yo·u Knqw •••  

The,. L.egislc')ture ·changed Arizona's 
'DUI blai:ld;..al'cohol content from 

.- O:. 1p .. p.?r,�ent· to :0,_08 percent in 
, Septt;!Aib�r 200'1 .• Th.e new law was 
,pt0mp_te,;r par;tly by a 2QQb federal 
fow that withho lds some· highway 
money to, states that have not 
adopte'd the lower- li 'm it. 

DUI checkpoints force drivers to .stop -and  ta lk wit� � .deputy, w�-q,asks·· ' Ol!J.T.'�ext WEEKEND 
them if �hey've C(?nSuril�d a fto/10! Of takep drU§S. _Dep.endifig on the · , :  
driver's answer1 the 'deputy, wiiLinsp'ect·lifle, qriver for·bJ00dshot. ey,�s, · · Officers .wm be ·on _.special weekend 
alcohol-tinged breath and other ·tel l ta le s!gns"of-' impaimiemt ! P.�I. ef1f;orc;:em�nt Q!;!�ai ls - Labor Day 

w.eekerie, the. Pima County. 
How effective those pr.o.cedures arei and:to wh'at ��(!jree ,tritics-say:' ; ' SMeriff''.s· 0�p.ai:{:mentsal.d, which 
they constitute an unreasonable search an·d 'se1zi.Jre� iis up 'fQr-debate. , - " ' -wil1.J171C;Jude"s0briety checkpoints 

- , · :and saturai:i0n ,patro·ls; The 
; enfsrcement is: part 'of .a nationa l  
-anti..:0u1 ·campa ign that began in 
mrd.:.August. 

Checkpoints are "feel-good measures that _are costly/' salp Alessandra 
Soler Meetze, executive direc:tcir bf the ·Atn eritan Civi l. Lib'et,ties Wnlon 
of Arizona .  " it g ives 'th·e impression··that they,,re redµting, th� amOl!mt 
of drunk driving, .but ,t doesn't seem to be tlie case:" 

Questions of effectiveness 
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) -,< (,,� � As Independence Day n'J;ed its close this slimmer, sheriff's deputi�s at a S_outhwest Side DUI checkpoint 

had spent more tha n  two hours stopping cars on :west Valencia Ro'ad hear South Westover Avenue. 
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The l i nes of vehicl es, som etimes m ore than a dozen deep, ro l led by as deputies repeated a famil !ar l lne :  
"Good evening. Have you consumed any a lcohol- or drugs today?" 

The answer, by and  large, was "no." But for the few who said "yes" or  looked suspicious, deputies asked the 
driver to pu l l  into the median and perform - a fi_eld7so]JfiE,!ty test. 

Between September 2005 and May 2007, the- Sheriffs Departm ent conducted 1, 168 such tests at DUI 
checkpoints, records show. That means that for every four drivers who were screened, deputies arrested one. 

One of those tested that July 4 n ight -was a woman irl - h�r 2Ds who registered 0. 1 19 per.cent b!ood-alcohof 
level on a Breatha lyzer, a bove the state's 0.08 percent DUI leve l .  

In the back seat sat two m inors drinking  beer, the remnants of a 24-pack between them. 

"Yeah ," sa id  Woolridge as h e  o bserved the woman.  "Thi� is  why we do checkpoints ."  

Stil l ,  a t  th is stop, the un identified wom an was- one of onfy·three our·-suspe6ts,_the Sheriff's Department 
reported. From 9 : 1 5 -p,rn . to r2 : 1.s a . m . ,  deputies counted 1�239 \!ars that passed'. through, ah arrest rate of 
less tha n  one-tenth of  1 percent. Thirte�n depu_�(es sfi:lffed that chec�point. 

Such low rates, critics say; a re why authorities· should be shifting tactics. 

Pol ice officers ar-e We( (1..tr.a ined in how- to spot drunken ,d_river-s; ,".and then �he.y just stop everyon e  who's 
driving a lo ng,"  said Joe  St. Louis, a loca l attorney who sp_ecia l izes in drunken-driving cases, incl uding some 
that began at checkpoints. · · ·· · 

"It's just crazy. If you stop p·eople a t  random, It's not an efficient use cif your time or of ta�payer dollars," he 
said. Such ran dom stops, critics _a rg ue, just wast_� i:he; time of. 'sober.·drivers 'a nd, law enforcement. 

Wh i le  it's hard to say just .how effe�tlve DUI checkpoints are compared with- other-enfo rcement m ethods, 
statistics show that. their e·aµcationa l  com ponent.is also debatable: DUI arrests have -remair,ied relatively 
con stant each month since they began in ·september 2005. . '· . 

That m onth, the departm ent recorded 1:25 our- a·r-rests·; ·i n  June. 2007, there were 127. The most between 
those mo nths was this May, at 175.  

The department stopped DUI checkpoints i n  the mid-'9Qs ,amid -concerns of low a rrest rates, Woolridge safd. 
But a fter sheriff's officia ls examined studies that showeq checkpollits,have a deterr.ent eff_ect, the department 
resta rted the program . 

Few arrests, . fewer convictions 

The Arizona Da ily Star reviewed e::ourt cases .of-thos.e arrested-�t the checkpo[nts frcm1 September 2005 
through May 2007 arid com pared the -data wlth ch_ecJ<point sta,tl�ticrs frorp the-.Sheriff.s Department. °The 
newspaper o bta ined the 1 1st of checkpoint arrests through a public-records request in June.  

Among the Sta r's findings : 

• Sheriff's officia ls co unted 46,781 '.drivers who went through the checkpoints, most of whom were not 
a rrested or even tested for. being impa i red, 

• Of those drivers who' were-stopped, deputies qrr.es_tl:ld 2�2, 911 .suspicion of drunken drivfng. That accounts 
for 0.6 percent of a l l  drivers ·who went through tl,e_ cJ;t�skpoints. 

• Of the 1 80 DUI cases that have been thro1.;1gh th� _courts, 105,have beer:i dismissed. Defense lawyers point 
to weak evidence, such as a ·lack of  reasonable su'spi�ion ,  and.-constftu.t1ona[ violations as reasons why, 
a l though they say each case is different. 

• Wh i le deputies were ab le  to stop drivers who were perhaps the most egregious offenderst they a lso 
snagged some who were far. below the -DUI level .  Still, .Arizona law -prohibits drivers from getting behind the 
wheel if they're impai red to the slightest degree. 

http://www.azstarnet.com/sn/printDS/198236 I lo 9/6/2007 
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• Al though  most of the arrests or  citations at checkpoints were DUI -rela ted, more than 100 were not. 
Ci tations ranged from p0ss1?s5jon nf m;:irij 1 1;:m;;i tn rl rivin!J nn a s1 1srended l icense. /J3 
Outcom es i n 2 2  cases couldn't be determ i ned because corr.e_sp_ondlng co.urt records coµ ldn't be found despite 
an extensive sea rch . Th e Sheriff's Department a lso could not find re�ords- in those cases. 

Five to 30 deputies can staff a checkp9int, statistics �how, with_ 9 few serge;mts at each checkpo int, too. Six 
to 12 sheriff's vol unteers assist the . . off'icers,  Woolri �ge ,saiq. , 

In the last two years,  the agency has Sf?et:it ,about $:142,QOO ·on o_vertim�. pay- for checkpo ints, data show. If 
divided u p yea rly, th<:1t accounts for a stzable· amour\t of the funds .from the. National Highway Traffic Safety 
Administration and the state, ai;:cording to a,cal�ulati .bn,oJ. b qdg,�t 891.:.!fE;!S.'.. 

About $ 120,000 o f  the federa l money given to Arizona . went i:o the Sheriffs Department in fiscal  2007 to help 
pay for deputies' overtim e  at checkpoints and DUI patrols; said :Miehael-_ Heg?3rty, -th:e di:puty d irE}ctor of  the 
Governor's Office of Highway Safety. The st9te giv.es the -money to· Pih1a· county, which then diwies rt up to 
local agenci es,  inc luding the Sheriff' s Depart:ment. _ , ,  

Among the checkpoints with tb_e most deputies was .. one conducted d 1,1ring Labor Day weekend in 2005. 
Records show 27 deputi es staffed the checkpoint for qiore th9n three hours; n etti ng four  a rrest_s at North La 
Chal la  Boulevard and  West Ruthrauff Road out of 5-7 1. drivers w.h·o·,passed throug h .  " . 

But to som e  DUI -checkpo in t  proponents,  hassles for so many -sober -drivers a re wo rth it even if the stops 
cause delays. 

"Inco nvenience is a way of l ife, " said Kelly Larkin, ex�cutive director of the Tucson affi l iate of Mothers Against 
Drunk Driving . Even if the cases against d rivers get dismissed,. she said,  "It got  them off the streets that 
n ight. "  · · 

In creased enforcement 

Pal Ham a pproached the DUI checkpoint on West Picture .Rocks Road near Sagu a ro National Park West on 
Sept. 4,  2006. Before -he got oehind the wheel�_,he-1 �- had � - few peers - three to -be �act, he said. 

. . 

Deputies a rrested Ham;  74, on a drunken'-dt'iving · ch.arge, c�urt rec:.�rds show. :H� pleaded gui lty- after b!owihg 
a 0 . 1 05 percent b lood-a lcohol  content, and sa id he- speri.t a night: iri jail . 

To this  date, _ he has m i_xed feel ings about . th� ,cJ,eckpo!,11ts. 

"I cou ld g et a long without them," ·he sa id, ''unti l one_ of my· loved ones·'.gets ki l led. " 
. ' ' ' 

Ham's case ep itom izes why checkpoints are worth th_e tlme, . proponents say. 

Sti l !, the most wldely _citeq f] l ternat�ve to sq_br!ety checkpo ints are "s?Itura tion patrols,"  which increase the 
number of  pol ice officers on . the str:eets··to" 16ok for drunken ·drivers� · . : 

' . 
. . . .. f. .. . . :i • .  � .  

- . ' 

Thus, lawyers and  checkpoint crltics -say, - defendants ha��;m0re ·�vicje(11.;e _again·st them- as officers can 
observe more tel l ta le s igns of impairment, such as ·"Yeavirig or stopping ,13t a - green l ight. 

' 
.;,' � . . . 

Some agencies, i n clud ing the Tucson Police Department, hc;1ve stopped - conducting checkpoints, a spokesm a n  
said, but h e  cou ld  not elaborate. 

Nonetheless, Hegan;y, ,the Gov�mor's Office- ,of Highy,.,a,y Safi;� qffi_cia l, �aid a puI che_cJ<polnt is 11not about 
arresting; it's about having a pre$ence -aiJcl;.�-dl!i::ating .tMe·1�omruunity. !'.' · ·. . 

I ' ·� � 
- ; • •  ' 

• 

Here and  in other states, authori ties' plan to · coritinue ·using-.c_heckp9ints as part of their arsena l  aga inst 
drunken driving .  

In  fact, state and focal officials a re p lanning a crackdown on  dru nken driving this Labor Day  weekend that wi l l  
Include a checkpoint i n  Pi ma County. 

"We're here to catch impa i red drivers,"  Woolridge said at the Ju ly 4 ·checkpoint. "This isn't a fishing 
expetlition . "  

One professor wh o  has  studied the  effectiveness of DUI ch eckpoints said h is  results show that  checkpoints 
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11 · \ b · l °t fl .,(/were a ssociated with a 20 percent reduction i n  drunken-driving crashes in the Maryland-Vi rgin ia�Washington, 
/ D.C. , a rea . � . . . 

But that's  only " i f  they a re done o�en enough and pub lifized," �alcl Kenneth H. Beck, a professor of public 
a n d  commun ity hea lth a t' the Un ivers.ity of Marylimd. "otherwise, they're not· l ikely to get the deterrent 
effect."  · ·  · 

Today, Beck sa id, checkpdints are m uch'· nio're:co0mon -�at_lonwfde. But of the_ more than 1 ; 5  mi l l ion people 
who are arrested for drinking and drivi ng each year,�he sa id, "far  more are arrested ·o utside of checkpoints." 

Th e questio n  of such checkpoints '  effeetiyeness; t'1�n;--cpfnes down to perspective . 
. 

' ,· . . ' � · .'· . - . ' ' . 
"One of the a rguments is tha t  there.- is a' gener:.a l  p·uollt:.aWar'en_ess factor, '-' said .R0ger Hartley, a n  associate 
professor of publ ic  a dmin istration _a�d pol icy _a t  the Un iv·ersity

,-
of Arizona '·s Eller Col lege of Management. 

"But if  it was worth the cost, they'd do it a l l t�e time. " 

Com pare h ow -effective various  DUI checkpoints ·have been over the past two years in an fnteractive map at 
www.azstarnet.com/crlme. 

-- ---- - - -- -----
By the numbers 

• Drivers stopped at checkpoints :  46,781 

• Fie ld-so briety tests: 1,168 

• our- related arrests: 282 

• DUI cases dism issed: 105* 

• DUI convictions: 75* 

*102 cases sti l l  p:ending. 

Source: Arizona Daily Sta r ana[ysis of Pima Courity Sher.iff;s,.oe·partment D U.I checkpoint arrest 
data and . Pi01a Co unty. Consol idated·Justice .½our.t r\a.COrds; .f:_rom SeP.tember 2005 to May 2"007. 

Did you Know •••  

Th e  Legislature changed Arizona's DUI bfood-a lcoho.l eontent' from 0.10 percent to 0 .08 percent in Sept�mber 
200 1 .  The new faw was pro mpted partly by a 2000 federill  l ao/ _that wit_hholds some h ighway money to states 
that have not adopted the l ower l im it: 

· · 

OUT Next WEEKEN D 

Officers wi l l  be on specia l weE\kend DUI enfcii;cerrierit q��a ifs, Laf:io·r "C�flY. w:eekerid,- tfie Pima County Sheriff's 
Department sa fd, which wil l i ncl ude sobri�ty '.Gheckpolnts and saturation patrols. The enfo rcement rs part of a 
nationa l  anti-DUI campaign that begah': in mid::-August. 

• Contact reporter Jack Gillum at 573-4 178 or af}gilfum@azstarilet.aom. 

All content copyright.© -1 999-2007 Az_StarNet-. Arizona Daily Star and its wire services and suppliers 
and may-not be republisht�d \vtthout" P,etrnis&ibn . .Ali' piglits _res<;ried. Any copying; redistribution� or 

retransmission of any of the conteQt� ·ofthis " setv.ice withoutih'e expressed written consent of Arizona 
Daiiy;Star or kzSiarNet· is prohibited. 
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Wel l i ngton, Russ ian students creating bus iness 

D istrict's appea rance is centra l issue 

Seventh Son to open Brewery District taproom as Antiques on  H igh 

More roadwork to ·sh ut down 315 

New cou rse best medic ine for wou ld-be docs 

ODOT pla ns upgrades to U .S .  33 at Fishinger 

More Articles 

Enla rge I mag� -Reques·t to- 1:Dti!'t.tlnis phot0ll>is19a,tch fi le  r,hotoColi!.lmbus police have a ccewted·'nearly 
$225,000 in gra nt funds t0 ·c�nduct- checkpoi11ts ·eaclil yea.r. ".(Colt!m'bus_;poli�e)j�st fei;?l{twasn't a n  
appropriate use offonds ·a ru:J m�1 1:ipower/ .,sp id. M icha_eJ:Br,ini1<1�, a: law:ei;ifor,c_:ement officer- l ia ison for the 
Ohio Traffic Safety Office. 

- -�, · . · · -�. -� � ·---, By Beth Burger The Columbus Dispat�rsday October 6� 5:4,f M 
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The Co lumbus  Division of Pol ice has d ismantled its task force -responsible for sobriety checkpoints after 
the po l ice ch ief decl ined to accept gra nt funds, mu ltiple sources confirmed Wednesday. 

"It is with great d isa ppointment that I report to _you that Columbus Division of Po llce no longer has a 
fo rma l  OVI task force," Traffic Bureau Sgt. M1chael Smith ·to ld law enforcement partne rs in a n  internar 
ema i l  o bta ined by The Dispatch . "By order of Ch ief Jacobs, grant funding has been decl ined to fund 
future sobriety checkpoint operations." ,...., ______ ..,, ___ _ 
The ema il, which was sent Tuesday, did not say why Chief Kim Jacobs decided to decl ine funding. 

Jaco bs was unava i lable for comment Wednesday and  d id not respond to a n  ema il. with questions. A 
spokesma n  sa id the ch ief is the on ly one who wot:1 ld be ab le to explain the decision .  

Co l umbus pol ice h ave accepted nea rly $225,000 in grant funds to  conduct checkpoints .each y 

"(Co lumbus pol ice) just feel it wasn't an  appropriate use of funds and manpower," sai · ichae l  Brining, 
a�ejiforceme.nt Officer liaison�fofThe'Un-:-:!10=--f,-:r:'::':ffiti'r.::ic-cS�a�ti:e:.=:ty:-:-''i"lo:-.i:im::,�c?:::e:-. --"-. ·--...-;...._-r---'..-..:--..._. __ .._____,, . . . . � . ""' . -----... 
»>Previou·s story: Are ou r  diecks fair?. 

B rin ing, who �brks a�,a ·grant coordinator with law enfo r.eemer:tt ag_enci�s,. he !p� -de�e-i·mine· wh ich 
depa rtments receh.ie,-how..·m��h te,d�ra l grar:it m0111�y .from the. Nati0nc1l · Highway yr-;:-iffi<::- Safety 
Admin istration. · · 

. . . 
"Columbus a !ways did:a - vigilan.t job -0f 13ositionililg. (o,fficer:s)·where;ther:e were· imp·aii:ed driving and . . , ' _... . - .. ; 

crashes," he .sa id .  
' ' ' • . . . . 

Accord ing to �hi:\ep·faH, Jacobs· d�c-ideGl,to:reject the .gra nts1o'r fl!ltyire--s$.�1;i,ety�che.ckpoirit o·per:ations as 
wel l  as  the m·obi le (Blood Alco�_o -I  �orat(:!nt) trl!!�k. Jl l�tfomn.. · ' .-· 

Until Tuesday, :Co lur:nb.1..1s pofa:e;hac!,tt.ie·-on ly,,€)1//i· ta_sk for:ce- im the··sta_te :Go.tiJposed:of members from a 
single l aw e.ri

forcE:?mep( agency: · · 
· · : · 

-- · .  
· · · · 

The departme_nti �egan sett1Ag.. ':fp:di1!:?Ckp0ir,tts. j_n :2,aiQ·and u�ed gr.a:nt:furids.to -pur.cha�.e the �food 
a lcoho l  testing:tru:tl<�in- 2011. _Then. offfo;ers_ for.ma:IIY: ar.eated ·a (:Q[Jrn�lil$ .. po iice -Qp·er.atfng a·Veh ide 
Intoxicated task force't\y.o_ y�'ars ago/whic� hef!(le,d �ecur:e:gn:ints._� " '  

.. 
. . . ..: . ·�· �- . 

!n 2013, -�he ·Co lumbus:p01 ice ·�-o'nc!uete'if i3 checkpdirtt_s ,ar:id -rha�e a tqtal:_o.t-�·1 0Vl a rrests after a_ tota l 
of 12�73lvehiqres pa�s.ed .through·-th.�!_Gf.iec_kpointsi.acco.rding to ar;i!M.n:u.a'l ·r.epo,rt The· fol lowing-year, 
the most-re���t ·y�a" rfor whith' reb�as)r_e ,�va11able,the nombe·r .-of �he�f<points' i��reased to 20. A tota l 
of 7,280 vehicles passed th(�ugh -th;��fieckpoi�t� and (?ffice�s ·made 53 OVI a rrests. . 

There is some debate over the effectiveness of s0briefy checkpoints. Checkpoints often don 't result in a 
h igh number  of OVI a rrests. 

*' )  
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A Centers for Disease Contro l  and  Prevention review of studies found that checkpoints red uced a lcoho l­
related fata l ,  i njury a nd property crashes by about 20 percent. The ma in  purpose of checkpoints is not to 
increase a rrests, but rather pub l ic awa reness, acco rd in� to the website . 

"The n umber of d rivers eva l uated wou ld be more of an appropriate measure," a ccording to the CDC's 
website . 

Each t ime a checkpo i nt is held, . news re leases a r:e ,s_ent to· med(a outl.ets :to notify,d rivers -0f the locations 
beforehand .  

"Checkpoints a re not  necessarily designed to  be an a rrest .t60 .l, 11 �rin ing sa id .  "They a re a deterrent and  
publ ic education too l ." 

For years, Columbus po l ice have a lso worked with Frankl in  County's OVI Task Force. That task force has 
been a round s ince 1993 and  invo lves severa l l aw enforcement agencies. 

Ch ief Deputy J im G i lbert, of the -Frankl i n  County Sheriff'$.-Offic;:e, who c;>VElrsees the county's ovr Task 
Force, sa id the county wil l continue· to coi1dt,10t·cbeckpoit:1,�s . 

"We find that educating the pub l ic  ori the dar:igers of drunk a riving is Just as importa nt as enforcement 
efforts - checkpoints .ar.id- the pub! i�: release of those checkpoipts. i;i'opefu l ly -ac�ornplishes our goa l  of 
having ind ivid ua ls make better choices when- it conies to getting .behiml-. the wheel if they· have been 

'� drinking, "  he sa id .  

The emai l  states, offic�rs wi l l  most l ikely r�rn,a i,n, pa rt ofth� coui;ity'�tai_kfo_ rce. 

< �:�plans to a l low officers to sti l l  �ceive fund ing that �ould go toward strategica l ly easi:ol l if"!g a rea�.­
where data shows there a[e a h igh vo lume of a lcohol-re lated cra_shes. Officers wi l l . a lso receive funding 
for selective enforcement thafa l ldws' the·m t6,.t�r;get other trnfflc v.io'lat1ons, acc�rd)ng t0 tbe emai l .  

Doug Scoles, state executive d i r:ecto r for Mothers Aga inst .Drunk Driving Oh io; said cutting sobriety 
checkpo ints-wi l l  lead to more deaths. 

"The more (officers) we have out there,,the iess traged ies we have on our roadways, " he sa id .  
· · <  ' 

"Whatever the cause is, we object to it,. b�Cc!US� it'.s. putting the int�rest of pub l i c  safety lower than it 
should be." 

bburger@dispatch.com 
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Lessons Lea:rn�d From Evaluatin._g Maryland's 
Ant . n j._ D ,. . £"l • A. . . . '1'-aTUJiJ.�" r-1v1rng �·<!1.f111ip,(flt.gn·::. = · ssess111:g 
the Eviden.,ce for Cogni.fi:ve, }Jehavioral, and 
Publi-c He,alth .lmpi1.:et 

Kenneth H. Beck, PhD 

The evidence concerning Maryland's anti-drnnk dri- traffic fatality every 31  minutes (NHTSA, 2006d). Addi-
ving program. Checkpoint Strikeforce, is ,re·viewed: . To tionally, an · estimated 240;000 people are injured in 
date, there is n o  evidence to indicate that this cam- ,alcohol-related crash�s (ab9ut one every 2 minutes), and 
paign, whicl1 invofres a number of sobriety checkpoints · more than 1 million people are arrested each year for dri-
and media activitif:!S to promote. these effoi·t's, has ha.d v:i:Q.g under . the influence (:QUI) of alcohol or drugs 
any impact on public perceptions, driver:bebaviors; or (l\11TT:'SA, 2o'o6d). 
alcohol-related motor vehicle ciashes:cihd .'injuries. The nation, has made considerable progress during 
This conclusion is drawn· after e:;mmini11g :t1.ta(istics f01: , -tb.e pas.t several decad_es at reducil').g the number of 
alcohol-related crashes, police citations. for impaired people who are fatally injured in, alcohol-related 
driving, and public perceptions of afoohol-impafred crashes (Williams, 2006). However, after experiencing 
driving risk. Comparisons . are also . made wit� other a more. thru.i 20-year dqwnward trend, alcohol traffic 

ates in the i11id-Atlantic region, whei'e similar cam-' fatalitie.s started to increase in 2000.  The reasons for 
aign activities have occurred. Reasons for t111·s failure . this increase are not entirely clear. Nevertheless. this 

J!l,l1a land include insu 'cient levels 'bfeijf0rqel)1�nb prompted renewed efforts to mobilize· anti-drunk dri-
. (e . . , too ew sobiie . .  c ieck oints an ve 1ic e contacts . ying efforts � an, atte}Jlpt to reverse this problem. It 
�ccurred to raise ub]ic perceptions O ·ris- - � 91nivg · . · · appe�s ·that some progress has been ·made, as consis­
�aired driving] an · ma · eqilate publidity sur- · tent 0.ecreases in alcohol-related traffic fatalities started 
rounding tl1is campaign. Suggestions for overcoming to appear in 2003.  
these problems are offered. Unfortunately, Maryland has not enjoyed the same 

Keywords: impaired driving; sobiiety cl1eckpoints; 
public awareness 

D
rinking and driving is one of the most frequent 
causes of premature morbidity and mortality in 
this country. According to the most -recent i11:for­

mation put out by the National Highway Traffic Safety 
Adminislrntion (NHTSA). there were 16,885 alcohol­
related traffic fatalities in 2005. This represents 39% of ail 
traffic fatalities and equates to about one alcohol-related 
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improvement in re�ent years. The number of alcohol­
related traffic fatalities has remained relatively con­
stant_ durir).g the .past .6 years (1999-2004). This is even 
more apparent when one ·examines the percentage of 
traffic fatalities that are alcohol-related in Maryland 
compared to the nation since the mid-1990s (Figure 1}. 
The relative advantage that Maryland once enjoyed 
compared to the nation as a whole disappeared in 2000 
and, to date, shows no signs of tecovery. 

The Checkpoint Strikeforce campaign was devel­
oped in response t.o the recent rise in alcohol-related 
traffic fatalities. This campaign was initiated in the 
Author� Note: Tl1is investigation was supported by the Maryland 
Highway Safety Office of the State Highway Administration, Maryland 
Deparlment of 'Il-ansportation. Their r.ooperotian i,; acknowledged. 
Please. address correspondence to Kenneth H. Beck, PhD, Depaxtmenf 
of Public and Community Health. University of Maryland. College 
Park, Jvm 20742-261 1: e-mail: kbeck1@umd.edu. 
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SOURCE: National Highway Traffic Safety Administration (2006a). 

mid-Atlantic region of the country and j,ncluded t:J:ie 
states of Pennsylvania, Delaware, West Vu:ginia, Virgµii� •. 
Maryland, and the District of Cplumbia.: ,T.b,e,campaign" 
began in 2002 under the auspices of NHTSA, wh'o .. 
worked with state agencies to facilitate various eriforce- •. 
ment and public awareness activities tl1at �omp.iise,d · 
this effort. . · 

One of the key components of the Checkpoi;nt 
Strikefor_ce campaign was _th:e -qs� - �f r:oai:isJ.�e · scibriety,­
checkpomts (NHTSA, 1 987, 1990); Bcibriety checkpoints 
have been shown to be effective at �·educing -the- ilumber 

-� of alcohol-related crashes as well as. single:vehicle.night-
, time crashes (Lacey, Jones, & Smith, 1999; Levy, Asch, & 

Shea, 1 990; Levy, Shea, & Asch, 1989). At _ a .s·obriety 
ch_eckpoint, law enforc�ment_ offl.cers·. systematically stpp 
dr:vers to assess possibl�--- impairment. If suspic:ion i's 
raised, then roadside . sobriety- and. chemical tests 1are- per­
formed to determine if the _ driver is ��g_ally iii1paired 
(Elder et al . ,  2002). The checkpoint'.s · primary geal is to 
deter drinking and driving· by increasing a driver's per-
ceived risk of arrest. . · · · · ·· · 

In addition to ·agg:i'essive enfor�eihent, . highway 
safety experts ar,gue that increa,sed rpedi.� cov.erage·. is 
�so .necessary tb · pro;:Jpce , �his in6reasrHn . .  per�ei,ved 
hkehhood of arrest (Elder et · aL ; - '2002; Elder Eit ·al, , 
2004; Fell, Ferguson, Williams, · & Fields 2003 ·· Mercer 
1985) .  Thus, the Checkpoint Strikeforce

1

c�1:i·�ign �a; 

accomp;mied by paid  as well as earned media that pro­
moted the campaign and generally informed the public 
of its e,gstence. The nature and amount of these media 
activ.itfes varied from state to state. 

lrl Maryland, the 6-month campaign began in July 
2002: This'_period ran from July through the first week in 
J�uary_and,�E.:co�p_a9sed Independence Day. Labor Day, 
�alltrw.een; Thanksgiving, c;hrisµnas, and New. Year's 
Bay: A. st:nmnary_ of the pertinent enforcement and paid 
media aetivitie$ is presented in Table 1. During each of 

· the first :;:r years, '.the Checkpoint Strikeforce ·operated as a 
6-m�nth · damp�gn from July through January. In 2005 
qheckpoint Strikeforce became a yearlong campaign, 
wi�-.ih�reased enforcement . acti.�ities foi 12  months. 

. TI1e evidence indicates that people who were exposed 
to :this ei�p'aign (i. e., personal.ly �e1,1t through a check­
j:)oint odcnew someo.ne who had) had gl'.eater feelings 
of vulneEaoility . to being -stopped , by the; · police if they 

. werEl. drinkiIJ,g·:and dri�g th;m ·those pe(!ple who were 
' mE:Jrl:lly �viia,Fe _bf;j;he campaign but had hdt:been person­
a11\Y,:· _expose� ·.iit. any, - way to it (Beok , &; Mos.er, 2004). 
F.m:fuermore; thos·e peopfowh,o felflt Wcl.S certain Of very 
likely that t)n:ey w0uld be, stopp_eq._ by. the poµce if they 
. drove after drinking .too �uch- reported that they were 
les� likely t0 drive after - th-inking (Beck .& Moser, 2006). 
The ,pµrpGJse of tills article is to examine the effect of the 
caril.paigji ·drirlng -tlie, .fu_st '3 years. The effect of this cam­
.i?.ai�n was examined . : £ram seve_raj. perspectives that 
inc:;lu·4ed �hmhol-r13latecl traffic· fatalities and crashes, cita­

-�ons for �cohol-re!ated . traffic offens?s, public percep-
tio;11s of campaign exposure and personal vtilnerability to 
_be�ng.stopped.fot drinking and driving, and people's self­
repotted ¥uking -and driving behavior. 

�M
E
THOD 

l}l�ohpl' <!:iashes, Injuries, and Citations 

. _.Fata�.ty ��ta _ _ were. · o�tained . .  from NHTSA's Fatality 
Analys1s,Re.porting System (FARS). Alcohol�related traffic 

. . . TABLE- � 
Highlight�· of. M�ryland,!s· 6heckpoint �trikefor,c� .Campaign 

. . . : . . . . 

Activity 

No. of  checkpoints 
Vehicle contacts 
DUI arrests 
Paid media" 

: Yeqr-, 1 -
. Jul 2002�Jari 2003 . . .  · ·. , 

66 ' 
22j47 
, 133 

$100 ,000 
SOURCE: National Highway Traffic Safety Admi\1istration (2006b). 
a. Data are from the Maryland Highway Safety Office. 

Ye'ar·2 
Jul 2{

J

03-J�n 29:0� 

. 6.6 
57-,913 

_376 
$105_,000 

Year 3 
Jul 2004 Jan 2005 

74 
39,023 

220 
$150 ,000 
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TABLE .2 
Maryli311d ,Alcoliol Traffic Statistics 

B�fore Gampaign During Campaign 

·1 99'9 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 

Alcohol-related total crashes 8,540 8 ,85'() 9 ,045 9,05 6 9 ,089 8 ,859 
3-year averages 8 .8,1  9,001 

Alcohol-related injury crashes 3 ,679 3 ,67'5 3 ,762 3 ;765 3,500 3 ,329 
3-year averages 3 , 705 3 ,531  

Alcohol:related fatality crashes 192 179 197 182 163 207 
3-year averages 189_ 

Total alcohol-related fatalities• 215 · 240 282 
184 

276 281 286 
3-year averages 245 281 

Alcohol-related injured drivers 2 ,386 2 ,331 2,418 2,436 2 ,210  2,21 6 
3-year averages 2,378 Z,287 

Alcohol-related injured pedestrians 260 243 267 254 322 265 
3-year averages 256 280 

Alcohol-related. citations 27,214 26,502 25,028 25,709 25,765 26,349 
3-year averages (before and during) . 26�24'8 25 ,941 

SOURCE: Maryland State . Highway Administration;' bffice,of '.fr�ffic and $af�ty, Tr�ffic .Safety Analysis Division. 
a. Data are from the National Highway Traffic· Safety Adminis

t

ration (2006a):. . .  

checkpoints. In the first year, these items were pilot 
.,...---.._,. tested in a telephone survey, and· no interpretational or 

sponse problems were detected. 

· RESULTS 
Public Health Impact 

There was no evidence that alcohol-related fatalities 
or crashes improved during the first 3 years of-this qam­
paign (see Table 2) .  If anything, the total' numbe:i;s ·of 
alcohol-related fatalities, crashes, aJ?.d i�iw;ed �ivers and 
pedestrians in Maryland were greater during .the 3syear 
campaign than before. Fi.uthermore; there - ·w·as no evi­
dence of an overall increase in statewide edforce.i:nent, as 
indicated by alcohol-related cit�tidns. On average, .there 
were fewer statewide citations during the 6am paign: than 
before. 

The proportion of fatalities that were- alcohol-related -
was compared over this time period for .ali the other 
states (excluding the District of Columbia dµE? to its low 
number of - fatalities) in the mid-Atlantic :i:�gio,n duripg 
the campaign. The results (Figure 2) , indicate that com­
pared the other surrounding states, ali::ohol fatalities 
were worse in Maryland. Further evidence indicated 
two marginally statistically significant (p < .06) differ­
ences : Delaware experienced a lower proportion of alco­
hol fatalities during the campaign (40%) compared to 3 

8, 45 

1 4

0 

8!_ 35 

•• • . 6 · · • · · · • • · · ·,6.. 

. . .  ·: · ·· ·  . . ·· . . . . . 
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' . . . . 
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· · ·6· · ·  Dela.ware 

2001 2002 
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-·Virginia -o-West Virginia 
- elf- - P.enrisylvao!a _ 

F;I:µURE _2 Alccthol Fatalities as a·Percentage of Total Fatalitfos 
SOpRCE: National Highway "I:raffic Safety Administration (2006a}. 

years before (47%), whereas Maryland experienced a 
· greater:proportion during {43 %) than before (40%). West 
Virginia experien�ed a steady decline during this time 
,per.iod and,had the 19.,.west alcohol fatality rate in 2004. · These analyses - were also performed for other states 
that were nodocated in the mid-Atlantic region and 
djd nofhllow· cp.eckpoints to be conducted under their 
state law (NHTSA, 2006c), Minnesota, Oregon, and 
Washingtou_ were selected because they had- a relatively 
comparable number of total fatalities per year to 
Maryland: No significant differences were detected. 
Thus , Mar-yland's results resembled those states that do 
·uot conduct any sobriety t;heckpoints. 

Beck / MARYLAND'S ANTI-DRUNK DRIVING CAMPAIGN 373 

,\_ ___ ,/ 



TABLE 3 
Sample Characteristics 

Year 1 . Year 2 Year. 3 
(n = 1 , 725) (n = 1 ;650) (n = 1 ,7,00} 

% % % 

Geuder 
Male 36 .9  39 .0  36 . 3  
Female 6 3 . 1  6 1 . 0  6 3 . 7  

Ethnicity 
White 72.9 72.9 73 .5 

Age group 
1 6-20 3 . 7  3 . 3  2,8 

21-29 11 . 1  11 . 2  1;1 : 5  
30-45 36 .3  32 .5  : 3 1., 6 
46-64 35 . 5  36 ,4 40.3 
65+ 13 .4 16 ; 7  16 . 7  ' ·  

·:- . .  

Public Perception Impact 

The demographic compositiQn of the telephone ._s:ur.: 
� veys did not vary from year_ to year (see :TaWe ;3J. . . E�cl;l­

··.year, the samples were more likely to. contam;ferri:a:Ies·,than 
males. However, this was a copsta.Qt ;bias -�aCUO$.S y_e8]!s; 
therefore, it did affect the year-to-year eo�np/'li:isoils.. 

The public was more likely to· report ,be.mg ��-O§_ed­
to a checkpoint_ in Years 2 and 3 (see· Table- 4'). This.: 

corresponded with the increased number of vehicle con­
tacts and DUI arrests that were. made in the second and 
thir1 ye�s of the campaign. However, despite this 
increased contact with sobriety checkpoints, feelings of 
vulnerability to bei11g stopped by the police for drinking 
and driving actually dec;;reased. Also; people were less 
likeJy. to- re.port th�t 9.t4er_ drivers were drinking and dri­
$g "less ofte1*·- . · .  

'F�eling$ bf  vulnerability were e�amined separately 
fqr males anp. females; i.).11ci similar trends were detected. 
For_ each gender, vu),neiability decr!3_as!3d significan�ly 
in the seco:µd ·.anti .thifd years. Vulner.abi1ity was also 
examined: foi· 2.1-29:year-old. drivers, those considered 
.wbst. itkel ifo b� t�get_ed_ by this 9ampaign. Vulperabil­
ity· decteased iri '·the .,second aµd t\iird years. Hc:iwever, 
<this '"YEIS cpiifil),ed to females. Fema\es were significantly 
(p < .b5} l\l�s· Iikely:ttil µiirik they wo_u�¢1. be st9pped by the 
p'91lice in fhe .secio#dJ23:�%j or third (27 .2°/o)year of the 
c�paign. com,p_aued to · the . .fj.rs� (36.8%). Tliere was no 
c)#feien·�e-hi,flerceJv.ed),tJ.l�eraqHity to  being stopped by 
i:he ·polidi atros·s - the first 3 years of this campaign for 
male e,lriver$' 21-'29 yeal1S · Clifage. 

l'.inally, vulnerability was examined in those parts 
of the state that were more likely to be reached by the 
.media. Drivers from.those counties comprising the major 
metdia maiik_ets (i.e:, thms_e. aroun_d Baltimore; Washington, 
DC; 0r the Eas,tet:q.. Sh0ref were compared .to drivers from 
the other .counties: Thei:e,.was no sjgilificant di,fference in 
p13:i:0e1v.ed :v.ulnerabHity . . Those are8$ of tlie · state that 
sh9nl'd "11aye b�eh . .  more :likely to receive vari�us public 

T:ABLE. 4 
Exposuiie, Per¢eptioris, and:Beh<J.viors . 

• ' , . ' ' r 
• 

Exposure 
Exposed to a checkpoint 
Aware of checkpoints 
Unaware and unexposed 

Perceptions 
Likely you would be stopped by police : 
Drinking drivers more,likeiy to be s·topped 
Saw police on the roads ·more often 

Behaviors 

¥ear 1. 
(n = � ,7.25} 

%' . 

9.4" 
20 ._5 · 
67;8· 

-30'.'3· 
3?,5� 
27:9 

,_ 

Driven within 2 hours of drinking 9 :6 
Driven after drinking too much ·1 .,1 . .  - ; - .  
Currently drinking and driv:i,ng less often 4.� 

· .  \ 

Others are drinking and driving less often 22,6" 

-�NOTE: Percentages �itb differ�nt superscripts ·differ signi�cantly (p <- .6�) fro1J1;�-a�;i- �tlier. 
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Year 2 
(n = . 1 , 650) 

%. 

14 .6b 

20 .5  
· :54,9 

:24,ob 
32 .0b 

30 .84 

12 .,1 
1 , 2_· 
3 .4 

12 . 1 1> 

Year 3 
(n = 1,700) 

% 

13 .2" 
22.4 
64.3  

23 .2b 

28. 3 "  
26 .4b 

9 ,5  
. 5  

3 . 5  
14,5"  



--- service announcements that 'promoted this _campaign were 
10 more likely to experience an increase· in' V11lnerabi'lity 
to being stopped' by the police· foi drinking and ·driving. 

: · -- ,- DISCUSSION 
The Checkpoint Strikeforce campaign i1l' J\7faryland'Jias · 

not succeeded in raising public, .perceptions of .the l�giµ 
risks of drinking an:d\Iriifing. -Ncir·has '.it rechiced aJcohol­
related traffic crashe's : arid fat'aliti:es. Furtl1erp:7.ofe, on.e 6� 
the crucial componeriil of this · ciunp�(g1i_,; au·-h1cr�ase in· 
statewide citations for alco46l�iinpafred ativi11g;. ,dfd no-f 

occur. The survey clatl:l inclic:'ated µiat p_uJjlic 'percepti'pns , 
of vulnerability to being. stopped:by-the ·p0li�e if one were 
to drink and· drive actually declined stguif\c�tly during. 
the course of the c�paigri: Also, drivew�xr tb.i: l's'e_:areas of 
the state where media exposure wo�ld- be,expected' 'to be 
greater (i.e . ,  in the Baltimore and Washington,. DC; ·me't!O'" 
politan areas) were not more llkely to feel vtUnerabl� 
than those in otl1er regions. Thus, the otb:�r- .crucial · ele­
ment of this campaign�increased public awarene�i-�ciid . 
not occur. 

" · 

Increasing Enforcement 

Any campaign th;it pr01riotes the Iiotiori that the 
police are likely to cat.ch you if you ha:v:e been ·drin¼n;ig . 

d driving has to be-backed_ up with realify. Unfortu:-· 
ately, more drunk driving·-arrests did ·rtof qt'i::u'F. Inic,er- , 

tain jurisdictions, the police may feel that· less· prtb·i:-ity 
should be given to alcohol-related traffic citations than 
to other more serious (at least to them)" vfolations. 
Furthermore , p olice officers may feel disinclined- to 
make an arrest given the amotmt of timl f it {a'k!l�· tg 
process an offender (that takes the police officer out of 
active service) ; the matter of obtaining the necesiiary 
evidence of impairment;' frustration that the eventual 
penalty may be reduced through-pJ�a bc!rgail,l_i?.g or _other 
legal maneuvering to a lesser ·offense; and -the tinie, 
embarrassment, and humiliation they may encounter 
from aggressive defense attorneys who .cal f them as wtt• 
nesses during the trial of the- drunk driving offend�r . . 
Fel l ,  Lacey, and Voas (2004) mention that lack of local 
police force resources and funding, lack of support by, 
task forces and citizen activists; and the perception that 
checkpoints are neither productive nor cost-effective, are­
the main reasons why checkpoints are not used. 

Undoubtedly. the initiative· and leaders4ip role ,for 
making impaired driving arrests is set by the coinmanding 
officers. If the police station's commanding officer views 
drunk driving as an important issue and is committec;l'- to 
conducting sobriety checkpoints and issujng,cifations , it 
seems that officers in his or her unit will be more likely to 
allow suit. Conversely, if such activities are viewed as 

� ,  
r\, � \ '-1 \..\2. 

-:, · \?, ' \ q 
lower priorily (especially in relation to post-9/11 security \ ___ ,/ 
concerns) , costly, and manpower intensive, it seems 
unlikely that there, .will be an incr_ease. It appears that 
although there - was a j1.u11p in campaign-specific sobriety 
checkpoint activities in the second year, there was no evi-
dsnce ·that ' this increase p'ercolated through the rest of 
Marylfad's enforcement community. 

Eve:ri mote telling is an examination of the sobriety 
checkp9int activity in West V1rginia, where alcohol­
impaired: fatalities declined throughout the first 3 years of 
the -cam'paign. In 2004, West V1rginia riot only conducted 
�ore checkpoints (91)-but made more vehicle contacts 
(68A2�) than Maryland (74 and 39.,023, respectively; 
NHTS4, 2006b). Yet West V1rginia's population is approx­
imatelef 2 .  9 _ tirnes smaller than Maryland's. West Virginia's 

· success appears to · be because of the higher level of 
_enforcement. For ihstance, in Year 3 of the campaign, it 
conducted approximately 5 checkpoints and 3,700 vehi­
cle contacts for·every 100,ooo residents: During this time, 
Maryland conducted only approximately 1 .4 cl1eckpoints 
and 736 vehicle contacts for every 100,000 residents. This 
suggests that unless Maryland's sobriety enforcement 
activity r_eaches a· per capita threshold comparable to 
We$t 'virginia;s. it' is unlikely to experience significant 
dec,reases in alcohol-re_lated traffic fatalities. 

M�tivatin'g -the police to make more arrests for 
inipaireq:: 'drivin:g,may ·be ·a �ubstantial challenge. fuo '-....J 
spe.cific,suggestl:ons are offered to make -this happen. 
'Fhe··ffost_is' increa:sed' tr:aining .in DUI- detection, appre­
h�rision, and: cbnvictiori. Officers--·need to be motivated 
to ma:ke m0r,e _alcqhoi-impaired traffic stops and higher 
G_Itlality·alcohol.:related arrests (i.e . , .those thatdo not get 
throw.n out or plea bargained - to a lesser offense in 
court}. _Trp.ining·· that exposes the officers to a broader 
but more- intensive bacl<ground on the historical, soci-
etal, psychological, and legal aspects of drinking and 

· :  dri_ving may enhance their skills and motivation to 
I_nake alcohol:.related driving arrests. Such a program 
has been initiated at the University of Maryland in 
which police officers are exposed to an intensive, 
weeklong course on these topics. _ In addition, state 
attorneys als0 provide detailed)nstruction on permis-

. sible forms of evidence and explain when it is appro­
priate to conduc.t a- roadside st0p and a standardized 
field sobriety test of-alc0hol impairment. This in�class 
material is followed by a . mock court e>..-perience in 
which officers are subjected to courtroom procedures 
where their testimon.y,fa challenged by a defense attar� 
ney. The officer's p erformance is critiqued and sugges­
tions are given concerning how to withstand defense 
attorney cross - examination. The officers find this por­
tfon of 'the course particularly valuable. 

The second suggestion for increasing enforcement ; 
is to enlist the support of key influential people and \_____,,,' 
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opinion leaders within the enforcement community. This 
would involve commanders within each of the Maryland 
State Police barracks as well as in the, mmiicipal police 
deparbnents. There is little to no evidence that tli�s -has 
occu1Ted. Conversations ·with members of ·the Maryland 
State Highway Administration indicate that�sqme ,pplice 
chiefs are not really on board vvith this program. 'They 
either do not believe in sobriety checkpoints 'or- think they 
would require too much m�pdy.,er:to conduct and::w;ou:ld 
yield proportionately few -�cohol-tel�ted ,-citations rsila� 
tive to the time and money investecC conv.incµJg . t:he 
entire enforcement comµrunity th_at.th.e pr�ary -pm:po_se 
of checkpoints is to iJicreruie public perceptions .of the' 
drinking and driving risk, not necessarily t�·-make a .DUI 
arrest, will be challenging. Hbwever; the1·!3 hav�.been d_oc­
umented cases that sobriety_ eheckpoints, .catch;more .than 
drinking drivers. Ntunerb'ils,drugs, weapcms,-�aatbeltviCJ:. 
lations, and otl1er felony arres,ts · hav.e, a:lso occurrec;i_ at 
checkpoints · (NHTSA." 20Q6bJ_ . Chectpoints haye- payqffs 
in other enforcem�nt do�a:ins 'besid13� ·alcohoHmpa.i:ted1 
driving, and this -n'la y help ccJrivfnce ·s0171e _of these .police 
commanders of their'- bei:iefit · . . .  ' · · · · · 

Increasing Public Awareness , · 

Increasing public awarep�ss thro4gh mediaoup-eac4)s. 
also needed, along with _· inci:�ased enfor�einent . There _ 
was no evidence froni_ �e · survey dsit? that -the· t:arripaigµ 
changed public per:ceptJons ·or beha'vi,o;rs. Tue qosage-�d' 
duration of Maryland's pubµr;: rriedia GalJ?.paigij-was il:lsu{-: 

:ficient to produce detectable and susuµned, :changl?_S in_ ·  
public peroeptions . of- vu.µi�abi1ity. The · $10Q;CJOO fa , 
$150,000 Maryland committed each yepr t0 'pr9mote this 
campaign was inadequate. to achieve suffi'cient audi'enc.e 
reach and frequen0y of exposure. Clearly, :.moi:� money 
will be needed for paid medfa, 'along with bJetter·,w�ys of­
obtaining earned media: Tiie advantage of ;�atned media, 
in which the event (i.� .• sobriety checkpo'iRt} is' covered as 
a news story by the local news ·stations, is that.it ·does not 
require any cost. Creative and entertaining.strategies that 
can be used to engage the eljd;i:oriic anfprint,meclia, wilf 
help generate earned m'e&a and can -be used -fo supple� . 
ment the paid media. Eng9-ging and �etworl(4lg w:itb. :i;ep;­
resentatives of the meqj.a, 1>houl� ·help :faBiljtate ··these , ,  
efforts. In addition, ·the · enforeement commm;rit,y. itself,· 
needs to enhance its ability for media outreach ·a.J:ild plan 
proactively how it will prornote . its:operatio_naJ activities.· 

_: � CONCLUSIONS 
It takes time to see an effect. It is unlikely that even 

,..,---·,)f substantial changes occurred in sobriety campaign 
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activities,  the results would be immediately detectable. 
Abrµpt-:changes in crash rates, fatalities , or even citations 
may take several years to become st?tistically significant 
In addition, it rliay_ be hard .to sustain campaign momen­tu'-rn, . especia1ly : if these p�blic health outcomes do not 
improve �bstantially;. Although beha:vioral and percep­
tfon data may .provid� ,a. ·more. immediate indication of 
p.1:omlsfug 1rengs,· f:hos_e.a�µ1ini�t.rat�rs and policy makers 
who .ultianatel.y._contnil ,jheJinffi}clal and.human ri?sources 
fpl,' such · effoits are ,m_ost ,likely to be persuaded by hard 
f�cts (j.e., · l'e<llu(::µons in crashes, injuries, aIJ.d fatalities). 
N�v�rllieless, public opipion ·data can be used _to show 
whei'E! campai@.l irriproyements ne�d. to be ma�e. where 
pJomising. tJ:e.nas ?)dst,_ <)lld what public sentiment is con­
cerning sobriety chec�points. 

Currently; Maryland is doi:µg too· little in the area of 
impai.Ded ru:iving ,P.FeyentiOil, This raises' the question as 
to.whether.this state ha�,the_ p olitjcal wi.11 to combat this 
p:rbolem. A iecent iepm.'t .issued by Mothers Against 
Drunk Dri.vmg (MABD) gave Mary lan_d on.ly the grade of 
C for its anti-din.m� iliivirig effor.ts (M!\])Il, 2006). This 
c0mposite graal,e was Jiase.d 011, - a variety of indicators, 
including ._its laws on , drunk dri¥in.g. Among specific 
measure�. Mary,lan.d earned only the grade of D for 
its administrative measures and criminal sanctions for 
cdrurlk clr,ivers,. _indicatmg a ;taieNVide t�ndency to be 
rather- lenient w�en imposing- qm�seqµences· .on drunk dri­
vers. Thus, in adcihtioJ?: to mQ°bilizjng increased enforce­
me;nt ·and· gi;eatet publjq,awareness,mid1concem, we .must 

·· also lobby . for political and 1legislati:ve �ha:nge so that 
strpnger laws and S?Jlctions ,are - avail.able. for dealing 
witJ;i. alcohG>t traffic. offenders. TI'li!i maY, be difficult in the 
cmrent social cHmate · 'in which •the salience of alcohol­
impaked driving is- n6 longer as· promine�t as it once 
W;aS; especially aft�r sigpifj.cant successes and improve­
me.p,t_s. have been prade {Williams., 2006). 

T:P,e means. by w�ich politieal ·ancHegislative change 
can 0cour are complicated and - url.li,Rely ln the short 
term. The national s�ccess that MADD has had during 
the past s�v.erail ' decades, at making drun;k driving a 
]_)1'0ID1nent issne of pu_blic CO.rice.:m and the resultant 
legislative changes that have ·ensued·s.uggest that it pos­
sih>le to Iii.a . this at :the -state level with citizen activist 
grou.ps. Perhap� �n eve11 · .. mor;e ra�ical . �pproach is 
needed than simply lpbbying .. state legisla�prs .or pro­
viding i,nvited testimo'i1y -on fh:e rislcs '9£ drinking and 
dri;vfog, it$ c0,sts to the -$tate, anc hthe. benefits of pass­
ing pto;pose_d and more progressive legislation. Instead, 
proactive .approaches might be called for in which 
spe.cific legislators ar.e.- targeted with aggressive and 
puh>lic derµands to explain their record of voting 
against or otherwise diminishing proposed progressive 



, 

..-...__ legislation that would strengthen sanctions a,gainst 
drunk drivers . Policy makers· need to be h�ld account­
able as much as the enforcement community: 

This investigation had sei_veral -�iqiJe stre.ngtl;is' and 
limitations that need · to be·'.\iq:\(nowieci'ged/ The, µse .of 
multiple inclicators · iricluding · al¢cihol-relatecl cJ:a$lfes ; 
inj uries, and citations· suppl��ented !]i�( p·ii:bli6 C>pin­
ion telephone survey data: Ata;result, a_:dearer·pJcfure 
of the public health impact />f this anfi,.dr:umk drivir\g 
effort was available. · Too often, . public;: ,ccimpaign�· are 
evaluated using on_ly attifudiiial ' dr s-elhep'ort be!+avior 
measures and are not able tb 'ini::lud� a vari�tyiof pU:bli'c 
health status measures. ThEi"t:ISEf of a v'ar.fety of: morfal.-.. 
ity, morbidity, . and enfofcenient ' q.ata . ·wefc{deeided' 
strengths to this evaluation. Urif9rtunately, the� budget­
ing and planning process · did· not ' allot\dor 'telephone 
surveys of public awareness to be · done 'in · M�ryland 
before the campaign started:: This wo.uld' haye allowed 
precampaign levels of dri�er perceptibris ,and be11avio,i:s 
to be assessed and would·have:enablec fj;fre/pcist compar-' 
isons to be perforti1ed of pµ_plit pei·ceptlons ·of alcohol­
impaired driving risk:, · Program . evaiu.iit'ors :nee·d tci he 
involved in the planning pjbcess of such·public health 
and safety initiatives as :early as. possiµl�_.so  :fua:t prop'er 
attention can be given t6 pr6g�am ·evaluatiqn: ·. · ·  * )": In summary, the , lesson 1earned· fyom . :Maryland's 

�� C�eckpoiht Strik�force:�ampai�·Wth_at ,the_-fav�� :afc61I1-­
:mtment from the pub'li.c, enforcement,:and pohtical . com­

unities were welFbelow the::tb.resho'
1
ds that are critical· 

or public health impact. Insuffidei1t iilvestinents 41: paid 
as well as earned media, along .�ifh ·a g�n�i:a,lized failure 
to increase the level of enforcement cifimp�ed:· driving, 
were factors that contributed to ' this' outcome.' 
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Testimony 

H ouse B i l l  1 442 - Department of H u man  Services 

Senate Jud icia ry 

Senator Diane Larson, Chairman 
March 1 3 , 20 1 9 

Cha i rman Larson and members of the Senate Jud ic iary Committee,  I am Lau ra 

Anderson ,  Assistant D i rector of the Behaviora l  Health Div is ion of the Department of 

H u man Services ( Department) . I appear today to provide testimony i n  opposit ion to 

House B i l l  1 442 . 

CONSTITUTIONAL 

F i rst , to add ress the concern of perce ived i nfri ngement of civi l rights , the Supreme 

Cou rt ru led in 1 990 that sobriety checkpo i nts are constitutiona l .  The cou rt said the 

impo rtance of keeping impa i red d rivers off the road genera l ly  outweighs the 

i nconven ience and i ntrus ion to motorists . (M ich igan Dep't of State Pol ice v. S itz, 496 

U . S .  444 ( 1 990) . ) 

STRATEGY GOAL 

Second , the goal of sobriety checkpoints i s  to prevent d ri nki ng and d rivi ng - not to 

arrest d runk  d rivers .  

Accord i ng to  the FB I  Law Enforcement Bu l letin ,  January 2003 , Vo lume 72 , Number  

1 ,  referenced i n  previous testimony, "checkpo i nts offer a v is ib le enforcement method 

i ntended to deter potentia l  offenders" ;  "checkpo ints comprise one p iece of pub l ic  

awareness and ed ucation re levant to the d ri nking and d riv ing d i lemma" (page 2 ) ;  

and "focus ing on arrests is a mis lead ing way to  cons ider the  va lue of  checkpo ints" 

(page 4) .  



EFFECTIVE NESS 

Th i rd ,  research shows that h igh ly pub l icized , h igh ly  vis ib le ,  and frequent sobriety 

checkpo i nts i n  the U n ited States reduce impa i red d riv ing fata l crashes by 1 8  to 24 

percent . i  The Center for Disease Contro l ' s  systematic review of 1 1  h igh-qua l ity 

stud ies found checkpoints reduced alcohol-re lated fata l ,  i nj ury, and property damage 

crashes each by about 20 percent . i i Th is  CDC stat ist ic was inc luded in the Arizona 

Dai ly Star and the Columbus Dispatch art ic les referenced in previous test imony. 

S im i la rly ,  a meta-ana lys is found checkpoints red uce a lcohol-re lated crashes by 

1 7  percent, and a l l  crashes by 1 O to 1 5  percent. i i i  

For any strategy to be effective ,  it must be i mplemented to fide l ity. The journa l  

a rt ic le "Lessons Learned from Evaluati ng Maryland 's  Anti -Drunk  Drivi ng Campaign" 

referenced in p revious test imony concluded that sobriety checkpo ints d id not show 

posit ive change because there was i nsufficient leve ls of enforcement and 

inadequate pub l i city surround i ng the campaign .  Th is does not negate the fact that 

sob riety checkpo i nts , when imp lemented correctly, can be effective .  

NORTH DAKOTA PREVENTION 

The majority of North Dakotans support sobriety checkpo i nts. Accord ing to a 

statewide  commun ity read i ness su rvey cond ucted i n  201 7 ,  73% of North Dakota 

ad u lts suppo rt sobriety checkpoints wh ich is an i ncrease from the 201 5 percentage 

of 71 % .  Th is  data a l igns to nationa l  averages as stated in the FB I  Law Enforcement 

Bu l leti n ,  January 2003 , Vo lume 72 , Number 1 wh ich notes ,  "Pub l ic  op in ion po l l s  

have i nd icated 70-80% of American 's  su rveyed favored the increased use of 

sob riety checkpoints as an effect ive law enforcement too l  to combat impa i red 

d riving"  (page 3) .  

IM PLE M ENTATION 

The Department's Behavioral Hea lth Div is ion provides federa l  fund ing to loca l 

commun it ies to imp lement evidence-based prevent ion efforts target ing underage 

d ri nki ng ,  ad u lt b i nge d ri nking and prescri ption op io id abuse.  One of the evidence-

2 



based strategies federa l ly approved to prevent d ri nking and d rivi ng and currently 

be ing imp lemented by local  agencies is sobriety checkpo ints . 

Th is  conc ludes my testimony, and I am happy to answer any questions .  

; Fell JC ,  Lacey JH ,  Voas RB. ,  (2004) Sobriety checkpoints:  evidence of  effectiveness is strong,  but 
use is l im ited. Traffic Injury Prevention 5(3):220-7. 
i i  Elder,  Shults ,  et al . ,  (2002) Effect iveness of Sobriety Checkpoints for Reducing Alcohol-Involved 
Crashes .  Traffic Inju ry Prevention ,  3 :266-274.  
i i i  Erke , Goldenbeld ,  and Vaa, (2009) The effects of dr ink-driv ing checkpoi nts on crashes - A meta­
analys i s .  Accident Analys is and Prevent ion. 41 :9 1 4-923 .  
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- N O R T H  D A K O T A --

BEHAVIORAL 

HEALTH 

The Supreme Cou rt ru led i n  1 990 that sobri ety checkpoi nts a re const itut i ona l .  The cou rt sa id  the importance of 
keep i ng i m pa i red d rivers off the road genera l ly outwe ighs the i nconven ience and  i ntrus ion to motorists. (M i ch igan 
Dep 't of State Po l i ce v. S itz, 496 U .S. 444 ( 1 990).) 

The goa l of sobr iety checkpo i nts is  to prevent drink ing and  d riv ing - not to arrest d ru n k  d rivers. Law 
enforcement offi cers genera l ly a rrest i m pa i red d rivers detected at checkpo i nts and  pub l i c i ze those arrests, but 
a rrests at checkpo i nts shou ld  not be used as a measu re of checkpo i nt effectiveness .  For checkpo i nts to be 
effective, they shou l d  be h igh ly vis i b le, pub l i c ized extens ive ly, and conducted regu la rly. 

SO B R I ETY 

CH ECKPO I NTS 

ARE 

There i s  su bsta nt i a l  a n d  cons i stent evi dence from resea rch that h igh ly pub l i c ized, h igh ly 
v i s ib le ,  and  frequent sobr iety checkpo i nts i n  the U n ited States reduce impa i red d r iv ing fata l  
crashes by 1 8  to 24 percent .  

The Center fo r D i sease Contro l's systemat ic  revi ew of 1 1  h igh-q ua l i ty stud ies found  
checkpo i nts reduced a l coho l-re lated fata l ,  i nj u ry, a nd  property da mage crashes each  by  about 
20 percent .  S im i la rly, a meta-a na lys i s  found  checkpo i nts red u ce a l coho l -re lated crashes by 1 7  
percent, and  a l l  c rashes by 1 0 to 1 5  percent .  

SOBRI ETY CH ECKPO I NTS VS. SATU RATION PATROLS 
Both sobr iety checkpo i nts a nd  satu rat io n  patro l s  have a s ign ificant pu rpose, 
and when used together, can be effective in reduc i ng the n umber of 
impa i red d rive rs. 

I t  is p roven satu rat ion  effo rts wi l l  b r i ng more DU I  a r rests than sobr iety 
checkpo i nts. If a r rests represent a n  agency's goa l  a nd  it has  the resou rces, 
then i t  shou ld  use satu rat i on  patro l s .  

I f  a n  agency's goa l we ighs  heav ier o n  the educat iona l  s i de  and  prevent ing 
d rivi ng wh i le i ntoxicated, i t shou l d  use sobr iety checkpo i nts. However, to be 
effective, sobr iety checkpo i nts must be used frequent ly wh ich may represent 
a resou rce bu rden  on  agenc ies .  

I M PLEMENTAT ION IN NORTH DAKOTA 

The Behavio ra l  Hea lth D iv is ion provides federa l  fu nd i ng to loca l commun it ies th rough loca l  pub l i c  health, tri bes, 
a nd  other  loca l  gra ntees to imp lement evidence-based prevent ion efforts. One of the evidence-based strategies 
be i ng i m p lemented by loca l  agenc ies is  sobr iety checkpoi nts. 

Fel l  J C, Lacey JH ,  Voas RB , (2004) Sobr iety checkpoi nts: evidence of effectiveness is strong, but use is l im ited. Traffic I nj u ry Prevent ion 5(3) :220-7. 
E lder, Shu lts, et al . ,  (2002) Effectiveness of Sobriety Checkpoints for Reduc ing Alcohol- I nvolved Crashes. Traffic I nj u ry Prevention, 3 :266-274. 
E rke, Go ldenbe ld ,  and Vaa,(2009) The effects of dr i nk-dr iv ing checkpoints on crashes - A meta-ana lysis. Acc ident Analysis and Prevent ion .  41 9 1 4-923. 
FB I  Law Enforcement Bu l let in Uanuary 2003) 



Senate J ud ic ia ry Com m ittee :  

My name  is Lyn n  M icke lson from Colfax, ND .  I a m  writ ing th i s  statement to ask you to k i l l  H B  1442 .  As  a 

pa re nt of one  of the you ng Deutscher fam i ly mem bers from West Fa rgo that was k i l l ed  J u ly 6, 2012 by a 

d r unk  d rive r t rave l i ng the wrong way on  1 -94 abo ut 30 m i les west of J amestown, I m ust let you know 

that my wife a n d  I a re very pass ionate about the da nge rs of impa i red d riv ing and promot ing safe d riving 

pract ices .  

I rea l ize that th is HB 1442 is ma i n ly meant to e l im i nate the use of Sobriety Checkpoi nts in the State of 

N D, a lthough that  specifi c  word i ng is not inc luded i n  th is  p roposed b i l l .  

B a ck  i n  t he  2013  Legis l at ive Sess ion a nea rly identica l b i l l  was  i ntrod uced by  t he  sa me ma i n  sponsor  

stat ing that  'ma ny' of h i s  constituents had comp l a i ned a bout these Sobriety Checkpoi nts were a n  

' i nconven i ence' a n d  ca used 'frustrat ion' t o  those who had done  noth ing wrong.  Be ing 6 months after 

los ing an ent i re fam i ly  b ra nch, Aaron,  A l l ison, Br ie l l e  and an u n born Ba by, I stated that I cou l d  ta l k  a bout 

a lot of ' i n co nven ience' and  'frustrat ion' that we had dea l t  with and  a l l  the th i ngs that were den ied us 

now that we had lost an 18 month old grandda ughter a nd an u nborn ba by. 

I a l so rea l i ze that the use of Sobriety Checkpo i nts don't  p u l l  a lot of impa i red d rive rs off the roads but 

the me re adve rt i s ing of such a n  operat ion be ing schedu led  fo r a n  'und isc losed locat ion '  on  a certa i n  

d ate has  been p roven to  deter seve ra l peop le  from tak i ng  a cha nce on  gett ing ca ught o r  makes them 

seek an a lternative means of tra nsportation .  

Another  im portant  fact that I know i s  that t h e  use o f  Sobriety Checkpoi nts i s  NOT mandatory. I t  is 

tota l ly at the d i sc ret ion of the loca l Law Enfo rcement e ntity to do it o r  not. I t  i s  s im p ly one of the 'too l s' 

i n  the i r  a rsena l  that  is ava i l ab l e  to them .  My big concern and  q uestion here is 'why ta ke away one of the 

too l s  that  they have had a nd have the freedom to choose to use it o r  not?' 

P l ease cons ider  k i l l i ng this HB 1442 .  

Tha n k  You .  

Lyn n  M icke lson 





HB1442 

Madam Cha i r  a n d  mem bers of the Senate J ud icia ry Com m ittee, I am writ ing to p rovide my professiona l  

testimony o n  H B1442, rega rd i ng a lcoho l  sobriety check  po i nts .  I work as  the D i recto r of Hea lth 

Promotions  at  F i rst D istr ict Hea lth Un it .  Im p lement ing effective prevent ion strategies of substa nce 

a buse is  the majo rity of my job. Many t imes the gra nt fu nd i ng we rece ive req u i res we use on ly 

evidence based strateg ies .  Wh i le  I enjoy us ing my creative ta l ents i n  my pe rsona l  l ife, when working 

with pub l i c  g ra nt  fu nd i ng, it wou ld  not be prudent to be creat ive i n  p ick ing strategies that sound  good 

and  m ight work .  The evidence base stragies have been tested a nd p roven to work in red uc ing the 

unhea lthy behav ior we a re tryi ng to prevent. 

Across the nat ion we hea r a bout the "opio id ep idem ic", the true is  we have a broader  issue, a 

"substa nce use ep idem ic", of which a lcoho l  is one  of the most common  and  accepta b le  substa nce 

a bused . Cu rrent ly, No rth  Da kota has a one of the h ighest youth consum pt ion rates and  a d u lt b i nge 

d ri n k i ng rates in the nat ion .  I do not understa nd why we wou l d  want to fu rther  l im it the a l ready spa rse 

too l s  we have ava i l a b l e  in ou r  too l  box in combat ing th i s  ep idem ic .  I watched test imony on the House 

floo r  l a st month .  The ma i n  a rgument was that there a re more cost effective too l s  we could be us ing. 

There i s  no  one s ize f its a l l  magic p i l l  that wi l l  red uce this p rob lem,  we need ALL of these too l s  a nd when 

we ca n i m p lement m u l t ip le  too ls, we ca n be even more effective i n  red uc ing and prevent ing risky 

behav ior .  

O n  a person a l  leve l ,  p a rt of the reason I do th i s  work is  i n  memory of my Godson,  Rya n Pa l mer, who on 

J u ly 17 ,  2011  was k i l l ed  wh i le  d riv ing intoxicated .  Trust me ,  we have prayed that a sobriety checkpoint 

had  been set up on the h ighway that n ight. I a lso had  a u n iq ue  exper ience seve ra l yea rs ago on a d rive 

home from vis it i ng fa m i ly with ou r  three you ng boys in the backseat, we encounte red a sobriety 

checkpo int .  What a n  ed ucat iona l opportun ity that p rovided fo r us as pa re nts to d iscuss d ri n k i ng and  

d riv ing w i th  o u r  ch i l d ren .  

I h ave  witnessed numerous t imes that when peop le  know there w i l l  be  checkpoints they share the 

i nfo rmat ion  with others. You ca n a rgue that peop le ta ke a d iffe rent route, but in  rea l ity, it cha nges 

behav ior. Often t imes it dete rs a person from d riv ing i ntoxicated, l im it ing a lcoho l  consum ption,  

d es ignat i ng a sober  d rive r, having someone p ick them up, o r  tak ing a taxi/Uber/Lyft . 

I a sk  you to keep sobriety check poi nts as a way to com bat the "Substa nce Abuse ep idem ic" and  save 

l ives of o u r  c it izens .  

Renae  L .  Byre 
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